
AUDIT AND STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE

Thursday, 19th July, 2018
6.30 pm

Public Document Pack



Audit and Standards Committee DATE - 19-07-18 Page 2 of 4

AUDIT AND STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE
BURNLEY TOWN HALL

Thursday, 19th July, 2018 at 6.30 pm
Members are reminded that if they have detailed questions on individual 
reports, they are advised to contact the report authors in advance of the 
meeting.

Members of the public may ask a question, make a statement, or present a 
petition relating to any agenda item or any matter falling within the remit of the 
committee.

Notice in writing of the subject matter must be given to the Head of 
Governance, Law & Regulation by 5.00pm on the day before the meeting.  
Forms can be obtained for this purpose from the reception desk at Burnley 
Town Hall or the Contact Centre, Parker Lane, Burnley.  Forms are also 
available on the Council’s website www.burnley.gov.uk/meetings.

AGENDA

1) Apologies 
To receive any apologies for absence.

2) Minutes 5 - 8
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting.

3) Additional Items of Business 
To determine whether there are any additional items of business which, 
by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.

4) Declarations of Interest 
To receive any declarations of interest from Members relating to any item 
on the agenda, in accordance with the provisions of the Code of Conduct.

5) Exclusion of the Public 
To determine during which items, if any, the public are to be excluded 
from the meeting.

6) Public Question Time 
To consider questions, statements or petitions from Members of the 
Public.

PUBLIC ITEMS



Audit and Standards Committee DATE - 19-07-18 Page 3 of 4

7) Annual Governance Statement 9 - 20
To present the completed signed Annual Governance Statement 
2017/18.

8) Annual Accounts 2017/18 21 - 146
To present the Council’s audited Statement of Accounts for 2017/18, to 
obtain the formal approval of the Committee to the audited accounts, and 
to ask that they be signed by the chair of the Committee. 

To approve the letter of representation from the Head of Finance & 
Property to Grant Thornton (the external auditors) and to ask that it be 
signed by the chair of the Committee; and

To inform the Committee of the audit findings.
9) Internal Audit Opinion 2017/18 147 - 156

To provide members with a report on the governance of the Strategic 
Partner during 2017/18.

10)Governance of Strategic Partner 2017 18 157 - 160
To provide members with a report on the governance of the Strategic 
Partner during 2017/18.

11)Padiham Town Council Report 161 - 164
To report to members on enquires made with Padiham Town Council

12)Code of Conduct Review 165 - 178
To report on the recommendations of a review of section 5.1 of the 
Council’s Code of Conduct: Complaints Procedure Guidance in relation to 
arrangements for dealing with complaints about Council members.

13)Work Programme 179 - 180
To consider the Work Programme for the current year.

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEE 

Councillors

Councillor Paul Campbell (Chair)
Councillor Joanne Greenwood (Vice-
Chair)
Councillor Tom Commis
Councillor Dale Ferrier
Councillor Anne Kelly

Councillor Neil Mottershead
Councillor Ann Royle
Councillor Andrew Tatchell
Councillor Mark Townsend

Co-opted Members
Colin Crowther, Burnley College
Louise Gaskell, East Lancashire 
Chamber of Commerce
Councillor Kathryn Haworth, Habergham 
Eaves Parish Council
Councillor Gill Smith, Cliviger Parish 

External Auditor

Marianne Dixon, Grant Thornton - External 
Auditor
Mark Heap, Grant 
Thornton



Audit and Standards Committee DATE - 19-07-18 Page 4 of 4

Council

Published: Wednesday, 11 July 2018



Audit and Standards Committee 07/03/2018 Page 1 of 4

AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE
BURNLEY TOWN HALL

Wednesday, 7th March, 2018 at 6.30 pm

PRESENT 

MEMBERS
Councillor Jean Cunningham, In the Chair.

Councillors J Greenwood, M Lishman, A Newhouse, A Royle, A Tatchell and 
M Townsend

OFFICERS
Ian Evenett  Internal Audit Manager
Imelda Grady  Democracy Officer

CO-OPTED MEMBERS
Louise Gaskell
Councillor Gill Smith

-

EXTERNAL 
AUDITORS 

Mark Heap 

34. Apologies 

Apologies were received from Colin Crowther, Marianne Dixon and Kathryn Haworth. 

35. Minutes 

To Minutes of the meeting held on 10th January 2018 were agreed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chair.

36. Additional Items of Business 

1. In accordance with the provisions of Section100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the Chair decided that a report on Padiham Town Council’s failure to 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Audit and Standards Committee 07/03/2018 Page 2 of 4

prepare its annual return should be taken as an additional item of business and 
would be taken as item 11 on the agenda.

2. The Democracy Officer reported receipt of a letter of resignation from the 
Independent member Colin Crowther who was leaving Burnley College at the end of 
July.  Members asked that a letter of thanks be sent to Colin on behalf of the 
Committee  in recognition of his services to the Committee over the past 12 years.

37. Declarations of Interest 

Councillors Jean Cunningham and Andy Tatchell declared a prejudicial interest in item 11- 
Padiham Town Council failure to prepare the annual return.  They left the room during 
consideration of this item and took no part in the debate or vote on the item.

38. External Audit Report and Sector Update 

Mark Heap from the external auditors Grant Thornton presented the audit progress report 
for the year ending 31st March 2018.

The report detailed the progress of the audit deliverables and key milestones in order for 
the Council to meet the audit deadline date of July 2018.  He confirmed the Council was 
well placed to meet this deadline.

Members were also provided with links to a digest of publications and topical issues.

IT WAS AGREED

That the report be noted.

39. External Audit Plan for year end 31st March 2018 

Mark Heap presented the external audit plan for the year end 31st March  2018.  He 
emphasised that the plan was designed to mitigate any risks to the Council and he 
appraised members of risks that had been identified.  He also gave the progress on the 
external auditor’s opinion on value for money which would be reported in due course and 
be included in the Annual Audit letter.  

In respect of significant risks identified, Councillor Townsend asked if these were unique to 
Burnley or if they were common within local authorities as a whole.  Mark confirmed that the 
risks were similar in many other local authorities.

Councillor Lishman asked if the financial difficulties at the County Council had been taken 
into account when managing the pensions risk for Burnley Council.  Mark Heap explained 
that the Lancashire County Council’s pension fund (LCCPF) was audited  by a separate 
team of colleagues within Grant Thornton and that he liaised with colleagues as part of  the 
Burnley Council’s liabilities in terms of the pension fund .

Page 6



Audit and Standards Committee 07/03/2018 Page 3 of 4

Councillor Lishman asked what were the significant risks on valuations of property, plant 
and equipment.  Mark explained that these risks applied to most local authority audits 
because of the significant sums of money involved.  Any error in valuation could be a 
potential risk.

Councillor Cunningham asked if there was anything within the plan which  could be seen as 
a future problem for the Council.  Mark explained that the external auditor’s opinion was 
designed to counter this and it there were any foreseen problems they would be brought to 
the Council’s attention immediately.

IT WAS AGREED

That the report be noted.

40. Internal Audit Quarter 3 Progress Report 

Members received for information details of the work undertaken by Internal Audit for the 
period 1st October to 31st December 2017.

Councillor Lishman said that it would be useful within the details of the audits within 
Appendix 1 to show if the key actions had been carried out or when they were anticipated to 
be completed.  Ian Evenett agreed that summary form could be altered to incorporate this.

Louise Gaskell asked if the internal audit team was confident that actions in respect of the 
Data Protection regulations were on target for the May deadline.  Ian Evenett said Burnley 
Council would be as prepared as possible given the complexities of elements of the 
regulations and that all local authorities were faced with the same challenges.  He 
highlighted work that was being carried out in preparation for the new regulations, including 
face to face sessions with key staff to ensure their service areas were aware of the changes 
to data protection and that all staff were required to complete an on-line learning  package 
on the new regulations.

Councillor Townsend referred to the costs associated with any breaches of the data 
protection regulations and emphasized the need for service units to ensure that not only 
new technology implementations were in place but  also that the Council’s document 
retention policy was applied to all hard copy documents from years gone by.

Councillor Townsend said that the Audit and Standards Committee had a leadership role to 
play to ensure that the Council was on track with the data protection regulations and that 
Committee should receive a position statement at its next meeting.  

IT WAS AGREED

(1) That the report be noted; and 

(2) That a position statement on the Council’s implementation of the  Data Protection 
Regulations be brought to the next meeting.

Page 7



Audit and Standards Committee 07/03/2018 Page 4 of 4

41. Work Programme 

The work programme for the remainder of the 2017/18 Municipal Year was noted.

42. Padiham Town Council report 

Councillors Jean Cunningham and Andy Tatchell left the room during consideration of this 
matter.

                             Councillor Ann Royle – in the Chair

Members were notified that a report in the public interest had been issued to Padiham 
Town Council by the external auditor BDO Ltd for the failure to submit an annual return on 
finance and governance arrangements for the year ended 31st March 2017.

It was confirmed that the Town Council had now prepared its accounts and submitted a 
copy to the council.

Members agreed that ultimately it was the responsibility of all parish and town councillors to 
ensure their Council’s accounts were published on time and asked that a report be brought 
back to the Audit and Standards Committee on the outcome of the BDO Ltd’s audit of 
Padiham Town Council’s accounts to be reassured that matters were now in order.

Members also discussed how Burnley should manage the risks around grant payments to 
these bodies.

IT WAS AGREED

That a report be brought back to Committee on this matter.

Page 8



ITEM 
NO

[AgendaItem]

D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\2\AI00006202\$i2aiwymo.docx

Annual Governance Statement Report

REPORT TO AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE

DATE 19/07/2018
PORTFOLIO Resources & Performance Management
REPORT AUTHOR Ian Evenett
TEL NO (01282) 425011

EMAIL ievenett@burnley.gov.uk

PURPOSE

1. To present the completed signed Annual Governance Statement 2017 18

RECOMMENDATION

2. Members are asked to:

a) Approve the Annual Governance Statement
b) Note the findings

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3. To ensure that the Council complies with its statutory duty (under the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015) to conduct an annual review of its governance arrangements and 
produce a statement.

SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS

4. The Council has conducted its review in accordance with the CIPFA (Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy) and SOLACE (Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives) governance framework Developing Good Governance in Local Government; 
Framework (2016).

5. This is supported by assurance statements provided by members, Heads of Service, 
Liberata and Senior Management to the Leader and Chief Executive. This enables the 
council to state that there were no issues to report and that the governance arrangements 
of the Council operated during the financial year. The mechanism was reported to the 
Audit and Standards Committee in January and the draft in March.

6. The statement provides assurance to the Council’s stakeholder’s that the governance 
and internal control environment in which the accounts were prepared was appropriate 
and that the council had the systems in place to ensure good governance.

7. A signed copy of the completed statement (Appendix 1) was provided to the External 
Auditors with the unaudited Statement of Accounts. A new signed and dated copy has 
been obtained for this meeting to confirm to the Auditors that there has been no change 
in the governance whilst the audit was underway.

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



ITEM 
NO

[AgendaItem]

D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\2\AI00006202\$i2aiwymo.docx

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND BUDGET PROVISION

8. None.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

9. The Local Code of Corporate Governance describes the requirements of the council in 
respect of governance.

DETAILS OF CONSULTATION

10.None

BACKGROUND PAPERS

11.None

FURTHER INFORMATION      
PLEASE CONTACT: Ian Evenett – Internal Audit Manager
ALSO:

Page 10



Annual 
Governance
Statement

2017/18

Page 11



2

Contents

Page

Introduction

 Scope and Responsibility 3

 Purpose of the Governance Framework 3

 The Governance Framework 4

Effectiveness of Governance Framework

 Review of Effectiveness 8

 Future Challenges 8

 Action Taken to Address Previous Issues 8

 Certification 9

Page 12



3

Introduction

1. Scope and Responsibility

1.1 Burnley Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and 
properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. Burnley Borough 
Council has also a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to 
secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having 
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

1.2 In discharging this overall responsibility, Burnley Borough Council is responsible for putting 
in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs; facilitating the effective 
exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

1.3 Burnley Borough Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance, 
which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA1/SOLACE2 Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government. A copy of the code is on our website at: 

http://www.burnley.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Changes_to_the_Constitution_Code_of_Corp
orate_Governance.pdf

Or can be obtained from:

Governance, Law and Regulation
Burnley Borough Council
Town Hall
Manchester Road
Burnley
BB11 9SA.

1.4 This statement explains how Burnley Borough Council has complied with the Code and also 
meets the requirements of regulation 6(1)[a] of the Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2015, which requires all relevant bodies to prepare an Annual Governance 
Statement.

2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework

2.1 The Governance Framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and 
values, by which the authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it 
accounts to, engages with and leads its communities. It enables the authority to monitor the 
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led 
to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money.

2.2 The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, 
aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed 
to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Burnley Borough Council’s polices, 
aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being 
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

1 Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
2 Society of Local Authority Chief Executives

Page 13

http://www.burnley.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Changes_to_the_Constitution_Code_of_Corporate_Governance.pdf
http://www.burnley.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Changes_to_the_Constitution_Code_of_Corporate_Governance.pdf


4

2.3 The Governance Framework has been in place at Burnley Borough Council for the year 
ended 31st March 2018 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Statement of Accounts.

3. The Governance Framework

3.1 The key elements of the Council’s governance arrangements are outlined in the Local Code 
of Corporate Governance.  Some of these features of the Governance Framework are 
explained in the following paragraphs.

3.2 The Strategic Plan sets out the contribution we will make to enabling communities in 
Burnley to thrive now and in the future.  The Strategic Plan is linked to the revenue and 
capital budget, ensuring that the aspirations in the plan are realistic in the context of the 
funding constraints placed on the Council.  The Strategic Plan is reviewed annually.  The 
review takes account of feedback from surveys conducted with the public in Burnley and 
through the Citizen’s Panel.

3.3 Delivery of the Strategic Plan is supported by Service Plans and individual’s Performance 
Development Reviews.  These include competencies, targets and, where appropriate, 
service standards against which service quality and improvement can be measured. 
Officers attend staff conferences and participate in job chats amongst other means to keep 
informed of organisational and service development. This is also another opportunity for 
staff to voice opinion and advice on issues.

3.4 Burnley Borough Council’s Constitution establishes the roles and responsibilities for 
members of the Executive, Regulatory and Standards Committees, together with officer 
functions.  It includes the Scheme of Delegation, codes of conduct and protocols for member 
/ officer relations. The Constitution is regularly reviewed to ensure that it continues to be fit 
for purpose.  

3.5 The Constitution also contains procedure rules including, Standing Orders and Financial 
Procedure Rules that define how decisions are taken and where authority rests for decision 
making.  The statutory roles of Head of Paid Service, Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring 
Offer are described together with their contributions to provide robust assurance on 
governance and that expenditure is lawful and in line with approved budgets and 
procedures.  The influence and oversight exerted by the Head of Paid Service (the Chief 
Executive) and the Chief Finance Officer (Head of Finance and Property) is backed by the 
post-holders’ membership of the Management Team.

3.6 The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) has responsibility for the proper administration of the 
Council’s financial affairs.  This includes responsibility for maintaining and reviewing 
Financial Procedure Rules to ensure they remain fit for purpose and submitting 
amendments to Full Council for approval.  The Chief Financial Officer is also responsible 
for reporting, where appropriate, breaches of the Rules to the Executive and/or the Council.  
The Chief Financial Officer reports directly to the Chief Operating Officer.

3.7 The role of the CFO has been defined by CIPFA in its document titled, ‘the role of the chief 
financial officer, in Local Government’. The Council’s financial management arrangements 
conform with these governance requirements and this is explained in the constitution. 

3.8 The Head of Finance and Property fulfils the role of Head of Internal Audit. This includes 
championing best practice and assessing adequacy in governance, management and risk, 
providing an opinion on these aspects, and leading an effective Internal Audit service. 

3.9 The Full Council and the Executive are the decision making bodies of the Council. 
Regulatory Committees including Development Control and Licensing Committees 

Page 14



5

undertake decisions delegated to it under the Constitution. The Council’s Scrutiny 
Committee works to improve service delivery and to review the Executive decisions. The 
Audit and Standards Committee oversees the review of the Council’s audit and 
governance arrangements and the production of this statement. 

3.10 In recognition of the exposure to fraud, the Council has adopted an Anti-Fraud Bribery 
and Corruption Policy which is part of the Constitution. This is relevant to all members, 
officers and its partners. Fraud risks are considered as part of strategic and service risk 
management. Fraud awareness training is made available to further raise awareness of the 
matter. 

3.11 To complement the anti-fraud policy, Council has a complaints procedure and a whistle-
blowing policy that is maintained and regularly reviewed, which provide the opportunity for 
members of the public and staff to raise concerns when they believe that appropriate 
standards have not been met. The Audit and Standards Committee is responsible for 
overseeing the investigation of complaints against members and promotion and 
maintenance of high standards of conduct in the authority.

3.12 The Council has an embedded risk management function.  The Risk Management Policy 
and Strategy are reviewed regularly. The Risk Management Group draws together risk 
issues from across the authority to ensure that issues and concerns are shared and that a 
consistent approach is adopted throughout the organisation. 

3.13 Training needs of members and officers are identified through appraisal and review 
processes.  Appropriate training is made available to staff to ensure that individuals are able 
to undertake their present role effectively and that they have the opportunity to develop to 
meet their and the Council’s needs.  All newly elected members undertake an induction 
programme so that they can make an effective contribution to the work of the authority. 
Specific committee training is given to members so that they may discharge their 
responsibilities more effectively along with general member development training such as 
on finance and conduct. The Council retained the Investors in People (IIP) Gold Standard 
and continues to undertake reviews to maintain this excellence.

3.14 The Council is committed to partnership working. The Burnley Action Partnership brings 
together representatives from across the community and sectors. This provides a 
community plan on which the strategy of the Council is based. The Strategic Partnerships 
with Urbaser, Liberata and Burnley Leisure will ensure that vital services will continue to be 
delivered in these financially challenging times.   The Burnley Bondholders work to 
promote Burnley in the region and wider area.  

3.15 The main areas of the Council’s Governance Framework, and key evidence of delivery, are 
set out below, under the headings of the seven CIPFA/SOLACE Core Principles of Good 
Governance.

Page 15



6

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and respecting the rule of the law.

 Codes of Conduct exist for both officers and members.
 Statutory Officers are in post: 

o the Chief Executive as Head of Paid Service,
o the Head of Governance, Law and Regulation as the Monitoring Officer
o the Head of Finance and Property as the Section 151 Officer.

 The Constitution and Scheme of Delegation define the roles and responsibilities of officers and members, and sets 
out the rules on how the Council conducts its business

 TEAM values are in place.

 Council meetings are conducted in public; decisions have been properly recorded and are in the public domain.
 Public consultations have been carried out:

o Local Plan
o Padiham Artwork
o Citizen Survey

 Engagement with the business community: Burnley Bondholders
 Partnership boards for the strategic partners:

o Liberata
o Urbaser
o

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits.

 The Strategic Plan is in place and is underpinned by Service Plans. 
 Balanced Scorecards are used to monitor the achievement of stated outcomes.
 The Council makes best use of resources by always considering options for the way services are delivered.

Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of intended outcomes.

 Balanced Scorecards exist to monitor progress on intended outcomes.
 Decision makers receive analysis of options to achieve intended outcomes.  This includes risk analysis associated 

with making key decisions.
 The Council is continually reviewing how services are provided.

Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it.

 Member training programmes are in place. Training during 2017/18 included guidance on the Statement of 
Accounts.

 Officer training is identified during Performance Development Reviews which is linked to the Service Plan. 
 New officers receive corporate and service unit induction.  Training is also provided to new members.
 Arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of the workforce.  
 There are regular meetings between the Chief Executive and the Leader of the Council. Similar meetings take place 

between Heads of Service and Executive Members.

Page 16



7

Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective accountability.

Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong financial management.

 Information on the decision making process is readily available to all stakeholders.
 Internal Audit will review the internal control framework on an on-going basis, particularly the key financial systems.
 Internal Audit will provide an objective opinion on the internal control framework that was in place for 2017/18.
 External Audit (Grant Thornton) will review the arrangements that the Council has in place to secure value for 

money.  This will also provide an opinion on the accuracy and completeness of the Statement of Accounts.

 There is a risk management framework in place that identifies and reports risk and how it is managed.
 The system on Internal Control is reviewed on an on-going basis by Internal Audit.
 The Head of Finance is responsible for the financial management of the council and is the Section 151 Officer.
 Robust budget monitoring arrangements for both capital and revenue with budget reporting to management team 

and members.  
 The council has an appropriate anti-fraud and corruption culture.

Page 17



8

The Effectiveness of the Governance Framework

4. Review of Effectiveness

4.1 Burnley Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of 
the effectiveness of its Governance Framework, including the system of internal control.  
The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the Management Team, who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the 
Head of Internal Audit’s annual report and also by the findings and reports issued by the 
external auditors.

4.2 Burnley Borough Council’s Internal Audit section, via specific responsibility assigned to 
the Head of Internal Audit, is required to provide an annual independent and objective 
opinion to the Authority on its risk management, governance and control environment.  
The Head of Internal Audit’s report for 2017/18 concluded that the Council’s internal 
controls continue to operate effectively.

4.3 The review of compliance with the Governance Framework has involved:
 Heads of Service and key officers (Chief Finance Officer, Monitoring Officer and 

Health & Safety Officer) providing signed Assurance Statements to Management 
Team.  These have been supported by a control and risk self-assessment 
questionnaire and were collated by Internal Auditors. Management Team considered 
these statements and also signed Assurance Statement from the Chief Operating 
Officer.

 Liberata providing a signed Assurance Statement to the Chief Operating Officer.
 Executive Members and Chair of Scrutiny completing a self-assessment 

questionnaire and providing a signed Assurance Statement to the Leader of the 
Council and Chief Executive.

 Internal Audit completing a review of the corporate documents and evidence for the 
key elements of Governance and Internal Control. The Internal Audit Opinion (draft) is 
included as part of the consideration, as are external audit reports etc.

 A draft of the Annual Governance Statement is prepared and provided to 
Management Team.

 An Annual Governance Statement is then provided to the Chief Executive and Leader 
to sign.

4.4 Governance arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with 
the Governance Framework. The review process has highlighted no significant issues.

5. Future Challenges

5.1 Burnley Council has recognised current and future financial challenges in its strategic risk 
register and medium term financial strategy. The authority will continue to meet these 
challenges as it has done in the past; taking steps to manage this by considering 
modernisation and rationalisation.    
 

6. Action Taken to Address Previous Issues

6.1 No significant issues had been identified on the previous (2016/17) governance 
statement.

Page 18



9

7. Certification

7.1 The Council has governance procedures that contain comprehensive systems, cultures 
and values by which it is controlled, and through which it engages with the community in 
a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



ITEM NO

REPORT TO AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

DATE 19 July 2018
PORTFOLIO Resources & Performance Management
REPORT AUTHOR Howard Hamilton-Smith
TEL NO (01282) 475869

EMAIL Hhamilton-smith@burnley.gov.uk

Annual Accounts 2017/18

PURPOSE

1.  To present the Council’s audited Statement of Accounts for 2017/18, to obtain the 
formal approval of the Committee to the audited accounts, and to ask that they be 
signed by the chair of the Committee. 

 To ask the Audit and Standards Committee to approve the letter of representation 
from the Head of Finance & Property to Grant Thornton (the external auditors) and 
to ask that it be signed by the chair of the Committee.

 To inform the Audit and Standards Committee of the audit findings.
 

RECOMMENDATION

2. Members are asked to:
 

a) Approve and sign the Statement of Accounts.
b) Approve and sign the letter of representation.
c) Note the audit findings.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3. To ensure that the Council complies with its statutory duty to submit the audited 
accounts for 2017/18 by the 31 July 2018 deadline. 

SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS

4. The 2017/18 accounts have been produced under the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the UK for 2017/18 standards. 

5. The Council, to comply with statutory requirements of completion of a draft set of accounts 
by 31 May 2018, prepared the 2017/18 Statement of Accounts by the 17 May 2018. These 
accounts were certified by the Head of Finance, as the Council’s statutory Chief Finance 
Officer, on 17 May 2017 and were published on the Council’s website for public inspection 
prior to external audit. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



6. The external audit of the Statement of Accounts has now been concluded by Grant 
Thornton and I am pleased to report that the Council’s appointed Auditor is satisfied that 
the accounts present a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position. The audited 
accounts are attached for information and final approval at Appendix 1. Elsewhere on your 
agenda is the Auditor’s report on the 2017/18 accounts and governance arrangements.

7. Also elsewhere on your agenda is the Council’s approved Annual Governance Statement. 
It is included in this agenda so as to demonstrate the governance and internal control 
environment within which the Statement of Accounts has been prepared.

8. There have been a relatively small number of changes to the accounts as agreed with the 
external auditors during the course of the audit and these changes are included in the 
Statement of Accounts attached.  

9. The wording of the external auditor’s opinion on the accounts and the conclusion on the 
Council’s arrangements for securing value for money is contained in the auditor’s Audit 
Findings Report. Once the opinion and conclusion have been formally disclosed to the 
Committee they will form part of the published Statement of Accounts on the Council’s 
website. The chair of the Audit and Standards Committee is required to sign the Statement 
of Accounts prior to the publication.

10. Part of the process of obtaining a favourable opinion from the external auditor is that 
representations are required to be made by the Chief Financial Officer about a range of 
issues upon which confidence is placed during the course of the audit. These 
representations are contained in the letter of representation which is attached as Appendix 
2. The Head of Finance & Property, as the Council’s statutory Chief Finance Officer 
(Section 151 Officer), will sign this letter at your meeting after discussion with the Audit and 
Standards Committee. In accordance with external audit requirements the chair is also 
asked to sign the letter of representation.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND BUDGET PROVISION

11. As shown in the Statement of Accounts. 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

12. None.

DETAILS OF CONSULTATION

13. None.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

14. None.

FURTHER INFORMATION
PLEASE CONTACT: Howard Hamilton-Smith - Finance Manager

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



 
 

 

1. Narrative Reports and Written Statements 

Narrative Report  Page 3 

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts  Page 12 

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Burnley Borough Council  Page 13 
 

2. Core Financial Statements 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement  Page 17 

Movement in Reserves Statement  Page 18 

Balance Sheet  Page 19 

Cash Flow Statement  Page 20 
 

3. Notes to the Accounts 

Index of Notes to the Core Financial Statements  Page 22 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements  Page 23 
 

4. Supplementary Accounts and Explanatory Notes 

Collection Fund Statement  Page 72 

Notes to the Collection Fund Statement  Page 73 
 

5. Accounting Policies 

Accounting Policies  Page 77 
 

6. Glossary 

Glossary of Terms  Page 92 
  

Contents 

Page 25



 

Page 26



P A G E  | 3 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NARRATIVE REPORT 

 

 
 

This booklet presents the Council’s accounts for the year ended 31 March 2018.  The accounts conform 
to the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 (the Code), which 
is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

The layout and purpose of each statement is as follows:- 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS 
 Narrative Report - provides an easily understandable guide to the most significant matters 

reported in the accounts, including a summary of operating activity during the year. 

 Statement of Responsibilities - explains the responsibilities of the Council and its Chief Financial 
Officer in relation to the Council’s financial affairs and the Statement of Accounts. 

CORE STATEMENTS 
 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this shows the accounting cost in the year 

of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the 
amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in 
accordance with statutory requirements; this may be different from the accounting cost. The 
taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. The top half of the statement provides an analysis by service area whilst the 
bottom half deals with corporate transactions and funding. The Code requires the Council to 
analyse the cost of service in the same format reported during the year.  

 Movement in Reserves Statement – this statement shows the movement from the start of the 
year to the end on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable’ reserves (i.e. 
those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable’ 
reserves (i.e. those that cannot be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation e.g. 
pensions reserve). The statement shows how the movements in year of the Council’s reserves 
are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices and the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts 
chargeable to Council Tax for the year. The Net Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory 
General Fund Balance movements in the year following those adjustments. 

 Balance Sheet - this shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities 
recognised by the Council. The net assets of the authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by 
the reserves held. Reserves are reported in two categories, usable and unusable. Usable reserves 
are those that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent 
level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts 
Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). Unusable reserves are 
those that the Council is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes 
reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where 
amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves 
that hold timing differences shown in the Movement of Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments 
between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’. 

 Cash Flow Statement – this statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents during 
the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash 
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount 
of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the 
operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

Page 27



P A G E  | 4 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NARRATIVE REPORT 

 

of services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash 
outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council’s future 
service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on 
future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council. 

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
All the notes to the core statements above are collected in one place. Later in this document there is an 
explanation of the policies used in the preparation of the figures in these accounts, especially changes 
made during the year. 

OTHER STATEMENTS 
The Collection Fund and notes – this statement reflects the Council’s statutory obligation to maintain a 
separate Collection Fund for its transactions as a billing authority in relation to Council Tax and Non-
Domestic Rates. 

GLOSSARY 
At the end of the booklet there is a glossary which explains some of the technical terms used in these 
accounts.  

REVENUE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
Revenue income and expenditure relates to the day-to-day running of all the services that the Council 
provides. Before the start of the financial year the Council prepares the annual revenue budget 
reflecting the estimated net expenditure to be incurred in the year on the provision of services. The 
budget is then regularly reviewed and revised during the year to incorporate known changes in planned 
and actual revenue income and expenditure. 

REVENUE BUDGET  

The revenue budget for 2017/18 was approved by Full Council on 22 February 2017 and amounted to a 
net figure of £14.596m. The revenue budget in 2017/18 delivered savings of £1.613m; this is on top of 
the £10.921m saved in the previous six years. This net budget figure was funded as follows: 

  Net Budget 

£000s  

Business Rates  4,376 

Revenue Support Grant 2,777 

Council Tax  6,391 

Council Tax Surplus 82 

New Homes Bonus 970 

 14,596 

 

In addition, the Council received requests for Council Tax precepts of £0.093m to fund expenditure by 
Parish and Town Councils. In total this resulted in a Council Tax precept of £6.484m. 

 

 

 
Page 28



P A G E  | 5 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NARRATIVE REPORT 

 

REVENUE SURPLUS  
In determining the budget for the year there was no planned transfer to or from accumulated general 
balances but there was a planned contribution of £2.184m from earmarked reserves. There were 
however further planned contributions from earmarked reserves of £1.505m arising from decisions 
made during the financial year as part of the revenue budget monitoring process. This gave a revised net 
planned overall contribution from earmarked reserves of £3.689m. 

The Statement of Accounts shows that there was a revenue surplus for the year of £0.092m after taking 
into account an actual net contribution from earmarked reserves of £1.346m. 

The table below details where the £0.092m is shown in these accounts: 

 Net Surplus 

£000s 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

- Deficit on provision of services 

 

680 

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations 

- General Fund balance (Note 7) 

 

574 

Net contribution from Earmarked Reserves in year (see note below) (1,346) 

Revenue surplus 2017/18 (92) 

 

The revenue surplus of £0.092m has been transferred to earmarked reserves to give a net decrease in 
earmarked reserves for the year of £1.254m to £6.778m as detailed below: 

  

Under 

Spending 

£000s 

Earmarked 

Reserves 

Utilised 

£000s 

Earmarked 

Reserves 

Balance 

£000s 

General 

Fund 

Balance 

£000s 

Balances brought forward 1 April 2017   (8,032) (1,379) 

Position as per Budget Monitoring Report – end December 2017     

   Earmarked Reserves decrease  3,689 3,689  

   Estimated underspending at year end (98)  (98)  

Estimated year end Earmarked Reserves balance   (4,441)  

Year-end position     

   Decrease in net underspending at year end 6  6  

   Earmarked Reserves – transfers to reserves  (2,343) (2,343)  

   (6,778)  

Net underspend 2017/18 (92)    

Balance carried forward 31 March 2018           (6,778) (1,379) 

Less: Opening balances   8,032  

Balance transferred (to) / from Earmarked Reserves (92) 1,346 1,254  

 Page 29



P A G E  | 6 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NARRATIVE REPORT 

 

The level of the General Fund Balance has remained at the prescribed level of £1.379m under the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. The main reasons for the net overall surplus of £0.092m 
generated on the revenue account are shown in the table below: 

 Major Variances 

£000s 

Underspends / Increased Income  

Efficiency savings – CCTV Shared Service (50) 

Salaries underspending  (59) 

Pension cost savings (88) 

Utility/Non Domestic Rate savings (92) 

Insurance savings (76) 

Strategic Partnership – Income sharing saving (133) 

VAT refund (120) 

Net increase in income (various services) (61) 

Other net underspending in services (255) 

Increased Expenditure / Reduced Income  

Net increase in provisions 297 

Workforce planning costs 360 

Increased revenue contributions to capital 90 

Business Support Programme – increase in expenditure 95 

Total Underspend (92) 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
Capital expenditure relates to the cost of the provision of, or enhancement of, assets or other 
expenditure where the benefits last beyond the financial year in question. The precise definition of 
capital expenditure is set out in the Capital Finance Regulations. Capital and revenue transactions must 
be accounted for separately. 

In 2017/18 the Council spent £10.0m on capital projects compared with a revised capital budget of 
£11.4m. During the year £3.1m was invested in workshop units in the Vision Park, £1.4m spent on Land 
at Grove Lane and £0.6m on the Burnley town centre pedestrianisation scheme in partnership with 
Lancashire County Council, in addition to £1.4m on housing renovations for disabled facilities.  

For 2018/19 the Council will invest £1.4m on the NW Burnley Growth Corridor, £1.4m on works to the 
Open Market and Former Cinema Block, £1.1m on the Empty Homes Programme, and around £2.5m on 
Better Care grants. This will complement all four themes of our strategic objective; people, places, 
prosperity and performance. 

The differences on the various areas of the capital budget are summarised in the following table. The 
shortfall in spending compared to that allowed for in the budget for the services shown was largely due 
to schemes which did not progress as quickly as anticipated and will now be carried out in 2018/19.  

 

Page 30



P A G E  | 7 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NARRATIVE REPORT 

 

Capital Expenditure 

Approved Budget 

2017/18 

£M 

Actual 

2017/18 

£M 

 

Variance 

£M 

Regeneration and Planning Policy    

Burnley Vision Park 3.3 3.1 0.2 

Land at Grove Lane; NW Burnley Growth Corridor 1.4 1.4 - 

Weavers Triangle – Starter Homes 0.4 0.3 0.1 

Other 0.3 0.2 0.1 

Housing    

Disabled Facilities Renovations 1.4 1.4 - 

Empty Homes Programme 1.0 0.9 0.1 

Other 0.5 0.5 - 

Streetscene    

Burnley Town Centre Pedestrianisation Upgrade 0.6 0.6 - 

Other 0.1 0.1 - 

Facilities Management    

Padiham Town Hall  - Flood Works 0.5 0.4 0.1 

Contribution to Shopping Centre Redevelopment 0.4 - 0.4 

Other 0.2 0.2 - 

Green Spaces and Amenities    

Thompson Park – Restoration Project 0.7 0.4 0.3 

Other 0.3 0.2 0.1 

Chief Executive    

Ward Opportunities Fund 0.3 0.3 - 

Total Capital Expenditure 11.4 10.0 1.4 

BORROWING 
The total amount outstanding as at 31 March 2018 on long-term loans borrowed from the Public Works 
Loan Board (PWLB) to finance capital expenditure was £23.1m. In addition there was at this date £1m of 
short-term PWLB loans borrowing. The sources of borrowing totalling £24.1m are identified in note 12f, 
and an analysis of the periods to repayment shown in note 31c to the core financial statements. This 
borrowing should be seen in the context of the total value of the Council’s long-term assets which is 
shown in the balance sheet at £94.4m. The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities 
regulates local authority borrowing and gives freedom to councils to borrow as long as the revenue 
costs are capable of being met in the opinion of the Chief Financial Officer and are in keeping with 
prudential indicators and guidelines.  

 

 

 

Page 31



P A G E  | 8 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NARRATIVE REPORT 

 

PENSIONS COSTS 
The requirements of international accounting regulations (IAS19) in relation to post-employment 
benefits, i.e. pensions, have been fully incorporated into the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement with actuarial gains and losses being recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure, as Note 29 explains in detail. 

A pensions reserve and a pensions liability are incorporated within the Council’s accounts reflecting the 
amount by which the Burnley element of the Lancashire County Council pension fund is under-funded 
compared with the assessed payment liabilities to pensioners now and in the future. 

There are also entries in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movement in 
Reserves Statement to show the pensions benefits earned in the year. All of these pensions costs entries 
do not however affect the amount calculated as being due from taxpayers through Council Tax. The 
overall pensions liability of the Council as at 31 March 2018 was £57.995m (£65.061m as at 31 March 
2017). This decrease of £7.066m is primarily as a result of a positive revaluation (£7.879m) by the Fund 
actuaries of the pension liability and plan assets. More information on the assumptions used by the 
actuaries can be found at Note 29f. 

Pension costs and liabilities for employees transferred to our strategic partner are now incurred by 
Liberata plc. Any liabilities accumulated prior to transfer will remain with the Council.  

ORGANISATIONAL PERFORMANCE 
Burnley Council’s corporate scorecard demonstrates that organisational performance has remained 
strong during the last 12 months.  

Contact centre responsiveness, as measured by telephone calls answered within target time, met the 
target of 80% in 2017/18. In partnership with Liberata plc, the Council’s contact centre service delivery 
partner, a strategy to digitise services will improve responsiveness to customers in the years ahead.  
 
Processing times for planning applications and benefits are on average faster compared to the district 
council average in the northwest. 
 

Growing the local economy is a key priority for the Council. The Council’s business growth programme 
has now been in operation for 5 years. The table below shows its achievements in 2017/18. 
 

Measure Target Result 

BOOST Lancashire Programme – number of businesses 
referred for further support; number of businesses 
supported via Growth Mentoring support; and number of 
businesses benefitting from High Growth Start-Up Support 
 

75 121 

Private sector investment levered through inward 
investment service and business support programmes 
 

£53.0m £51.3m 

Actual jobs created / safeguarded through current 
business support programmes 
 

65 jobs to be created; 
25 jobs to be safeguarded 

129 jobs created; 
68.5 jobs safeguarded 

Secured jobs created / safeguarded / relocated through 
the inward investment service 
 

450 jobs to be created; 
560 jobs to be 

safeguarded / relocated 
 

451 jobs created; 
 588.5 jobs safeguarded 

Number of business relocation assists (including 
expansions) 
 

15 13 

Page 32



P A G E  | 9 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NARRATIVE REPORT 

 

 The Council also surveys local residents each year to understand local priorities and levels of 
satisfaction with services. The last survey was completed in autumn 2017 and the headline findings 
were: 

 The local countryside and green spaces, transport links and good neighbours are considered to 
be the best things about living in Burnley. 

 Litter and dog fouling is perceived to be the biggest problem. In response to this, the Council is 
seeking to enter into a partnership with an environmental enforcement agency to increase the 
number of fines issued. 

 74% of residents were satisfied with household refuse collection. 

 84% were satisfied with parks and open spaces.  

 60% were satisfied with sport and leisure facilities. Of those that use these facilities at least once 
a week, this increased to 82%. 

 Of those citizens that have recently contacted the Council, 59% of respondents were satisfied 
with the overall customer service experience.  

STRATEGIC RISKS 
The Council operates a risk management process at corporate and operational levels. The aim of this is 
to monitor and manage risk to attainment of corporate and operational objectives. Action is taken to 
manage these and a recursive process is undertaken to review the impact and deliberate on what if any 
further progress needs to be made.  

The Council’s risk management process has identified several strategic risks to the delivery of services by 
the Council. The highest risk concerns financial stability. Loss of funding from income or Central 
Government and external cost pressures combine to impact on the Council’s finances. To manage this 
risk we have taken steps to change how services are delivered (such as partnership working) and keep 
these elements monitored to identify action at an early stage. Service levels are not intended to be 
lowered despite costing less to deliver. Close monitoring arrangements and client-contractor dialogue is 
maintained at various levels of the partnership i.e. corporate, operational and specific projects. 

The Council’s position is dependent on decisions taken in other organisations, such as Central 
Government or regional partnerships. The risk is that these decisions do not take Burnley into account 
and adversely impact on the Council’s services and ability to deliver. The Council seeks to be involved in 
partnerships to further encourage educational attainment, economic development and built 
environment of the borough. Furthermore the Council engages with Central Government decision 
makers to raise awareness of the impact of Government policies and where appropriate seek to lobby 
decisions for the benefit of residents and businesses. 

Identification and preparation for new risks is part of strategic risk management. The implementation of 
the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) in May 2018 has required the Council to review and 
change its information governance processes and increase accountability and transparency on personal 
data privacy. The Council has considered and followed the Information Commissioner’s Office advice in 
its approach and will continue to maintain an appropriate level of technical and operational measures so 
that data subjects maintain confidence in transacting with the Council through digital pathways. 

CURRENT ECONOMIC CONDITIONS 
Following strong growth in the UK economy in 2016, growth was surprisingly weak in the first half of 
2017 (the slowest first half of any year since 2012) before picking up slightly in the second half of the 
year. The main reason for the weakening economy was the sharp increase in inflation, caused by the 
devaluation of sterling after the EU referendum, feeding increases into the cost of imports. This has, in 
turn, caused a reduction in consumer disposable income and spending power.  

Page 33



P A G E  | 10 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NARRATIVE REPORT 

 

In September 2017, the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee signalled that interest rates 
would need to rise, and, in November, with CPI inflation peaking at 3.1%, the Bank Rate increased from 
0.25% to 0.5%. The Bank also indicated that there were likely to be perhaps two more increases by 
2020.  

Any increase in interest rates will provide additional income through interest earned on investments 
and cash surpluses held by the Council. This would assist in funding the cost of services provided by the 
Council, but the impact is likely to be modest as rate increases are likely to be small and gradual.    

Any benefit from increases in interest rates will, however, be more than offset by continued pressure on 
income from fees and charges due to the reduction in consumer spending power, by increased costs of 
delivering services, due to relatively high inflation and increasing demand, and the continuing reductions 
in Government funding.  

The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/22 takes all known factors which affect the finances 
of the Council, including those set out above, into account but there are also significant uncertainties, 
not least of which are the impact of the UK leaving the European Union and the forthcoming Local 
Government Funding Reform and Spending Review which will affect funding available to the sector. The 
strategy highlights a continuation of financial pressures with the Council having to find further 
significant savings for the foreseeable future. Savings will be delivered through strategic prioritisation to 
protect key services, service transformation, continuous improvement and an increasingly commercial 
approach.  

Against this background the Council has approved a balanced budget for 2018/19 and is pro-actively 
considering measures to address forecast budget gaps in future years.  

Despite these considerable financial challenges, the Council continues to take forward initiatives 
designed to revitalise the local economy and promote growth and prosperity. Complementing a range of 
high profile regeneration initiatives in recent years, the Council has recently approved entering into an 
agreement for the development of a leisure and retail scheme in the town centre on the former Pioneer 
site in Curzon Street, which would include a cinema, restaurants, a public plaza, shops and car park.    

A key focus for the authority is to grow the local economy and attract investment into the borough. The 
creation of 'Vision Park' incorporating modern units for hi-tech digital and manufacturing businesses 
provides an opportunity to bring high quality jobs into Burnley. The Council works closely with private 
sector partners, including local businesses through the Burnley Bondholders Scheme, to promote 
growth and create jobs in the borough in a challenging economic climate.  

The Council is also working with key strategic partners, including the University of Central Lancashire 
(UCLAN) and East Lancashire NHS trusts, to support expansion plans and facilitate their ambitions for 
Burnley to be a 'University Town'. 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The accounting policies adopted by the Council are explained later in the Statement of Accounts and 
follow the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18. There has 
been no major impact to finances as a result of any change to accounting policy.  

 

 

 Page 34



P A G E  | 11 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NARRATIVE REPORT 

 

FURTHER INFORMATION 
Further information about the Statement of Accounts is available from the Head of Finance and 
Property, Town Hall, Manchester Road, Burnley, BB11 9SA.  In addition, members of the public have the 
statutory right to inspect the Statement of Accounts and supporting documents at certain times prior to 
the audit being completed.  For 2017/18 this right is to be exercised for 30 working days beginning 29 
May 2018. Residents of the Borough who are Council Tax payers may register any objection to the 
accounts in writing to the External Auditor. The Council also presents a number of other key documents 
throughout the year which would complement the Statement of Accounts. Some of these are listed 
below: 

Key documents (All of the documents listed below can be accessed searching www.burnley.gov.uk) 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) and Strategic Risk Register 

Considers the medium term financial outlook, highlighting uncertainties, and 
underlying risk and makes recommendations to mitigate any risks. 

Capital Budget (establishing and 
monitoring) 

Sets out the capital budget for the new year and monitoring reports review the 
progress on the current year budget. 

Revenue Budget (establishing and 
monitoring) 

Sets out the revenue budget for the new year and monitoring reports review the 
progress on the current year budget. 

Annual Governance Statement Statutory document produced annually after reviewing governance and internal 
control aspects of the Council. 

Code of Corporate Governance Explains how the Council will carry out its functions in a way that demonstrates 
accountability, effectiveness, integrity and inclusivity. 

Strategic Plan Describes the Council’s priorities and vision for the future. 

EXTERNAL AUDIT 
Grant Thornton have been appointed with the responsibility for the external audit of the Council’s 
accounts. The Auditor's Report & Opinion is contained within the Statement of Accounts. The name and 
address of the Council's External Auditor is: 

Mark Heap 
Engagement Lead 
Grant Thornton UK LLP 

4 Hardman Square  
Spinningfields  
Manchester 
M3 3EB

Page 35



P A G E  | 12 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES  
THE AUTHORITY'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
The Authority is required: 

 To make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that 

one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs – the statutory 

Chief Financial Officer. In this Authority that officer is the Head of Finance and Property. 

 To manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard 

its assets. 

 To approve the Statement of Accounts. 

THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
As Chief Financial Officer, I am responsible for the preparation of the Authority's Statement of Accounts 
in accordance with proper practices as set out in CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 ("the Code"). 

In preparing this statement I have: 

 Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 

 Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; 

 Complied with the Code; 

I have also: 

 Kept proper accounting records which were up to date. 

 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of Burnley 
Borough Council at 31 March 2018 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended, including 
any known post balance sheet events at 19 July 2018. 

 

Asad Mushtaq 
 
Head of Finance and Property 
Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer) 
 
19 July 2018   
 

Page 36



P A G E  | 13 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE 
MEMBERS OF BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL  
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

OPINION 
We have audited the financial statements of Burnley Borough Council (the “Authority”) for the year ended 31 
March 2018 which comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements, the Movement in Reserves 
Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund Statement, notes to the financial 
statements and Accounting Policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 
is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 
2017/18. 
 
In our opinion the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2018 and of its 
expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

 have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 
accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

BASIS FOR OPINION 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s 
Ethical Standard, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

WHO WE ARE REPORTING TO 
This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and 
Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so 
that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s 
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority’s members as a body, for our audit work, for 
this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you 
where: 

 the Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer)’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or 

 the Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer) has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified 
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue to adopt 
the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the 
financial statements are authorised for issue. 

OTHER INFORMATION 
The Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer) is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts set out on pages 17-90, the Narrative Report, 
and the Annual Governance Statement other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our 
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise 
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

Page 37



P A G E  | 14 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 

 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge of the Authority obtained in the course of our work including that gained through work in relation to 
the Authority’s arrangements for securing value for money through economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the 
use of its resources or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies 
or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in 
the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. 
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 

OTHER INFORMATION WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT ON BY EXCEPTION UNDER THE CODE OF AUDIT 
PRACTICE 
Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor 
General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does 
not comply with the ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)’ published by CIPFA 
and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are 
not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks 
are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls. 
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER REQUIRED BY THE CODE OF AUDIT PRACTICE 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our 
knowledge of the Authority gained through our work in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, the other information published together with the 
financial statements in the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement, 
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 

MATTERS ON WHICH ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION 
Under the Code of Audit Practice we are required to report to you if: 

 we have reported a matter in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

 we have made a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

 we have exercised any other special powers of the auditor under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUTHORITY, THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (SECTION 1151 OFFICER) AND 
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities set on page 12, the Authority is required to make 
arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the 
responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Chief Financial Officer 
(Section 151 Officer). The Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer) is responsible for the preparation of the 
Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in 
the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18, which give a 
true and fair view, and for such internal controls as the Chief Financial Officer determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer) is responsible for assessing 
the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Authority lacks funding for its continued existence or 
when policy decisions have been made that affect the services provided by the Authority. 
 
The Audit and Standards Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Page 38



P A G E  | 15 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 

 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorresponsibilities. This description forms part of our 
auditor’s report. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS – CONCLUSION ON THE AUTHORITY’S 
ARRANGEMENTS FOR SECURING ECONOMY, EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS IN ITS USE OF RESOURCES 

CONCLUSION 
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and 
Auditor General in November 2017, we are satisfied that the Authority put in place proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2018. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUTHORITY 
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing the economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the 
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE REVIEW OF THE AUTHORITY’S ARRANGEMENTS FOR SECURING 
ECONOMY, EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS IN ITS USE OF RESOURCES 
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the 
Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively. 
 
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on 
the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Audit General in November 2017, as to whether in all 
significant respects the Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and 
deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller 
and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit 
Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2018. 
 
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook 
suck work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS - CERTIFICATE 
We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Authority in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 

 
 
 

Mark Heap 
For and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor 

 
4 Hardman Square, Spinningfields, Manchester, M3 3EB 
 
19 July 2018  Page 39

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorresponsibilities


P A G E  | 16 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 

 
 

Page 40



P A G E  | 17 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Core Financial Statements 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

CO MPREHENSIVE INCO ME AND EXPENDITURE 

STATEMENT Note

Gross

Expend

£000s

Income

£000s

Net

Expend

£000s

2Gross

Expend

£000s

3 Income

£000s

4Net

Expend

£000s

Continuing Serv ices

Management Team           470                  -             470           440                  -             440 

Sport & Culture Leisure Client       2,137           (239)         1,898       1,905           (243)         1,662 

Green Spaces & Amenities       3,805        (2,084)         1,721       4,013        (2,269)         1,744 

Streetscene       5,334        (2,272)         3,062       5,246        (2,446)         2,800 

Housing & Development Control       3,473        (1,106)         2,367       4,142        (1,325)         2,817 

Regeneration & Planning Policy       2,741        (1,016)         1,725       3,095        (1,144)         1,951 

Strategic Partnership Client       4,244           (682)         3,562       4,281           (676)         3,605 

Community, Performance & Policy       1,047           (488)             559       1,038           (373)             665 

Revenues & Benefits     33,871     (35,303)        (1,432)     30,920     (32,427)        (1,507)

Governance, Law, Property & Regulation       4,296        (2,697)         1,599       2,639        (2,439)             200 

People & Development           274                  -             274           340                  -             340 

Finance           867                (1)             866           923                (8)             915 

Corporate Income & Expenditure           794             (32)             762       1,431             (28)         1,403 

Cost of Serv ices  63 ,353  (45 ,920)    17 ,433   60 ,413   (43 ,378)    17 ,035  

O ther O perating Expenditure & Income

Parish Council Precepts             74                  -               74             93                  -               93 

Pension Fund administration costs             31                  -               31             30                  -               30 

(Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non current assets           740           (733)                 7           778           (778)                  - 
Other Income                -           (388)           (388)                -           (478)           (478)

      845     (1 ,121)       (276)       901     (1 ,256)       (355)

Financ ing and Investments

Pensions interest cost and expected return on pension       6,151        (4,121)         2,030       4,926        (3,423)         1,503 

Interest payable and similar charges           887                  -             887           931                  -             931 

Interest receivable and similar income                -           (178)           (178)                -           (317)           (317)

Investment and deposit (gains)/ losses                -           (273)           (273)                -           (108)           (108)

Income & expenditure in relation to investment properties          11           956             (63)             893       1,003             (57)             946 

   7 ,994     (4 ,635)      3 ,359     6 ,860     (3 ,905)      2 ,955  

Taxation and Non-Spec if ic  Grants

Council Tax Income                -        (6,364)        (6,364)                -        (6,550)        (6,550)

Non-Domestic Rates Income and Expenditure                -        (6,734)        (6,734)           835        (4,634)        (3,799)

Revenue Support Grant 25                -        (3,660)        (3,660)                -        (2,777)        (2,777)

Non-Ringfenced government grants 25                -        (2,307)        (2,307)                -        (2,089)        (2,089)

Capital grants and contributions 25                -        (2,483)        (2,483)                -        (3,740)        (3,740)

           -   (21 ,548)  (21 ,548)       835   (19 ,790)  (18 ,955)

(Surplus) /  Defic it on Provision of Serv ices  72 ,192  (73 ,224)    (1 ,032)  69 ,009  (68 ,329)         680  

(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of property, plant and 

equipment assets 9         2,203             861 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / (asset) 29a         4,921        (7,879)

O ther Comprehensive ( Income) /  Expenditure      7 ,124     (7 ,018)

Total  Comprehensive ( Income) /  Expenditure      6 ,092     (6 ,338)

31  March 2017 31 March 2018

 Page 41



P A G E  | 18 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 

General  

Fund

£000s

Earmarked 

Reserves

£000s

Total  General  

Fund Balance

£000s

Capital  

Receipts 

Reserve

£000s

Capital  

Grants 

Unapplied

£000s

Total  Usable 

Reserves

£000s

Unusable 

Reserves

£000s

Total  

Authority  

Reserves

£000s

Balance at 31  March 2016 1,379       6 ,973          8 ,352          3 ,788       482            12 ,622             6 ,299         18 ,921       

Movement in Reserves during 2016/17

Surplus/(deficit) on the Provision of Services 1,032           -                         1 ,032          -                    -                       1 ,032               -                       1 ,032         

Other Comprehensive Income & Expenditure -                    -                         -                  -                    -                       -                       (7,124)            (7 ,124)        

Total  Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 1,032       -                  1 ,032          -              -                 1 ,032               (7 ,124)       (6 ,092)        

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding 

basis under regulations (Note 7) 27                 -                         27               (295)             406                 138                  (138)                -                 

Net increase/(decrease) before transfers to 

Reserves 1,059       -                  1 ,059          (295)        406            1 ,170               (7 ,262)       (6 ,092)        

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves (Note 8) (1,059)          1,059                -                  -                    -                       -                       -                       -                 

Increase/(decrease) in  year -              1 ,059          1 ,059          (295)        406            1 ,170               (7 ,262)       (6 ,092)        

Balance at 31  March 2017 1,379       8 ,032          9 ,411          3 ,493       888            13 ,792             (963)          12 ,829       

Movement in Reserves during 2017/18

Surplus/(deficit) on the Provision of Services (680)             -                         (680)            -                    -                       (680)                 -                       (680)           

Other Comprehensive Income & Expenditure -                    -                         -                  -                    -                       -                       7,018              7 ,018         

Total  Comprehensive Income & Expenditure (680)        -                  (680)            -              -                 (680)                 7 ,018         6 ,338         

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding 

basis under regulations (Note 7) (574)             -                         (574)            301              244                 (29)                   29                   -                 

Net increase/(decrease) before transfers to 

Reserves (1 ,254)     -                  (1 ,254)         301          244            (709)                 7 ,047         6 ,338         
Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves (Note 8) 1,254           (1,254)               -                  -                    -                       -                       -                       -                 

Increase/(decrease) in  year -              (1 ,254)         (1 ,254)         301          244            (709)                 7 ,047         6 ,338         

Balance at 31  March 2018 1,379       6 ,778          8 ,157          3 ,794       1 ,132         13 ,083             6 ,084         19 ,167         

P
age 42



P A G E  | 19 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

BALANCE SHEET 
 

BALANCE SHEET Note

31st March 

2017

£000s

31st March 

2018

£000s

Property, Plant & Equipment 9 47,359              48,572              

Heritage Assets 10 32,751              32,751              

Investment Properties 11 11,698              11,806              

Intangible Assets 12                      -                         

Long-term Debtors 12d 1,243                1,232                

Long-term Assets 93,063        94 ,361        

Short-term Investments & Deposits 12c 2,000                6,000                

Inventories 28                      28                      

Short-term Debtors 13 3,663                4,231                

Cash & Cash Equivalents 14 12,750              6,446                

Current Assets 18,441        16 ,705        

Short-term Borrowing 12e (1,029)               (1,062)               

Short-term Creditors 15 (8,684)               (8,325)               

Current Provisions 16 (2,818)               (3,229)               

Grants Receipts in Advance - Capital 25b (571)                  -                         

Current Liabi l ities                            (13 ,102)       (12 ,616)       

Long-term Borrowing 12a (19,587)            (23,072)            

Long-term Provisions 16 (640)                  (653)                  

Net Pensions Liability 29e (65,061)            (55,263)            

Other Long-term Liabilities (96)                    (65)                    

Grants Receipts in Advance - Capital 25c (189)                  (230)                  

Long- term Liabi l ities (85,573)       (79 ,283)       

Net Assets 12,829        19 ,167        

Represented by:

Usable Reserves 17

General Fund 1,379                1,379                

Earmarked Reserves 8 & 17a 8,032                6,778                

Capital Receipts Reserve 17b 3,493                3,794                

Capital Grants Unapplied 17c 888                   1,132                

13 ,792        13 ,083        

Unusable Reserves 18

Revaluation Reserve 18a 49,467              47,773              

Capital Adjustment Account 18b 13,791              15,124              

Pension Reserve 18c (65,061)            (57,995)            

Deferred Capital Receipts 18d 623                   629                   

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 18e 268                   603                   

Accumulated Absences Account 18f (51)                    (50)                    

(963)            6 ,084          

Total  Reserves 12,829        19 ,167         
 

 
 

Asad Mushtaq 

 
Head of Finance and Property 
Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer) 

Page 43



P A G E  | 20 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

 

CASH FLO W STATEMENT Note

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s

Net surplus / (deficit) on the provision of services 1,032           (680)             

Adjust net (surplus) / deficit on the provision of 

services for non-cash movements 19a 4,669           (385)             

Adjust for items in net (surplus) / deficit on the 

provision of services that are investing or financing 

activities 19b (12,327)        (7,337)          

Net cash inflows from operating activ ities (6 ,626)      (8 ,402)      

Investing activities 20 6,976           (3,859)          

Financing activities 21 8,799           5,957           

Net increase or (decrease) in  cash and cash 

equivalents 9 ,149       (6 ,304)      
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the 

reporting period 3,601           12,750         

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the 

reporting period 12,750     6 ,446        

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 44



P A G E  | 21 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



P A G E  | 22 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Notes to Core Financial Statements 

 

NOTE            PAGE 
1 Accounting Standards issued, not adopted 23 
2 Critical judgments in applying accounting policies  23 
3 Events after the reporting period  24  
4 Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of    
 estimation uncertainty  24 
5 Expenditure and Funding Analysis  26 
6 Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature  28   
7 Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under    
 regulation  29 
8 Movements in Earmarked Reserves  32 
9 Property, Plant & Equipment  34 
10 Heritage Assets  36 
11 Investment Properties  37  
12 Financial Instruments  38 
13 Short-Term Debtors  41 
14 Cash and Cash Equivalents  41 
15 Short-Term Creditors  42 
16 Provisions  42 
17 Usable Reserves  44 
18 Unusable Reserves  45 
19 Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities  49 
20 Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities  49 
21 Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities  50 
22 Members’ Allowances  50 
23 Officers’ Remuneration  51 
24 External Audit Costs  52 
25 Grant Income & Grants Received in Advance  53 
26 Related Parties  55 
27 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing  58 
28 Leases  59 
29 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes  60 
30 Contingent Liabilities  67 
31 Nature and Extent of Risks arising from Financial Instruments  67 
 
  
  
 
  

Page 46



P A G E  | 23 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 1  Accounting Standards Issued, Not Adopted 
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires the 
disclosure of information relating to the expected impact of an accounting change that will be required 
by a new accounting standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. 
There are a number of amendments to the Code for 2018/19 including reporting on the classification 
and measurement of financial assets (IFRS 9) and the accounting treatment and reporting of revenue 
from contracts with customers (IFRS 15). 
The Council is currently considering the possibility of investing in a Property Investment Fund which may 
fall under the requirements of IFRS 9, however the nature and scale of the Council’s involvement, if any, 
is not yet decided and it is therefore too early to be specific about the impact on the Statement of 
Accounts in future years. It is not expected that the change relating to revenue from contracts with 
customers (IFRS 15) will have a material effect on the Council’s Statement of Accounts. 
The Code requires implementation of both IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 from 1 April 2018 and there is therefore 
no impact on the 2017/18 Statement of Accounts.    
 

Note 2  Critical judgements in applying accounting 
policies 

        The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Council 
that have the most significant effect on the financial statements. Critical estimation uncertainties are 
described in Note 4. 

ARRANGEMENTS THAT CONTAIN A LEASE – IMPLIED LEASING 

In applying the classification of implied leasing the Council has assessed its outsourced contract with 
Urbaser Limited. The contract with the partner has been considered to be an operating lease. 

FUNDING 
There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. However, the 
Council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets 
of the Council might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service 
provision. 

GROUP BOUNDARIES 
The group boundaries have been estimated using the criteria associated with the Code. In line with the 
Code, the Council has not identified any companies within the group boundary that would require it to 
complete Group Accounts on grounds of materiality. 

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
Investment properties have been estimated using the identifiable criteria under IFRS of being held for 
rental income or for capital appreciation. These properties have been assessed using these criteria, 
which is subject to interpretation. 

LEASES 
The Council has examined its leases, and classified them as either operating or finance leases. In some 
cases the lease transaction is not always conclusive and the Council uses judgements in determining 
whether the lease is a finance lease arrangement that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership. In reassessing the lease the Council has estimated the implied interest rate 
within the lease to calculate interest and principal payments. 

 

 Page 47



P A G E  | 24 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

COMPONENTISATION LIMITS 
Componentisation limits have been set at a minimum value of £100k as it is believed that the effect of 
different asset lives on items valued at less than this would be trivial to the accounts   (see Accounting 
Policies XVII Property, Plant and Equipment - Depreciation). 
 

Note 3  Events after the reporting period 
The Statement of Accounts was certified by the Head of Finance and Property on 19 July 2018. Events 
taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statement or notes.  Where events taking 
place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2018, the figures in 
the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of 
this information. 

 

Note 4  Assumptions made about the future and other 
major sources of estimation uncertainty 

BUSINESS RATES 
Since the introduction of the Business Rates Retention scheme, effective from 1 April 2013, local 
authorities are liable for successful appeals against business rates charged to businesses in 2017/18 and 
earlier financial years in their proportionate share. Therefore, a provision has been recognised for the 
best estimate of the amount that businesses have been overcharged up to 31 March 2018. The estimate 
has been calculated using the latest Valuation Office Agency (VOA) ratings list of appeals and the 
analysis of successful appeals to date when providing the estimate of total provision up to and including 
31 March 2018. The balance of business rate appeals provision held by the Council at this date 
amounted to £2.642m, which is a decrease of £0.046m from the previous year. 

DEBT IMPAIRMENT 
At 31 March 2018 the Council has a balance of short-term debtors of £8.179m as per Note 13. A review 
of significant balances suggested that an impairment allowance for doubtful debts of £3.948m was 
appropriate. This is an increase of £0.189m from 31 March 2017 as per the table in Note 13b. However, 
in the current climate it is not certain such an allowance would be sufficient. If collection rates were to 
deteriorate an increase in the amount of the impairment allowance for doubtful debts would be 
required. 

PENSIONS 
The estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating 
to the discounts used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, 
mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to 
provide the Council with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. 

During 2017/18 the Council’s actuaries advised that the net liability had decreased by £7.066m due to 
the re-measurement of assets and liabilities. The previous year had seen an increase of £5.659m. 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT – (FUNDING IMPLICATIONS) 
Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level of repairs 
and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets. The current economic climate 
makes it uncertain that the Council will be able to sustain its current spending on repairs and 
maintenance bringing into doubt the useful lives assigned to assets. If the useful life of assets is reduced, 
depreciation increases and the carrying amount of the assets falls. It is estimated that the annual 
depreciation charge for buildings would increase in these circumstances.  Page 48



P A G E  | 25 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

If funding streams were reduced, in so far that it results in the reduction of service delivery or closure of 
facilities, this could result in the impairment of assets due to obsolescence. However, the Council has 
determined that the level of uncertainty at this time is not sufficient to indicate this course of action. 

The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2018 for which there is a significant risk of material 
adjustment in the forthcoming financial year 2018/19 are as follows: 

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that 
are dependent on assumptions about the 
level of repairs and maintenance that will be 
incurred in relation to individual assets.  The 
current economic climate makes it uncertain 
that the Council will be able to sustain its 
current spending on repairs and 
maintenance, bringing into doubt the useful 
lives assigned to assets. 

If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation 
increases and the carrying amount of the assets 
falls. It is estimated that for every year that useful 
lives were reduced the annual depreciation 
charge would increase as follows:  

Buildings & infrastructure £119k 

Vehicles & equipment £119k 

 

Pensions Liability Estimation of the net liability to pay 
pensions depends on a number of complex 
judgements relating to the discount rate 
used, the rate at which salaries are 
projected to increase, changes in retirement 
ages, mortality rates and expected returns 
on pension fund assets.  A firm of consulting 
actuaries is engaged to provide the Council 
with expert advice about the assumptions to 
be applied. 

The effects on the net pension liability of changes 
in individual assumptions have been included in 
detail within Note 29.   

Any change in the uncertainties listed opposite 
would lead to a significant change in the 
estimated pensions liability reported. 

Business Rates Appeals The introduction of the Business Rates 
Retention scheme in 2013/14 means that 
the Council now bears part of the risk for 
business rates appeals as it retains 40% of all 
income collected. Previously the 
Government would have borne the full cost 
of any successful appeals. As at the end of 
March 2018, 161 appeals remain 
outstanding with the Valuation Office 
Agency. As stated on the previous page, 
provision has been made for the estimated 
success of future appeals for losses of 
income for the period to the end of March. 

If the estimated success rate of appeals increased 
in monetary value by 10%, then this would 
require the Council to increase the provision for 
appeals by £264k. 

Arrears Each year the Council reviews the significant 
balances for Council Tax, Business Rates and 
sundry debtor arrears.  Officers estimate the 
potential impairment of those debts based 
on historical default experience, and the age 
of the debts.  However, in the current 
economic climate it is not certain that such 
an allowance would be sufficient. 

If collection rates were to deteriorate, a doubling 
of the amount of the impairment of doubtful 
debts would require an additional £746k for 
Council Tax debts, £546k for business rates and 
£213k for sundry debts to be set aside as an 
allowance. 

Page 49



P A G E  | 26 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 5 Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

Table a - EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

Net Expenditure 

chargeable to 

the General  Fund 

Balance

£000s

Adjustments 

between the 

Funding and 

Accounting Basis

£000s

Net Expenditure 

in the 

Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement

£000s

2Net Expenditure 

chargeable to 

the General  Fund 

Balance

£000s

3Adjustments 

between the 

Funding and 

Accounting Basis

£000s

4Net Expenditure 

in the 

Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement

£000s

Continuing Serv ices

Management Team 471                   (1)                              470                          426                   14                             440                          

Sport & Culture Leisure Client 746                   1,152                       1,898                       587                   1,075                       1,662                       

Green Spaces & Amenities 1 ,096                625                          1,721                       1 ,006                738                          1,744                       

Streetscene 2,740                322                          3,062                       2 ,478                322                          2,800                       

Housing & Development Control 380                   1,987                       2,367                       337                   2,480                       2,817                       

Regeneration & Planning Policy 947                   778                          1,725                       1 ,149                802                          1,951                       

Strategic Partnership Client 3 ,562                -                                3,562                       3 ,605                -                                3,605                       

Community, Performance & Policy 478                   81                             559                          561                   104                          665                          

Revenues & Benefits (1 ,432)              -                                (1,432)                      (1 ,507)              -                                (1,507)                      

Governance, Law, Property & Regulation (354)                 1,953                       1,599                       (514)                 714                          200                          

People & Development 274                   -                                274                          333                   7                               340                          

Finance 867                   (1)                              866                          892                   23                             915                          
Corporate Income & Expenditure 2,061                (1,299)                      762                          2 ,387                (984)                         1,403                       

Net Cost of Serv ices 11,836              5 ,597                17 ,433              11 ,740              5 ,295                17 ,035              

Other Operating Income and Expenditure 2,667                (2,943)                      (276)                         1 ,580                (1,935)                      (355)                         

Financing and Investments Income and Expenditure 1,602                1,757                       3,359                       1 ,560                1,395                       2,955                       
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure (16,105)            (5,443)                      (21,548)                   (14 ,880)            (4,075)                      (18,955)                   

Other Income and Expenditure (11,836)            (6 ,629)              (18 ,465)            (11 ,740)            (4 ,615)              (16 ,355)            

(Surplus) or Defic it on Provision of Serv ices -                       (1 ,032)              (1 ,032)              -                       680                   680                   

Opening General Fund Balance 1,379                       1,379                       
Less/Plus (Surplus) or Deficit on General Fund Balance in Year -                       -                       

Closing General Fund Balance at 31 March 1,379                1 ,379                

2016/17 2017/18

 
 

P
age 50



P A G E  | 27 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Table b - EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS - 

Adjustments from the General  Fund to arrive at the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

amounts

Adjustments 

for Capital  

Purposes

£000s

Net Change 

for Pensions 

Adjustments

£000s

Other 

Differences

£000s T
o

ta
l 

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

£
0

0
0

s

2Adjustments 

for Capital  

Purposes

£000s

3Net Change 

for Pensions 

Adjustments

£000s

4Other 

Differences

£000s T
o

ta
l 

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

£
0

0
0

s 
5

Continuing Serv ices

Management Team -                           (1)                        -                      (1 )            -                           12                       2                     14           

Sport & Culture Leisure Client 1,152                  -                           -                      1 ,152      1,075                  -                           -                      1 ,075      

Green Spaces & Amenities 632                     (3)                        (4)                    625         678                     61                       (1)                    738         

Streetscene 328                     (2)                        (4)                    322         286                     37                       (1)                    322         

Housing & Development Control 1,993                  (2)                        (4)                    1 ,987      2,433                  46                       1                     2 ,480      

Regeneration & Planning Policy 779                     (2)                        1                     778         762                     40                       -                      802         

Community, Performance & Policy 80                        -                           1                     81           87                        17                       -                      104         

Governance, Law, Property & Regulation 1,955                  (1)                        (1)                    1 ,953      683                     31                       -                      714         

People & Development -                           -                           -                      -              -                           7                          -                      7             

Finance -                           (1)                        -                      (1 )            -                           24                       (1)                    23           
Corporate Income & Expenditure 12                        (1,311)                -                      (1 ,299)     12                        (996)                    -                      (984)        

Net Cost of Serv ices 6 ,931            (1 ,323)          (11)            5 ,597      6 ,016            (721)             -                5 ,295      

Other Income and Expenditure (382)                    31                       (2,592)            (2 ,943)     (475)                    30                       (1,490)            (1 ,935)     

Financing and Investments Income and Expenditure (273)                    2,030                  -                      1 ,757      (108)                    1,503                  -                      1 ,395      
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure (2,482)                 -                           (2,961)            (5 ,443)     (3,740)                 -                           (335)               (4 ,075)     

Other Income and Expenditure (3 ,137)           2 ,061            (5 ,553)       (6 ,629)     (4 ,323)           1 ,533            (1 ,825)       (4 ,615)     

Difference between (Surplus) or Defic it and the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Surplus) or 

Defic it on the Provision of Serv ices 3 ,794            738               (5 ,564)       (1 ,032)     1 ,693            812               (1 ,825)       680         

2017/182016/17

 

P
age 51



P A G E  | 28 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 

Table c  - Inc ome rec eived on a 

segmental  basis

2016/17

Inc ome 

from 

Serv ic es

£000s

2017/18

Inc ome 

from 

Serv ic es

£000s

Serv ic es

Sport & Culture Leisure Client (239)            (243)            

Green Spaces & Amenities (2,084)         (2,269)         

Streetscene (2,272)         (2,446)         

Housing & Development Control (1,106)         (1,325)         

Regeneration & Planning Policy (1,016)         (1,144)         

Strategic Partnership Client (682)            (676)            

Community, Performance & Policy (488)            (373)            

Revenues & Benefits (35,303)      (32,427)      

Governance, Law, Property & Regulation (2,697)         (2,439)         

Finance (1)                 (8)                 
Corporate Income & Expenditure (32)              (28)              

Total  inc ome analysed on a segmental  

basis (45 ,920)   (43 ,378)    
 

 

Note 6  Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature  

The Council’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows: 

Expenditure and Inc ome

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s

Expenditure

Employee benefits expenses 11,223      11,280      

Other services expenses 51,798      49,436      

Support service recharges 11,541      11,053      

Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 3,076        2,125        

Interest payments 887           931           

Precepts and levies 74              93              
Gain on the disposal of assets 7                -                 

Total  expenditure 78,606  74 ,918  

Inc ome

Fees, charges and other service income (8,864)       (9,489)       

Support service recharges (11,541)    (11,053)    

Interest and investment income (178)          (127)          

Income from council tax and non-domestic rates (14,392)    (10,349)    
Government grants and contributions (44,663)    (43,220)    

Total  inc ome (79,638) (74 ,238) 

(Surplus) or Defic it on the Provision of 

Serv ic es (1 ,032)   680        
 

  

Page 52



P A G E  | 29 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure 
recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to arrive at the 
resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future 
capital and revenue expenditure.  
 
The following sets out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made against. 
 

GENERAL FUND 
The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an authority are required to be paid 
and out of which all liabilities of the authority are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules 
might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments 
should impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper 
accounting practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the resources that the Council is 
statutorily empowered to spend on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources that 
the Council is required to recover) at the end of the financial year. 
 

CAPITAL RECEIPTS RESERVE 
The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are 
restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to 
finance historical capital expenditure. The balance of the reserve shows the resources that have yet to 
be applied for these purposes at the year-end. 
 

CAPITAL GRANTS UNAPPLIED 
The Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve holds the grants and contributions received towards capital 
projects for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of the 
monies but which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms 
as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and / or the financial year in which this can 
take place. The Capital Grants Unapplied balance is for Disabled Facilities Grant that has not yet been 
utilised. 

Note 7  Adjustments between Accounting Basis and 
Funding Basis under Regulations 

Page 53



P A G E  | 30 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Table a - Adjustments between accounting basis and 

funding basis under regulations

2016/17 Comparative Figures

Usable 

Reserves

General  

Fund 

Balance

£000s

Usable 

Reserves

Capital  

Receipts 

Reserve

£000s

Usable 

Reserves

Capital  

Grants 

Unapplied

£000s

Movement 

in  Usable 

Reserves

£000s

 

Movement 

in  

Unusable 

Reserves

£000s 

Reversal  of items debited or c redited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 1,705      -               -                  1,705          (1,705)        

Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment 1,633      -               -                  1,633          (1,633)        

Movements in the fair value of investment properties (273)        -               -                  (273)            273             

Amortisation of intangible assets 12           -               -                  12               (12)              

Capital grants and contributions applied (1,379)    -               -                  (1,379)        1,379         

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 4,325      -               -                  4,325          (4,325)        

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale 

as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement 740         -               -                  740             (740)           

Insertion of items not debited or c redited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (780)        -               -                  (780)            780             
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund (754)        -               -                  (754)            754             

Adjustments primari ly  involv ing the Capital  Adjustment 

Account 5 ,229   -           -             5 ,229      (5 ,229)    

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (949)        1,017      -                  68               (68)              
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure (1,312)     -                  (1,312)        1,312         

Adjustments primari ly  involv ing the Capital  Receipts 

Reserve (949)    (295)     -             (1 ,244)    1 ,244     

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (1,847)    -               1,847         -                   -                  
Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the 

Capital Adjustment Account -               -               (1,441)        (1,441)        1,441         

Adjustments primari ly  involv ing the Capital  Grants 

Unapplied Reserve (1 ,847) -           406        (1 ,441)    1 ,441     

Transfer of deferred loan repayments in respect of long-term 

debtors (173)        -               -                  (173)            173             

Adjustments primari ly  involv ing the Deferred Capital  

Receipts Reserve (173)    -           -             (173)       173        

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement 3,544      -               -                  3,544          (3,544)        
Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in the year (2,806)    -               -                  (2,806)        2,806         

Adjustments primari ly  involv ing the Pensions Reserve 738      -           -             738         (738)       

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rating income 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement is different from council tax and non-domestic rating 

income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements (2,961)    -               -                  (2,961)        2,961         

Adjustments primari ly  involv ing the Col lec tion Fund 

Adjustment Account (2 ,961) -           -             (2 ,961)    2 ,961     

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an 

accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the 

year in accordance with statutory requirements (10)          -               -                  (10)              10               

Adjustments primari ly  involv ing the Accumulated 

Absences Account (10)      -           -             (10)         10          

Total  Adjustments 27        (295)     406        138         (138)        Page 54



P A G E  | 31 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Table b - Adjustments between accounting basis and 

funding basis under regulations

2017/18

Usable 

Reserves

General  

Fund 

Balance

£000s

Usable 

Reserves

Capital  

Receipts 

Reserve

£000s

Usable 

Reserves

Capital  

Grants 

Unapplied

£000s

Movement 

in  Usable 

Reserves

£000s

 

Movement 

in  

Unusable 

Reserves

£000s 

Reversal  of items debited or c redited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 1,712      -               -                  1,712          (1,712)        

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 510         -               -                  510             (510)           

Movements in the fair value of Investment Properties (108)        -               -                  (108)            108             

Amortisation of intangible assets 12           -               -                  12               (12)              

Capital grants and contributions applied (2,612)    -               -                  (2,612)        2,612         

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 4,908      -               -                  4,908          (4,908)        

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale 

as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement 778         -               -                  778             (778)           

Insertion of items not debited or c redited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (800)        -               -                  (800)            800             
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund (1,944)    -               -                  (1,944)        1,944         

Adjustments primari ly  involv ing the Capital  Adjustment 

Account 2 ,456   -           -             2 ,456      (2 ,456)    

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (1,159)    1,248      -                  89               (89)              
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure -               (947)        -                  (947)            947             

Adjustments primari ly  involv ing the Capital  Receipts 

Reserve (1 ,159) 301      -             (858)       858        

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (2,253)    -               2,253         -                   -                  
Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the 

Capital Adjustment Account -               -               (2,009)        (2,009)        2,009         

Adjustments primari ly  involv ing the Capital  Grants 

Unapplied Account (2 ,253) -           244        (2 ,009)    2 ,009     
-             

Transfer of deferred loan repayments in respect of long-term 

debtors (95)          -               -                  (95)              95               

Adjustments primari ly  involv ing the Deferred Capital  

Receipts Reserve (95)      -           -             (95)         95          

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement 3,702      -               -                  3,702          (3,702)        
Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in the year (2,889)    -               -                  (2,889)        2,889         

Adjustments primari ly  involv ing the Pensions Reserve 813      -           -             813         (813)       

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rating income 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement is different from council tax and non-domestic rating 

income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements (335)        -               -                  (335)            335             

Adjustments primari ly  involv ing the Col lec tion Fund 

Adjustment Account (335)    -           -             (335)       335        

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an 

accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the 

year in accordance with statutory requirements (1)            -               -                  (1)                1                 

Adjustments primari ly  involv ing the Accumulated 

Absences Account (1)        -           -             (1 )           1            

Total  Adjustments (574)    301      244        (29)         29            Page 55



P A G E  | 32 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balances in earmarked reserves to 
provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves 
to meet General Fund expenditure in 2017/18. 
 

Transfers to/from Earmarked 

Reserves

Earmarked Reserves

Balance at 

31  March 

2016

£000s

Net 

transfers 

In/(Out)

£000s

Movements 

between 

Reserves

£000s

Balance at 

31  March 

2017

£000s

Net 

transfers 

In/(Out)

£000s 

Movements 

between 

Reserves

£000s 

Balance at 

31  March 

2018

£000s

Spec if ic  Reserves

Taxi Licensing 13          (1)             -                     12           (5)            -                    7             

Selective Licensing 438        (58)          -                     380         66           -                    446         

Local Development Framework 167        (17)          -                     150         (50)          -                    100         

Housing Benefit Admin Subsidy 114        9              (89)                34           -               -                    34           

Transport & Plant Replacement 96          (96)          -                     -             28           -                    28           

Rail Services 74          -               (54)                20           -               -                    20           

Revenue Grants Unapplied 111        265         -                     376         (212)        -                    164         

Flood 300        (65)          -                     235         (166)        -                    69           

Primary Engineer 165        (30)          -                     135         (43)          -                    92           

Town Centre Management 600        (225)        -                     375         -               -                    375         

Town Centre & Weavers Triangle -             -               143               143         (30)          -                    113         

Burnley Bondholders -             2              36                  38           16           -                    54           

Business Rates Retention Volatility -             759         -                     759         63           (610)             212         
Cremator Relining (New) -             -               -                     -             15           -                    15           

2 ,078     543      36            2 ,657      (318)    (610)         1 ,729      

Strategic  Reserves

Transformation 2,714     35            -                     2 ,749      (918)        -                    1 ,831      
Growth 2,181     481         (36)                2 ,626      (18)          610               3 ,218      

4 ,895     516      (36)           5 ,375      (936)    610          5 ,049      

Total 6 ,973     1 ,059   -               8 ,032      (1 ,254) -               6 ,778      

2016/17 2017/18

 
 

The Council’s earmarked reserves are held for the following purposes: 
 

SPECIFIC OPERATIONAL RESERVES 
Ring-fenced reserves held for operational needs to provide for anticipated future liabilities and to 
support the operational delivery of specific services. These include: 

Taxi Licensing Reserve - under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions ) Act 1976 the Council is 
only permitted to set licence fees to recover the costs of the Taxi Licensing Service, and the effect of this 
legislation is to prevent fees being set at a level that will result in a ‘profit’ to the Council. The annual 
licence fees are calculated in accordance with the three year pricing policy agreed by the Council’s 
Executive to establish a consistent and fair mechanism for fee setting and avoid large fluctuations in 
running costs from one year to the next. Any surplus or deficit from previous financial years is 
transferred into the taxi licensing reserve, in order to maintain a cost-neutral effect on the Council’s 
finances, which is then available for use as part of the three year pricing policy and assist in the 
equalisation of future licence fees.  

Selective Licensing Reserve – this reserve is to accumulate the income from licences granted to 
landlords to cover the cost of administering the selective licensing initiative. 
 

Note 8  Movements In Earmarked Reserves 

Page 56



P A G E  | 33 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Local Development Framework Reserve – funded by savings and specific grants received in previous 
years, this reserve will meet additional costs through changes to the framework governing local planning 
and development control issues. 

Housing Benefit Administration Subsidy Reserve – to support spending on the additional administration 
costs due to increased number of payments of housing benefit and the changes to the benefits system. 

Transport & Plant Replacement Reserve – funded by savings on lease contracts, all transport and 
grounds maintenance equipment is now purchased through the use of this reserve which has generated 
longer term savings. 

Rail Services Reserve – A contingency to underwrite the costs incurred in the Burnley to Manchester rail 
service in conjunction with Lancashire County Council (the Transport Authority). 

Revenue Grants Unapplied Reserve – the Council established this reserve in 2014/15 containing 
Government grants and external contributions that have no conditions attached that are being set aside 
for spending on specific services. 

Flood Reserve – this was created in 2015/16 to safeguard the Council against the costs of flood repairs 
to Council properties and to compensate individuals and businesses following the inclement weather in 
autumn 2015. The work in progress at Padiham Town Hall for flood damage is utilising this reserve. 

Primary Engineer Reserve – this was created in 2015/16 to enable the Council to support a three-year 
training initiative in schools within Burnley. 

Town Centre Management Reserve – this was created in 2015/16 to assist the Council in progressing 
further development works in the town centre. 

Town Centre & Weavers Triangle Reserve – this was created in 2016/17 to assist the Council in 
procuring the expertise to carry out a master planning exercise and is seeking to appoint a suitably 
qualified multi-disciplinary consultancy team to develop a vision and plan for the town centre.  It will 
enable the Council to deliver a major town centre regeneration scheme. 

Burnley Bondholders Reserve – this was created in 2016/17 to manage the excess sponsorship 
contributions from the bondholders’ organisations which are primarily used to fund the Burnley brand 
and marketing officer and marketing of the town to attract economic investment into the area. These 
monies were previously held in the Growth Reserve. 

Business Rates Volatility Reserve – this is used to safeguard the Council against the timing differences 
within the business rates retention system. 

Cremator Relining Reserve – this was created in 2017/18 to provide an annual contribution to fund the 
planned relining of the Council’s cremators when each relining becomes due. 

 

STRATEGIC RESERVES 
Held to provide short-term investment for strategic priorities to give flexibility in the use of corporate 
resources and strategic service transformation and ability to ensure services remain fit for purpose and 
deliver value for money. The two reserves are:- 

Transformation Reserve – this has been created to mitigate the impact of any one-off expenditure that 
arises from organisational and transformational change and to assist with organisational downsizing.  

Growth Reserve – this is used to pump prime projects that deliver demonstrable wider strategic 
benefits that enable the Council to fulfil its place shaping role for Burnley.  

  

Page 57



P A G E  | 34 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 9 Property, Plant & Equipment 

* The two figures in each of the tables below, totalling £0.861m deficit in 2017/18 (£2.203m deficit in 
2016/17), reflect the deficit or surplus on revaluation that appears at the bottom of the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

Table a - Property, P lant & 

Equipment

Comparative Movements in  

2016/17

O ther 

Land & 

Build ings

£000s

Vehic les, 

P lant & 

Equipment

£000s

Surplus 

Assets

£000s

Assets Under 

Construction

£000s

Community  

Assets

£000s

Total  

Property, 

P lant & 

Equipment

£000s

Cost or Valuation

At 1  Apri l  2016 38,613   5 ,609        10 ,971 -                 2 ,536        57 ,729     

Additions 76               232                516          1,640               -                      2 ,464       

* Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Revaluation Reserve (1,876)        -                     (66)           (399)                 (16)                 (2 ,357)      

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the 

Provision of Services (547)           -                     (726)        (360)                 -                      (1 ,633)      

Derecognition - disposals -                  -                     (740)        -                        -                      (740)         

Assets reclassified (to)/from Investment 

Properties 19               -                     150          -                        -                      169          
Other movements in cost or valuation 65               -                     (824)        759                  -                      -               

At 31  March 2017 36,350   5 ,841        9 ,281   1 ,640         2 ,520        55 ,632     

Accumulated Deprec iation and 

Impairment

At 1  Apri l  2016 (2 ,530)    (4 ,168)      -           -                 (24)            (6 ,722)      

Depreciation charge (1,333)        (372)              -               -                        -                      (1 ,705)      
* Depreciation written out to the 

Revaluation Reserve 154             -                     -               -                        -                      154          

At 31  March 2017 (3 ,709)    (4 ,540)      -           -                 (24)            (8 ,273)      

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2017 32,641   1 ,301        9 ,281   1 ,640         2 ,496        47 ,359     

At 31 March 2016 36,083   1 ,441        10 ,971 -                 2 ,512        51 ,007     

Table b - Property, P lant & 

Equipment

Movements in  2017/18

O ther 

Land & 

Build ings

£000s

Vehic les, 

P lant & 

Equipment

£000s

Surplus 

Assets

£000s

Assets Under 

Construction

£000s

Community  

Assets

£000s

Total  

Property, 

P lant & 

Equipment

£000s

Cost or Valuation

At 1  Apri l  2017 36,350   5 ,841        9 ,281   1 ,640         2 ,520        55 ,632     

Additions 1,437         365                3,272      -                        -                      5 ,074       

* Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 107             -                     (1,006)     -                        -                      (899)         

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the 

Provision of Services (111)           -                     (399)        -                        -                      (510)         

Derecognition - disposals -                  -                     (778)        -                        -                      (778)         
Other movements in cost or valuation 100             -                     1,540      (1,640)             -                      -               

At 31  March 2018 37,883   6 ,206        11 ,910 -                 2 ,520        58 ,519     

Accumulated Deprec iation and 

Impairment

At 1  Apri l  2017 (3 ,709)    (4 ,540)      -           -                 (24)            (8 ,273)      

Depreciation charge (1,337)        (375)              -               -                        -                      (1 ,712)      
* Depreciation written out to the 

Revaluation Reserve 38               -                     -               -                        -                      38            

At 31  March 2018 (5 ,008)    (4 ,915)      -           -                 (24)            (9 ,947)      

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2018 32,875   1 ,291        11 ,910 -                 2 ,496        48 ,572     

At 31 March 2017 32,641   1 ,301        9 ,281   1 ,640         2 ,496        47 ,359      Page 58



P A G E  | 35 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

DEPRECIATION 
The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation: 
 

 Land and Buildings 20 – 60 years 

 Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 3 – 10 years 
 

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
At 31 March 2018, the Council has significant commitments for future capital expenditure in 2018/19 
and future years budgeted to cost £3.877m. Similar commitments at 31 March 2017 were £7.330m. The 
commitments are: 
 
Table c  - Capital  Commitments £000s

Burnley Town Centre Pedestrianisation 14             

Contribution to Shopping Centre Redevelopment 375           

Empty Homes Programme 915           

Disabled Facilities Grant 378           

Weavers Triangle - Starter Homes 52             

Building Infrastructure Works 109           

Markets Safety Works 1,030       

Thompson Park Restoration Project 666           

Infrastructure & Highways Works 42             

Vision Park 296           

Total 3 ,877     
  

REVALUATIONS 
The Council carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all property, plant and equipment 
required to be measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years. However in 2014/15 officers 
undertook a complete revaluation exercise and started the rolling programme again in 2015/16. All 
valuations were carried out internally by professionally qualified surveyors. Valuations of land and 
buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the 
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations of vehicles, plant and 
equipment are based on historic cost.  
 

Table d - Revaluations

Other 

Land & 

Buildings

£000s

Vehic les, 

P lant & 

Equipment

£000s

Surplus 

Assets

£000s

Total

£000s

Carried at historical cost -                  1,291            -               1,291               

Valued at current value as at:

31 March 2018 2,132         -                     11,910    14,042            

31 March 2017 4,908         -                     -               4,908               

31 March 2016 5,309         5,309               
31 March 2015 20,526       -                     -               20,526            

Total  Cost or Valuation at 31  March 

2018 32,875   1 ,291        11 ,910 46,076        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 59



P A G E  | 36 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 10 Heritage Assets 

RECONCILIATION OF THE CARRYING VALUE OF HERITAGE ASSETS HELD BY THE AUTHORITY 

Heritage Assets

Movements in 2016/17

Oil  

Paintings

£000s

Water 

Colours

£000s

Furniture

£000s

Sculpture

£000s

Ceramics

£000s

Other

£000s

Total  

Property, 

P lant & 

Equipment

£000s

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2016 25,908     1,546         2,024       1,218        601         1,454   32,751           

At 31  March 2017 25,908  1 ,546     2 ,024    1 ,218    601      1 ,454 32,751      

Heritage Assets

Movements in 2017/18

Oil  

Paintings

£000s

Water 

Colours

£000s

Furniture

£000s

Sculpture

£000s

Ceramics

£000s

Other

£000s

Total  

Property, 

P lant & 

Equipment

£000s

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2017 25,908     1,546         2,024       1,218        601         1,454   32,751           

At 31  March 2018 25,908  1 ,546     2 ,024    1 ,218    601      1 ,454 32,751       

The Council’s external valuer, Bonhams, carried out a full valuation of the collection of exhibits in 
November 2011 with a valuation date as at 31 March 2012. The valuations were based on commercial 
markets including recent transaction information from auctions where similar types of artefacts are 
regularly being purchased. In 2017/18 (as in 2016/17) there have been no material additions or 
disposals and the whole collection is not due to be revalued until 2022. 

The Council’s Heritage Assets are held at Towneley Hall Art Gallery & Museum and Burnley Town Hall. 
The collections (along with the percentage on display at any given time) can be broadly divided into:  

 Fine art – oil paintings (70%), watercolour paintings (0%), works on paper (2%) and book 

illustrations (1880-1920) (0%) 

 Furniture (99%) 

 Sculpture (98%) 

 Ceramics (10%), ivories (14%) and glass (5%) 

 Military medals (13%) 

 Numismatics (0%), medals (0%) and horology (2%) 

 Silver and silver plate (1%) 

 Costume and textiles (5%), including vestments (100%) 

 Arms and armour (3%) 

 Archaeology (local) (0%) 

 Egyptology (23%) 

 Ethnography (3%) 

 Natural history (15%) and geology (4%) 

 Local, social and industrial history (80%) (Artefacts, archives and photographs) 

 War memorials (100%) 

Further details of the various collections can be found on the Council’s website by following the link: 
http://www.burnley.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Heritage%20Assets%20-%20Further%20Information.pdf Page 60

http://www.burnley.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Heritage%20Assets%20-%20Further%20Information.pdf


P A G E  | 37 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 11 Investment Properties 

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investments 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:  
 

Table a - Investment Properties Income and Expenses

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s

Rental income from investment property 956                 1,003            
Direct operating expenses arising from investment property (63)                  (57)                

Net gain /  ( loss) 893           946           
 
 

There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property 
or on the Council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The Council has no 
contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or to undertake repairs, 
maintenance or enhancement. 
 
The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year. 
 

Table b - Investment Properties

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s

Balance at start of the year 11,594      11 ,698     

Net gains / (losses) from fair value adjustments 273                 108               

Transfers:

(To) / from property, plant and equipment (169)               -                     

Balance at end of the year 11,698      11 ,806      
 
 
Details of the Council’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 
March 2018 shows that the fair value was £11.806m (£11.698m as at 31 March 2017) and that the 
assets were all commercial units / office units and valued using level 2 - other significant observable 
inputs. The fair values attributed to level 2 categorisation in the fair value hierarchy have been based 
upon the market approach using current market conditions and recent sales prices and other relevant 
transactional information for similar assets across the locality. In estimating the fair value of the 
Council’s investment properties the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



P A G E  | 38 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 12 Financial Instruments 

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet. The PWLB Long-Term 
Loans of £23.072m (£19.587m in 2016/17) are described as Long-Term Borrowing. 
 

Table a - Categories of Financ ial  Instruments

Long-term

31 March 

2017

£000s

Long-term

31 March 

2018

£000s

Current

31 March 

2017 

£000s

Current

31 March 

2018

£000s

Fair Value 

Hierarchy 

Catergorisation 

Level  

Investments and Deposits (Note 12c)

Loans and receivables -                      -                      14,072           14,052           1                             
Bank Current Account -                      -                      670                 -                       1                             

Total  Investments and Deposits -                -                14 ,742      14 ,052       

Debtors

Long-Term Loans and receivables (Note 12d) 1,243             1,232             -                      -                       1                             

Financial Assets carried at contract amounts -                      -                      2,754             3,363              1                             
Debtors that are not financial instruments -                      -                      909                 868                 1                             

Total  Debtors 1 ,243        1 ,232        3 ,663        4 ,231         

Borrowings 

PWLB Loans (19,587)          (23,072)          (1,000)            (1,015)            2                             

Local Loans -                      -                      (29)                  (47)                  1                             
Bank Overdraft -                      -                      -                      (1,614)            1                             

Total  Borrowings (19,587)     (23 ,072)     (1 ,029)       (2 ,676)       

Creditors (Note 15)

Financial liabilities carried at contract amount -                      -                      (3,832)            (3,350)            1                             
Creditors that are not financial instruments (4,852)            (4,975)            1                             

Total  Creditors -                -                (8 ,684)       (8 ,325)       

 

INCOME, EXPENSE, GAINS AND LOSSES 
 

Table b - Income, Expense, Gains and 

Losses Fi
n

an
ci

al
 L

ia
b

il
it

ie
s 

m
ea

su
re

d
 

at
 a

m
o

rt
is

ed
 c

o
st

£
0

0
0

s

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 A

ss
et

s:
 L

o
an

s 
an

d
 

re
ce

iv
ab

le
s

£
0

0
0

s

To
ta

l

£
0

0
0

s

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 L

ia
b

il
it

ie
s 

m
ea

su
re

d
 

at
 a

m
o

rt
is

ed
 c

o
st

£
0

0
0

s2

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 A

ss
et

s:
 L

o
an

s 
an

d
 

re
ce

iv
ab

le
s

£
0

0
0

s2

To
ta

l

£
0

0
0

s2

Interest expense (887)           -                  (887)  (931)             -                    (931)  

Total  expense in Surplus or Defic it on the 

Provision of Serv ices (887)       -             (887)  (931)        -              (931)  

Interest income -                  178            178   -                    317              317   

Total  income in Surplus or Defic it on the 

Provision of Serv ices -             178        178   -              317         317   

Net gain/(loss) for the year (887)       178        (709)  (931)        317         (614)  

2016/17 2017/18

 

 
 
 
 Page 62



P A G E  | 39 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

INVESTMENTS AND DEPOSITS 
 

Table c  - Investments and Deposits

Long-term

31 March 

2017

£000s

Long-term

31 March 

2018

£000s

Current

31 March 

2017

£000s

Current

31 March 

2018

£000s

Loans and receivables
Short-term deposits with other banks between 3 and 12 months -                      -                      2,000             6,000             

Total  Short-term Investments and Deposits -                -                2 ,000        6 ,000        

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 14)

Short-term deposits in call account with Council's bank (HSBC) -                      -                      9,072             6,052             

Short-term deposits with other banks < 3 months -                      -                      3,000             2,000             
Current Account with HSBC bank -                      -                      670                 -                      

Total  Investments and Deposits in Cash and Cash 

Equivalents -                -                12 ,742      8 ,052        

 

LONG-TERM DEBTORS 
 

Table d - Long-Term Debtors

Pendle 

Counc il  

transferred 

services debt

£000s

Mortgages - 

Muir 

Housing 

Assoc iation

£000s

Mortgages - 

Royal British 

Housing 

Assoc iation

£000s

Empty 

Homes Loans

£000s

Total

£000s

Balance at 1  Apri l  2017 133            369            118            623            1 ,243         

Advances -                        -                        -                        132                  132                  

Receipts (6)                     (10)                   (1)                     (126)                 (143)                 

Balance at 31  March 2018 127            359            117            629            1 ,232          
 

SHORT-TERM BORROWING 
 

Table e - Short-Term Borrowing

31 March 

2017

£000s

31 March 

2018

£000s

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

PWLB Loans (1,000)            (1,015)            

Local Loans (29)                  (47)                  

Total  Short-Term Borrowing (1 ,029)       (1 ,062)        
 

FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
Financial liabilities, financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long-term debtors and 
creditors are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by 
calculating the present value of the cash flows that take place over the remaining life of the instruments, 
using the following assumptions: 

 The fair value of our Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans is the amount that would have been 
payable had those loans been repaid to the PWLB on the balance sheet date rather than on their 
contracted future maturity date. This valuation takes into account the premiums that would be 
payable or discounts receivable on early repayment of loans to the PWLB. These premiums and 
discounts depend on the rate and period of each individual loan and on rates for loans with 
similar periods to maturity prevailing at the Balance Sheet date. Accrued interest is also included 
in the fair value.  

 The valuations use the Net Present Value (NPV) approach, which provides an estimate of the 
value of payments in the future in today’s terms. This is a widely accepted valuation technique 
commonly used by the private sector. The discount rate used in the NPV calculation should be 
equal to the current rate in relation to the same instrument from a comparable lender. This will Page 63



P A G E  | 40 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

be the rate applicable in the market on the date of valuation, for an instrument with the same 
duration i.e. equal to the outstanding period from valuation date to maturity. The structure and 
terms of the comparable instrument should be the same, although for complex structures it is 
sometimes difficult to obtain the rate for an instrument with identical features in an active 
market. In such cases, we have used the prevailing rate of a similar instrument with a published 
market rate, as the discount factor.  

 Where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months the carrying amount is assumed to 
approximate to fair value. 

 The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billing amount. 
 

FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
 

Table f  - Fair Values of Assets and Liabi l ities

31 March 

2017

Carrying 

amount

£000s

31 March 

2017

Fair value

£000s

31 March 

2018

carrying 

amount

£000s

31 March 

2018

Fair value

£000s

Financial liabilities

PWLB borrowing (20,587)          (24,520)          (24,087)          (27,511)          

Other borrowing (29)                  (29)                  (47)                  (47)                  

Bank overdraft -                      -                      (1,614)            (1,614)            

Total  f inanc ial  l iabi l ities (20,616)     (24 ,549)     (25 ,748)     (29 ,172)     

Loans and receivables

Long-term debtors 1,243             1,243             1,232             1,232              

Total  f inanc ial  assets 1 ,243        1 ,243        1 ,232        1 ,232          
 

In terms of the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) debt the fair value is different than the carrying amount 
because the Council’s portfolio of loans includes a number of loans where the interest rate payable is 
higher than the rates available for similar loans in the market at the Balance Sheet date. As the purpose 
of the fair value disclosure is primarily to provide a comparison with the carrying amount in the Balance 
Sheet and as this contains accrued interest then the fair value figure also includes accrued interest.  

When calculating the fair value of PWLB debt our Treasury Management consultants have used the 
borrowing rate for new PWLB loans as the discount factor for all borrowing whereas the PWLB use the 
premature repayment rates for their values. The Code Guidance Notes for Practitioners confirms that it 
is acceptable for either or both valuations to be used.  

Short-term debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of their value. 
 

  

Page 64



P A G E  | 41 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 13 Short-term Debtors 

The short-term debtors shown in the table below are net of impairment allowance for doubtful debts. 
 

Table a - Short-Term Debtors

31 March 

2017

£000s

31 March 

2018

£000s

Central Government Bodies 493                     560                     

Other Local Authorities 1,030                  14                        

NHS Bodies 1                          4                          

Other Entities and Individuals 2,139                  3,653                  

Total 3 ,663            4 ,231             
 

A breakdown of the impairment allowance for doubtful debts figures reflected in the table above is as 
follows: 
 

Table b - Impairment Al lowance for 

Doubtful  Debts

31  March 

2017

£000s

31 March 

2018

£000s

NDR (521)                    (546)                    

Council Tax (644)                    (746)                    

Court Fees (1,030)                 (1,143)                 

Housing Benefits (1,274)                 (1,224)                 

General (290)                    (289)                    

Total (3 ,759)           (3 ,948)            
 

The gross total of the short-term debtors as at the 31 March 2018 is £8.179m (31 March 2017 was 
£7.422m).  

Note 14 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements: 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents

31 March   

2017

£000s

31 March  

2018

£000s

Cash held by the Authority 8                           8                           

Bank current account 670                       (1,614)                  

Short-term deposits in call account with Council's bank 9,072                   6,052                   

Short-term deposits with other banks < 3 months 3,000                   2,000                   

Total  Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,750           6 ,446              
 

 
 
 
 

Page 65



P A G E  | 42 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 15 Short-term Creditors 

Short-Term Creditors

31 March   

2017

£000s

31 March    

2018

£000s

Central Government Bodies (4,049)                    (5,211)                    

Other Local Authorities (1,558)                    (1,413)                    

Other Entities & Individuals (3,077)                    (1,701)                    

Total (8 ,684)             (8 ,325)              

Note 16 Provisions 

Table a - Current Provisions

Legal 

Expenses

£000s

Non-

Domestic  

Rate Appeals

£000s

Overarching 

Development 

Agreement

£000s

Total

£000s

Balance at 1  Apri l  2017 (130)            (2 ,688)         -                  (2 ,818)         

Additional provisions made in 

2017/18 -                         (575)                  -                         (575)            

Unused amounts reversed in 

2017/18 90                     -                         -                         90               

Transferred from Long-Term 

Provisions -                         -                         (550)                  (550)            

Amounts used in 2017/18 3                        621                   -                         624             

Balance at 31  March 2018 (37)              (2 ,642)         (550)            (3 ,229)         

Table b - Long-Term 

Provisions

Overarching 

Development 

Agreement

£000s

Bonds and 

deposits

£000s

Contractual  

obl igations

£000s

MMI 

Insurance

£000s

Pension 

guarantees

£000s

Total

£000s

Balance at 1  Apri l  2017 (550)            (90)              -                  -                  -                  (640)          

Additional provisions made in 

2017/18 -                         (41)                    (450)                  (95)                    (50)                    (636)          

Unused amounts reversed in 

2017/18 -                         29                     -                         -                         -                         29             

Transferred to Current Provisions 550                   -                         -                         -                         -                         550           
Amounts used in 2017/18 -                         44                     -                         -                         -                         44             

Balance at 31  March 2018 -                  (58)              (450)            (95)              (50)              (653)          

 

Provisions have been made in the current and previous financial years to set aside amounts to meet 
future expenditure. These provisions are made at the point where a given liability arises but where the 
expenditure relating to the liability has not yet been made. The balance on the provisions account 
therefore reflects the balance of unpaid known liabilities which have already been charged to the 
Council’s revenue account. When the liability is paid the expenditure is charged against the provision. 
The seven outstanding provisions shown above are: 

LEGAL EXPENSES 
This provision relates to the Council’s estimated legal costs for litigation in court proceedings (or in 
contemplation thereof) resulting from a number of potential legal disputes.  

 

 

 Page 66



P A G E  | 43 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

NON-DOMESTIC RATES APPEALS 
This provision for Business Rates appeals was created as a result of the adoption in 2013/14 of the 
Business Rates Retention scheme which means that the Council now bears part of the risk for future 
appeals. These were borne by the Government under the old scheme. The Councils’ estimate of the 
value of outstanding appeals up to 31 March 2018 is £6,604,920 (£6,719,502 as at 31 March 2017), the 
value of appeals used in completing the collection fund position as at 31 March 2018. The Council has 
made a provision for 40% of this figure totalling £2,641,968 (£2,687,801 as at 31 March 2017) within the 
2017/18 accounts. 

OVERARCHING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
A provision has been made for the Council’s estimated share of the costs of recent housing site 
developments around Burnley. The payment is due in 2018 but will be dependent on whether the 
planned number of properties will be achieved. This is the maximum sum to which the Council may be 
liable.   

BONDS AND DEPOSITS 
The Council has many contracts with third parties where the outcome of the contract is partially 
guaranteed by performance bonds or cash in lieu of such bonds. This ensures that remedial works can 
be undertaken in the event of any failure by the contractor to complete the works. The bonds and 
deposits are usually repaid upon completion of the works or exceptionally used to fund remedial works. 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 
A provision has been created to cover potential payments by the Council under existing contractual 
obligations. 

MMI INSURANCE 
This provision relates to estimated outstanding payments on insurance claims for which the Council is 
responsible. These claims were previously covered by Municipal Mutual Insurance Limited which is in 
liquidation. 

PENSION GUARANTEES 
The Council has entered into a number of long-term contracts for services that have been outsourced to 
service providers. These often involve the transfer of Council employees to the new service provider. 
Employees’ rights are protected under the provision in the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 
Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE). However, pension rights are not fully covered within the TUPE 
regulations. For contracts with non-public bodies the responsibility for pension obligations remains with 
the sponsoring body. This guarantee means that if an admitted body fails to pay its pension obligations 
to Lancashire County Pension Fund then the Council will be responsible for taking on those obligations. 
The risk of default is considered to be small and a provision is included in the accounts to recognise this 
risk. 

 

  

Page 67



P A G E  | 44 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 17 Usable Reserves 

Movements in the Council’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement and 
Notes 7 and 8. 
 

Table a - Usable Reserves

31 March  

2017

£000s

31 March  

2018

£000s

General Fund 1,379                   1,379                   
Earmarked Reserves 8,032                   6,778                   

Capital Receipts Reserve 3,493                   3,794                   

Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve 888                       1,132                   

Total  Usable Reserves 13,792           13 ,083           

Table b - Capital  Receipts Reserve

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s

Balance at 1  Apri l 3 ,788             3 ,493             

Capital receipts in year

Sale of Assets 733                       778                       

Other Income 216                       381                       

Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 68                         89                         

Capital receipts used to fund capital expenditure (1,312)                  (947)                     

Balance at 31  March 3,493             3 ,794             

Table c  - Capital  Grants Unapplied Reserve

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s

Balance at 1  Apri l 482                888                

Receipts in year 1,847                   2,253                   

Receipts Applied in year (1,441)                  (2,009)                  

Balance at 31  March 888                1 ,132              
 

CAPITAL GRANTS UNAPPLIED 

Government grants and other contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis and recognised in the 
accounting statements when the conditions for their receipt have been complied with. This reserve 
holds the balance of grants unapplied at year-end. The Capital Grants Unapplied balance is for Disabled 
Facilities Grant that has not yet been utilised.  
 

  

Page 68



P A G E  | 45 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 18 Unusable Reserves 

Unusable Reserves

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s

Revaluation reserve 49,467                  47,773               

Capital Adjustment Account 13,791                  15,124               

Pensions Reserve (65,061)                (57,995)              

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 623                       629                     

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 268                       603                     
Accumulated Absences Account (51)                        (50)                      

Total  Unusable Reserves (963)               6 ,084           
 

 

REVALUATION RESERVE (NOTE 18A) 
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its 
property, plant and equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 

 Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost; 

 Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation; or 

 Disposed of and the gains are realised. 

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the reserve 
was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the 
Capital Adjustment Account. 
 

Revaluation Reserve

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s

Balance at 1  Apri l 52 ,624           49 ,467         

Upward revaluation of assets 539                       1,116                 
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged 

to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services (2,742)                   (1,977)                

Surplus or (defic it)  on revaluation of non-current assets 

not posted to the Surplus or Defic it on the Provision of 

Serv ices (2 ,203)            (861)             

Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost 

depreciation (616)                      (424)                   
Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped (338)                      (409)                   

Amounts written off  to the Capital  Adjustment Account (954)               (833)             

Balance at 31  March 49,467           47 ,773                  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 69



P A G E  | 46 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

CAPITAL ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT (NOTE 18B) 
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements 
for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction 
or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The account is debited with the cost of 
acquisition, construction or subsequent costs as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the 
Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical costs basis). The account is credited with 
the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and 
subsequent costs. 

The account contains accumulated gains and losses on investment properties that have yet to be 
consumed by the Council. 

The account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on property, plant and equipment before 1 
April 2007, the date the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. 

Note 7 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the account, apart from those 
involving the Revaluation Reserve. 
. 

Capital  Adjustment Account

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s

Balance at 1  Apri l 15 ,313           13 ,791         

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited 

to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (1,705)                   (1,712)                

Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment (1,633)                   (510)                   

Amortisation of intangible assets (12)                        (12)                      

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (4,325)                   (4,908)                

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 

part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement (740)                      (778)                   
Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 954                       833                     

Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets 

consumed in the year (7 ,461)            (7 ,087)          

Capital financing applied in the year:

Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure 1,312                    947                     

Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to 

capital financing 1,379                    2,612                 

Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants 

Unapplied Account 1,441                    2,009                 

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 

charged against the General Fund Balance 780                       800                     

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund Balance 754                       1,944                 

Capital  f inanc ing applied in the year 5 ,666             8 ,312           

Movements in the market value of investment properties debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 273                       108                     

Balance at 31  March 13,791           15 ,124          
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



P A G E  | 47 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

PENSIONS RESERVE (NOTE 18C) 
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory 
provisions. The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the 
liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources 
set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as 
the Council makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pay any pensions for which it 
is directly responsible. The credit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial 
shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Council has set 
aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the 
time the benefits come to be paid. 
 

Pensions Reserve

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s 

Balance at 1  Apri l (59,402)          (65 ,061)        

Remeasurements of the net defined benfit liability / (asset) (4,921)                   7,879                 

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited 

to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(3,544)                   (3,702)                

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in year 2,806                    2,889                 

Balance at 31  March (65,061)          (57 ,995)         
 

DEFERRED CAPITAL RECEIPTS RESERVE (NOTE 18D) 
The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current assets 
but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory arrangements, the Council does not 
treat these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. 
When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital 
Receipts Reserve. 
 

Deferred Capital  Receipts Reserve

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s 

Balance at 1  Apri l 518                623              

Transfer of deferred loan repayments in respect of long-term debtors 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 173                       95                       
Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash (68)                        (89)                      

Balance at 31  March 623                629               

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 71



P A G E  | 48 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

COLLECTION FUND ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT (NOTE 18E) 
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of 
Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
as it falls due from council tax payers and business rates payers compared with the statutory 
arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund. 
 

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s 

Balance at 1  Apri l (2 ,693)            268              
Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is 

different from council tax and non-domestic rates income calculated 

for the year in accordance with statutory requirements 2,961                    335                     

Balance at 31  March 268                603               

 

ACCUMULATED ABSENCES ACCOUNT (NOTE 18F) 
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General 
Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual 
leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the 
General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the account. 
 

Accumulated Absences Account

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s 

Balance at 1  Apri l (61)                 (51)               

Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the 

preceding year 61                          51                       

Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (51)                        (50)                      
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals 

basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in 

accordance with statutory requirements 10                          1                         

Balance at 31  March (51)                 (50)                
 

 

  

Page 72



P A G E  | 49 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 19 Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities 

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items: 
 

Table a - Adjust Net (Surplus) /  Defic it on the Provision 

of Serv ices for Non-Cash Movements

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s

Depreciation 1,704                   1,712                   

Impairment & downward valuations 1,633                   510                       

Amortisations 12                         12                         

(Increase) / decrease in impairment allowance for doubtful debts 114                       164                       

Increase / (decrease) in creditors 2,776                   (714)                     

(Increase) / decrease in debtors (2,658)                  (1,244)                  

(Increase) / decrease in inventories 2                           -                            

Movement in pension liability 738                       (1,919)                  

Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current assets held 

for sale, sold or derecognised 740                       778                       

Movements in value of investment properties (273)                     (108)                     

Movement in provisions (121)                     424                       

Other non-cash items 2                           -                            

Net cash f lows from operating activ ities 4 ,669             (385)               

Table b - Adjust Net (Surplus) /  Defic it on the Provision 

of Serv ices that are Investing or Financ ing Activ ities

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets (1,055)                  (1,159)                  

Grants received for the financing of capital expenditure (2,482)                  (3,740)                  
Billing Authorities - Council Tax and NDR adjustments (8,790)                  (2,438)                  

Net cash f lows from operating activ ities (12,327)          (7 ,337)             
 

Note 20 Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities 

The cash flows for investing activities include the following items: 
 

Investing Activ ities

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and 

intangible assets (2,464)             (5,074)             

Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments (96,037)           (103,670)        

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets 1,055              1,159              

Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 101,037          99,670            
Capital grants received 3,385              4,056              

Net cash f lows from investing activ ities 6 ,976         (3 ,859)         
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



P A G E  | 50 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 21 Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities 

The cash flows for financing activities include the following items: 
 

Financ ing Activ ities

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s

Cash receipts of short-term and long-term borrowing 2,047              4,500              

Billing Authorities - Council Tax and NDR adjustments 8,790              2,439              

Repayments of short-term and long-term borrowing (2,038)             (982)                

Net cash f lows from financ ing activ ities 8,799         5 ,957          

 

Note 22 Members’ Allowances 

The following amounts were paid to Members of the Council during the year. 
 

Table a - Members Al lowances

2016/17

£

2017/18

£

Allowance Payments 185,451          198,998          

Expenses Payments 1,081               582                  

Total 186,532      199,580       
 

Payments of allowances to elected Members are made in accordance with the scheme approved 
annually by the Council and are detailed below: 
 

Table b - Members'  Al lowances

2016/17

£

2017/18

£

Allowance rate paid per annum

Basic Allowance 3,000               3,250               

Executive Member 3,750               4,063               

Leader Supplement 10,500             11,375             

Deputy Leader Supplement 3,000               3,250               

Other Group Leaders 1,500               1,625               

Scrutiny Chair 3,750               4,063               

Development Control Chair 2,400               2,600               

Licensing Committee Chair 1,500               1,625               

Development Control Vice Chair 1,200               1,300               

Audit and Standards Committee Chair 1,500               1,625               

Scrutiny Vice Chair 1,200               1,300               

Independent Persons 500                  500                   
 

 

 

 

 
Page 74



P A G E  | 51 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 23 Officers’ Remuneration 

The remuneration paid to the Council’s senior employees with a salary of £50,000 or more is shown 
below. 
 

Table a - Directors and 

Statutory Officers Column2

Salary, Fees 

and 

Al lowances

£

Elections

£

Compensation 

for loss of 

off ice

£

Pension 

contribution

£

Total

£

Head of Paid Serv ice

Chief Executive    2016/17               106,457                   14,105 120,562   

Chief Executive to 31/08/17 2017/18                 43,609                     6,873 50,482     

Chief Executive from 07/09/17 2017/18                 60,998                     9,347 70,345     

Chief Finance Officer

Director of Resources (to 

30/11/2016) 2016/17                 52,414 50,000                                   6,683 109,097   

Accountancy Division Manager  

(Acting S151 Officer 01/12/16 to 

08/01/17) 2016/17                   5,733                        763 6 ,496       

Head of Finance 

(from 09/01/2017) 2016/17                 12,949                     1,722 14,671     

Head of Finance 2017/18                 57,449                     8,814 66,263     

Non-Statutory Directors

Director of Community Services /

 Chief Operating Officer from 

01/01/2017 2016/17                 76,077 9,718                              10,389 96,184     

Chief Operating Officer to 06/09/17 2017/18                 36,782 9,625                                5,665 52,072     

Monitoring Officer

Head of Governance, Law & 

Regulation 2016/17                 55,841 2,947                                7,537 66,325     

Head of Governance, Law & 

Regulation to 19/11/17 2017/18                 38,158 3,262                                5,876 47,296     

Chief Operating Officer fm 

20/11/17  (NB COO currently 

Monitoring Officer until new Head 

of Legal is appointed) 2017/18                 28,105                     4,475 32,580     

 

The rate of pension contribution is 13.3% for 2016/17 and 15.4% for 2017/18. 
The Director of Resources post was disestablished from 30 November 2016. 
 

The number of employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding 
employer’s pension contributions) is shown below. The remuneration includes payments to officers for 
election duties and compensation for loss of office. The table excludes those officers included in the 
table above. 
 

Table b - Remuneration 

band

2016/17

Number of 

Employees

2017/18

Number of 

Employees

£50,000 - £54,999 4 3

£55,000 - £59,999 1 1

£90,000 - £94,999 0 1

Total 5 5  
 

Page 75



P A G E  | 52 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of redundancies are set out in the 
table below: 
 
Table c

(a)

Exit package cost 

band ( inc luding 

spec ial  payments)

(b)

Number of 

compulsory 

departures

(b)

Number of 

compulsory 

departures

2

(c )

Number of 

other 

departures 

agreed

(c )

Number of 

other 

departures 

agreed

2

(d)

Total  

number of 

exit 

packages by 

cost band

[(b) + (c )]

(d)

Total  

number of 

exit 

packages 

by cost 

band

[(b) + (c )]

2

(e)

Total  cost 

of exit 

packages 

(e)

Total  cost 

of exit 

packages

2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17

£

2017/18

£

£0 - £20,000 10                        1                          -                        -                        10                    1                    87,517         2,780             

£20,001 - £40,000 1                           3                          -                        -                        1                      3                    39,455         71,910           

£40,001 - £60,000 2                           3                          -                        -                        2                      3                    92,104         142,935         

£100,001 - £150,000 -                            1                          -                        -                        -                       1                    -                     111,845         

Total 13                 8                   -                 -                 13              8              219,076   329,470    

 

Note 24 External Audit Costs 

The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, 
certification of grant claims and statutory inspections provided by the Council’s external auditors: 
 

External Audit Costs

2016/17

£000

2017/18

£000

Fees payable to Grant Thornton with regard to external audit services 

carried out by the appointed auditor for the year 51                 51                 

Fees payable to Grant Thornton for non-audit services 7                   -                    

Fees payable to Grant Thornton for the certification of grant claims 

and returns for the year 11                 9                   

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) rebate -                    (8)                  

Total 69            52             
 

Planned audit services cost £51k in line with the agreed plan and budget. An estimated creditor of £3k 
has been included under grant claims for additional work undertaken on the certification of the RGF 
(Aerospace) claim. 
 

  

Page 76



P A G E  | 53 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 25 Grant Income 

The following grants and contributions were credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (CIES) in 2017/18. The total credited to taxation and non-specific grant income differs from 
the CIES because it excludes Council Tax income of £6.550m and retained business rates of £4.634m.  

Table a - Grant Income  

2016/17

£000

2017/18

£000

Credited to Taxation and Non-Spec if ic  Grant Income

Revenue Support Grant (3,660)            (2,777)            

Non-ringfenced Government Grants

Small Business Rates Relief and Other Business Rate Grants (1,295)            (1,110)            

New Homes Bonus (1,012)            (979)               

Capital Grants & Contributions

Disabled Facilities Grant (1,847)            (2,288)            

Market Renewal Programme (66)                  (450)               

Lancashire Enterprise Partnership (558)               (1,002)            
Other Capital Grants & Contributions (12)                  -                      

Total (8 ,450)       (8 ,606)       

Credited to Serv ices

Housing Benefit & Council Tax Support Subsidy (33,829)          (30,979)          

Housing Benefit Administration Subsidy (743)               (762)               

Lancashire County Council (1,126)            (880)               

Arts Council (9)                    (9)                    

Pendle Borough Council (44)                  (3)                    

Home Office Grant (267)               (341)               

Other Revenue Grants (709)               (475)               

Homelessness Grant (40)                  (40)                  

Capital Grants & Contributions (see note below)

Market Renewal Programme (59)                  (54)                  

Housing Capital Grant (9)                    (66)                  

Heritage Lottery Fund (33)                  (313)               

Homes and Communities Agency (60)                  (334)               
Other Capital Grants & Contributions (584)               (358)               

Total (37 ,512)     (34 ,614)      

In accordance with The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 
capital grants which are used to finance capital expenditure are now recognised in the Taxation and 
Non-Specific Grant Income line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 

  

Page 77



P A G E  | 54 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The Council has received a number of grants and contributions that have yet to be recognised as income 
as they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies to be returned to the giver. The 
balances at the year-end are as follows: 

 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
 

Table b - Current Liabil ities

Capital  Grants Receipts in 

Advance

Balance

31 March 2017

£000

Receipts

£000

Applied

£000

Balance

31 March 2018

£000

Housing Capital Grant (67)                                                 -                      67                   -                                 

Housing Market Renewal (504)                                              -                      504                 -                                 

Total (571)                                 -                571           -                        

 
 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 

Table c  - Long Term Liabil ities

Capital  Grants Receipts in 

Advance

Balance

31 March 2017

£000

Receipts

£000

Applied

£000

Balance

31 March 2018

£000

Section 106 Contributions (189)                                              (41)                  -                      (230)                          

Total (189)                                 (41)            -                (230)                  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 78



P A G E  | 55 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 26 Related Parties 

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, bodies or individuals that 
have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council.  

Disclosure of these transactions with related parties provides transparency which allows readers to 
assess the extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate 
independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the 
Council. 

CENTRAL GOVERNMENT 
Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council – it is 
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides a 
significant amount of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the 
transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g. Council Tax bills, housing benefits). Grants 
received from Government departments are set out in the Grant Income Note 25. 

ELECTED MEMBERS 
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial management and operating 
policies, for which they are paid allowances and expenses. Members’ allowances and expenses paid in 
2017/18 totalling £199,580 (£186,532 in 2016/17) are shown in Note 22.  

In 2017/18 £59,565 (£34,864 in 2016/17) was paid for works, goods and services provided to the Council 
by companies in which Members had related interests. The Council received £13,892 (£23,160 in 
2016/17) for services provided to those companies. Contracts were entered into in full compliance with 
the Council’s standing orders.  

In 2017/18 grants totalling £214,831 (£223,699 in 2016/17) were paid by the Council to external 
organisations in which Members had either related interests or where the Council had appointed them 
as their elected representative. The grants were made with proper consideration of declarations of 
interests and in compliance with the Council’s policies and procedures.  

There are four Members of the Council who are also Members of Lancashire County Council (LCC). 

In 2017/18 £808,679 (£1,103,973 in 2016/17) was paid for works, goods and services provided to the 
Council by LCC. 

In 2017/18 income of £1,094,216 (£2,826,405 in 2016/17) was received from LCC for services provided 
by the Council. 

Details of all these related parties interests and record of appointments to external organisations are 
recorded in either the Council’s register of Members’ interests or the Council’s minutes, both of which 
are available for public inspection. 

COUNCIL OFFICERS 
Chief Officers of the Council also hold positions in other organisations.  

In 2017/18, there were no grants or payments for goods and services paid to companies in which 
officers had a declared interest other than those included in this statement.  

 
 Page 79



P A G E  | 56 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

CALICO HOMES LIMITED 
The Chief Operating Officer of the Council holds voting rights at Calico Homes Limited’s annual general 
meeting. 

In 2017/18 £273,600 (£36,286 in 2016/17) was paid to Calico Homes Ltd for goods and services provided 
to the Council. 

In 2017/18 income of £113,811 (£209,712 in 2016/17) was received from Calico Homes Ltd for services 
provided by the Council. 

The Chief Operating Officer was not involved in any discussion, decision or administration relating to 
these transactions. 

OTHER PUBLIC BODIES (SUBJECT TO COMMON CONTROL BY CENTRAL GOVERNMENT) 
Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council  
There is a joint service delivery arrangement in place with Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council for 
the provision of a building control service within Burnley. 

In 2017/18 £84,879 (£94,325 in 2016/17) was paid to Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council for the 
provision of this service during the year. 

In 2017/18 income of £19,599 (£22,894 in 2016/17) was received from Blackburn with Darwen Borough 
Council for services provided by the Council. 

ENTITIES CONTROLLED OR SIGNIFICANTLY INFLUENCED BY THE COUNCIL 
Burnley Leisure 
This is a leisure trust and limited company that operates several services related to sport, healthy 
lifestyles, leisure and culture on behalf of the Council, which has two elected Members on its Board. 
The Council has a three year service level agreement with Burnley Leisure to supply services to the 
leisure trust, which ends on the 31 March 2020. 

In 2017/18 £754,838 (£910,837 in 2016/17) was paid to Burnley Leisure for the provision of services to 
the Council. This includes a Management Fee paid to the trust of £423,272 (£611,069 in 2016/17). 

In 2017/18 income of £282,373 (£295,813 in 2016/17) was received from Burnley Leisure for services 
provided by the Council. This included charges made by the Council for service level agreements with 
the trust of £239,681 (£237,547 in 2016/17). 

The Council appointed Burnley Leisure to take over the management of Towneley golf courses from 1 
April 2017. 

Barnfield and Burnley (Developments) Ltd 
This is a joint venture company between the Council and Barnfield Investment Properties Ltd. The 
Council has a 50% share of the company and has two representatives on its Board; the Council’s Leader 
and its Chief Operating Officer. 

In 2017/18 no payments (nil in 2016/17) were made by the Council to Barnfield and Burnley 
(Developments) Ltd. 

In 2017/18 no income (nil in 2016/17) was received from Barnfield and Burnley (Developments) Ltd by 
the Council. 

 
Page 80



P A G E  | 57 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Barnfield Investment Properties Ltd 
Barnfield Investment Properties Ltd also has a 50% share of Barnfield and Burnley (Developments) Ltd 
and has three directors on its Board, with two of these also being directors of Barnfield Developments 
Ltd and Barnfield Construction Ltd.  

In 2017/18 £323,491 (£55,607 in 2016/17) was paid to Barnfield Investment Properties Ltd for goods 
and services provided to the Council. 

In 2017/18 income of £1,639 (£1,764 in 2016/17) was received from Barnfield Investment Properties Ltd 
for services provided by the Council.  

During 2016/17 the Council partnered with Barnfield Investment Properties Ltd to deliver the Homes 
and Communities Agency funded Starter Homes site at Clock Tower Mill, Sandygate, Burnley. Barnfield 
Investment Properties Ltd has also been selected to partner the Council on a 10 year joint venture to 
develop homes in the borough. 

Barnfield Construction Ltd 
In 2017/18 no payments (£112,536 in 2016/17) were made to Barnfield Construction Ltd for goods and 
services provided to the Council. 

In 2017/18 income of £2,615 (£2,445 in 2016/17) was received from Barnfield Construction Ltd for 
services provided by the Council. 

Barnfield Developments Ltd 
In 2017/18 no payments (nil in 2016/17) were made by the Council to Barnfield Developments Ltd. 

In 2017/18 income of £507 (nil in 2016/17) was received by the Council from Barnfield Developments 
Ltd.  

REGISTERS OF MEMBERS/OFFICERS INTERESTS 
Members of the Council are required by section 30 of the Localism Act 2011 and the Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, to disclose outside interests and these 
are recorded in a register (details of these disclosures are recorded on the Council’s website) and the 
Code of Conduct for Members operated by the Council requires Members to disclose any related 
interests they have, and to take no part in meetings or decisions on issues which pertain to those 
related interests. 

A register of chief officers’ interests has been established in which their outside interests are recorded. 
Officers are required to comply with a Code of Conduct for officers and to declare interests and remove 
themselves from activities which may be a conflict of interests, including procurement. 
 

  

Page 81



P A G E  | 58 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 27 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the 
value of assets acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been used to 
finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets 
are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be 
financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note. 
 

Capital  Expenditure and Capital  Financ ing 

2016/17

£000

2017/18

£000

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 27,437           28,560           

Capital Investment:

Property, plant and equipment 2,464             5,074             

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under 

statute 4,325             4,908             

Sources of finance:

Capital receipts (1,312)            (947)               

Government grants and other contributions (2,820)            (4,621)            

Sums set aside from revenue:

Direct revenue contributions (754)               (1,944)            

Minimum Revenue Provision (780)               (800)               

Closing Capital  Financ ing Requirement 28,560      30 ,230      

Explanation of movements in year:

(Decrease) / Increase in underlying need to borrow 

(unsupported by Government financial assistance) 1,123             1,670             

Increase /  (decrease) in  Capital  Financ ing 

Requirement 1 ,123        1 ,670         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



P A G E  | 59 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 28 Leases 

AUTHORITY AS LESSEE 
Operating Leases 
The Council leases a building on Parker Lane which houses its contact centre, Contact Burnley, on a lease 
which has less than 2 years remaining until it expires on the 31 December 2019.  

The future minimum lease payments on this lease in future years are: 
 

Table a - Operating Lease - Contact Centre

31 March 2017

£000s

31 March 2018

£000s

Not later than one year 67                             91                             

Later than one year and not later than five years 163                          72                             

Minimum lease payments 230                   163                    
 

The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year in 
relation to this lease was £66,904 (£108,490 in 2016/17). 

 
AUTHORITY AS LESSOR 
Operating Leases 
The Council leases out property under operating leases for the following purposes: 

 For the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism services and 
community centres. 

 For economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local 
businesses. 

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 
 

Table b - Property

31 March 2017

£000s

31 March 2018

£000s

Not later than one year (1,058)                      (977)                         

Later than one year and not later than five years (3,740)                      (3,389)                      

Later than five years (86,042)                   (73,040)                   

Minimum lease payments (90,840)            (77,406)             

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 83



P A G E  | 60 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 29 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes 

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes contributions 
towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until 
employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments (for those benefits) and to 
disclose them at the time that employees earn their future entitlement. 

At 31 March 2018 the Council’s principal pension arrangement for its employees was the Lancashire 
County Pension Fund, which is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The LGPS is a 
funded defined benefit pension arrangement for local authorities and related employers, and is 
governed by statute (principally now the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013). 

The Lancashire County Pension Fund is a multi-employer arrangement, under which each employer is 
responsible for the pension costs, liabilities and funding risks relating to its own employees and former 
employees. Each employer’s contributions to the fund are calculated in accordance with the LGPS 
Regulations, which require an actuarial valuation to be carried out every three years. The latest actuarial 
valuation of the Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2016, and at that date showed a funding level of 
90% (up from 78% at the last valuation - assets of £6.0bn against accrued liabilities of about £6.7bn). 
The weighted average duration of the liabilities of the fund as a whole is 18 years, measured on the 
IAS19 assumptions. The duration of the liabilities for the individual employers which participate in the 
scheme can be significantly different from this, reflecting the profile of its employees and former 
employees. 

GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT    
The liability associated with the Council’s pension arrangements is material to the Council, as is the cash 
funding required. The detail in relation to the Lancashire County Pension Fund, including the relevant 
provisions for governance and risk management, are set out below. 

NATURE OF THE FUND 

The fund targets a pension paid throughout life. The amount of the pension depends on how long 
employees are active members of the scheme and their salary when they leave the scheme (a “final 
salary” scheme) for service up to 31 March 2014 and a re-valued average salary (a “career average” 
scheme) for service from 1 April 2014 onwards. 

GOVERNANCE 
Management of the Fund is vested in Lancashire County Council as Administering Authority of the Fund. 
Lancashire County Council has appointed a Pension Fund Committee (comprised of a mixture of County 
Councillors and representatives from other employers) to manage the Fund. The Committee is assisted 
by an investment panel which advises the Committee on its investment strategy and risk management 
provisions. 

FUNDING THE LIABILITIES 
Regulations governing the Fund require actuarial valuations to be carried out every three years. 
Contributions for each employer are set having regard to their individual circumstances. The Regulations 
require the contributions to be set with a view to targeting the funds solvency, and the detailed 
provisions are set out in the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement. The most recent valuation was carried 
out as at 31 March 2016, which showed a shortfall of assets against liabilities of £0.7 billion as at that 
date, equivalent to a funding level of 90%. The Fund’s employers are paying additional contributions 
over a period of between 16 and 19 years in order to meet the shortfall. 
 

 Page 84



P A G E  | 61 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

RISK AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
The Fund’s primary long-term risk is that the Fund’s assets will fall short of the liabilities (i.e. promised 
benefits payable to members). The aim of investment risk management is to balance the minimisation 
of the risk of an overall reduction in the value of the Fund with maximising the opportunity for gains 
across the whole Funds portfolio. The Fund achieves this through asset diversification to reduce 
exposure to market risk (price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk) and keep credit risk to an 
acceptable level. In addition, the Fund manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is sufficient liquidity to 
meet the Funds forecast cash flow. 

MARKET RISK 
Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest and foreign 
exchange rates and credit spreads. To mitigate market risk, the Fund and its investment advisors 
undertake appropriate monitoring of market conditions and benchmarking analysis. 

OTHER PRICE RISK 
Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of a 
change in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk). The 
Fund’s investment managers mitigate this price risk through diversification. The selection of securities 
and other financial instruments is monitored by the Fund to ensure it is within limits specified in the 
Fund’s investment strategy. 

INTEREST RATE RISK 
The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on investments. These 
investments are subject to interest rate risks, which represent the risks that the fair value of future cash 
flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of the changes in market interest rates. The Fund’s 
interest rate risk is routinely monitored by the Investment Panel and its investment advisors. 

CURRENCY RISK 

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund’s currency rate risk is routinely monitored by 
the Fund and its investment advisors in accordance with the Fund’s risk management strategy. 

CREDIT RISK 
Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or a financial instrument will fail to 
discharge an obligation and cause the Fund to incur financial loss. Credit risk is minimised by ensuring 
that the counterparties meet the Fund’s credit criteria. The Fund has also set limits as to the maximum 
percentage of the deposits placed with any class of financial institution. 

LIQUIDITY RISK 
Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund will not be able to meets its financial obligations as they 
fall due. The Fund therefore takes steps to ensure that there are adequate cash resources to meet its 
commitments, and the Fund has immediate access to its cash holdings. 

OTHER RISKS 
Actions taken by the Government, or changes to European legislation, could result in stronger local 
funding standards, which could materially affect the Council’s cash flow. 

There is a risk that changes in the assumptions (e.g. life expectancy, price inflation, discount rate) could 
increase the defined benefit obligation and/or the liabilities for actuarial valuation purposes. Other 
assumptions used to value the defined material benefit obligation are also uncertain, although their 
effect is less material. The sensitivity analysis below indicates the change in the defined benefit 
obligation for changes in the key assumptions. Page 85



P A G E  | 62 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

AMENDMENTS, CURTAILMENTS AND SETTLEMENTS 
The provisions of the Fund were amended with effect from 1 April 2014. As explained above, for service 
up to 31 March 2014 benefits were based on salaries when members leave the scheme, whereas for 
service after that date benefits are based on a career average salary. Further details of the changes are 
available from the Funds Administering Authority. 

Curtailments shown in the accounting figures relate to the cost of providing retirement benefits for 
members who retire early, to the extent that the provision has not already been made for the relevant 
defined benefit obligations. 

Settlements shown in the accounting figures relate to the admission of new employers into the Fund, 
and who take on part of the Council’s assets and liabilities as a result of employing members who have 
accrued benefits with the Council. 

TRANSACTIONS RELATING TO POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by 
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge we are 
required to make against Council Tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-
employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year: 

Table a - Reconc i l iation of the Movement in the 

Pension Fund 

2016/17

£000s

2017/18

£000s

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Cost of Services:

Current service costs 1,427              2,017              

Administration Costs 31                    30                    

Past service costs and settlements and curtailments 56                    152                  

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
Net interest expense 2,030              1,503              

Total  Post-employment Benefit Charged to the 

Surplus or Defic it on the Provision of Serv ices 3 ,544         3 ,702         

Other Post-employment Benefits charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising :-

Return on plan assets 14,198            -                       

Actual gains and losses arising on changes in demographic 

assumptions 1,531              -                       

Actual gains and losses arising on changes in financial 

assumptions (35,688)           6,386              

Remeasurements (assets) gain/(loss) 15,038            1,493              

Total  Post-employment Benefit Charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (4 ,921)        7 ,879         

Movement in Reserves Statement

Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services for post-employment benefits in 

accordance with the Code 3,544              3,702              

Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for 

pensions in the year:
Employers' contributions payable to the scheme (2,806)             (2,889)             

In  Year Increase/(Decrease) in  Pension Reserve              738               813   
 

Page 86



P A G E  | 63 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement on pension assets and liabilities at 31 March 2018 was a loss of £3.702m 
compared with a loss of £3.544m as at 31 March 2017. 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES IN RELATION TO POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation): 

Table b - Reconc i l iation of Present Value of the 

Scheme Liabi l ities

2016/17

£000s

 2017/18

£000s

O pening balance at 1  Apri l 178,775     200,331     

Current service cost 1,427              2,017              

Interest cost 6,151              4,926              

Contributions from scheme participants 411                  400                  

Remeasurement (gains) and losses:-

Experience (gains) / loss (14,198)           -                       

Actuarial (gains) and losses from changes in financial 

assumptions 35,688            (6,386)             

Actuarial (gains) and losses from changes in demographic 

assumptions (1,531)             -                       

Benefits paid (6,448)             (6,836)             

Losses / (gains) on curtailments 56                    152                  

Closing balance at 31  March       200,331       194,604 
 

 

PENSION ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RECOGNISED IN THE BALANCE SHEET 
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Council’s obligation in respect of its defined 
benefit plan is as follows: 

Table c  - Pensions Assets and Liabil ities Recognised in 

the Balance Sheet

2016/17

£000s

 2017/18

£000s

Present Value of the defined benefit obligation 200,331          194,604          
Fair value of plan assets (135,270)        (136,609)        

Sub-total 65,061       57 ,995       

Other Movements in the liability / (asset) -                       -                       

Net Liabil ity  arising from defined benefit obligation         65 ,061         57 ,995  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme (plan) assets: 

Table d - Reconc il iation of the Movements in the Fair 

Value of Scheme (P lan) Assets

2016/17

£000s

 2017/18

£000s

Opening fair value of scheme assets 119,373          135,270          

Interest Income 4,121              3,423              

Remeasurement (assets) gain/(loss) 15,038            1,493              

Contributions from employer 2,806              2,889              

Contributions from employees into the scheme 411                  400                  

Benefits paid (6,448)             (6,836)             
Other (31)                   (30)                   

Closing fair value of scheme assets       135,270       136,609 
 

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on 
the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are 
based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. Expected returns on equity investments 
reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets.  

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was £4.916m (£19.159m in 2016/17). 

 
 
 
 Page 87



P A G E  | 64 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

SCHEME HISTORY 
 

Table e - Pension Assets and Liabil ities Recognised in 

the Balance Sheet

2016/17

£000s

 2017/18

£000s

Present value of the funded benefit obligation 192,625          187,338          

Present value of the unfunded benefit obligation 7,706              7,266              
Fair value of plan assets (135,270)        (136,609)        

Net Liabil ity  arising from defined benefit obligation         65,061         57,995  
 

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay post-
employment (retirement) benefits. The total net liability of £57.995m has a substantial impact on the 
net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resulting in a net overall balance of 
£19.167m. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of 
the Council remains healthy. The deficit on the Local Government scheme will be made good by 
increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees (i.e. before payments fall due), as 
assessed by the scheme actuary. 

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the Council in 
the year to 31 March 2019 is £2.755m.  

BASIS FOR ESTIMATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an 
estimation of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependant on assumptions about 
mortality rates, salary levels, etc. The Local Government Pension Scheme has been assessed by Mercer 
Human Resource Consulting, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the County Council Fund 
being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 1 April 2016. 

The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been: 
 
Table f  - Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabi l ities 2016/17 2017/18

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

Men 22.6 22.7                 

Women 25.2 25.4                 

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

Men 24.9 25.0                 

Women 27.9 28.0                 

Rate of inflation - CPI 2.30% 2.10%

Rate of increase in salaries 3.80% 3.60%

Rate of increase in pensions 2.30% 2.20%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.50% 2.60%  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88



P A G E  | 65 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The Local Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of the 
total assets held: 
 
Table g - Local  Government Pension Scheme assets 

comprised:-

2016/17

£000s

 2017/18

£000s

Cash & Cash Equivalents 1 ,404         (571)           

Bonds

Corporate 2,221              2,401              

UK Fixed Gilts 259                  -                       

UK Index Linked 2,418              3,260              

Overseas Fixed Interest -                       132                  

Sub-total  Bonds 4,898         5 ,793         

Property

Retail 3,682              3,757              

Commercial 8,235              9,091              

Sub-total  Property 11,917       12 ,848       

Private Equity

UK 1,534              -                       

Overseas 7,173              9,916              

Sub-total  Private Equity 8 ,707         9 ,916         

O ther Investment Funds

Infrastructure 16,322            17,312            

Credit Funds 30,312            25,171            

Property 1,907              2,075              

Overseas Pooled Equity Funds 59,803            60,695            

Pooled Fixed Income -                       3,370              

Sub-total  O ther Investment Funds 108,344     108,623     

Total  Assets       135,270       136,609  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 89



P A G E  | 66 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Under IFRS the assumptions made by the actuary must be subjected to a sensitivity analysis. Below are 
the main assumptions used by the actuary and the effects on the pension fund accounts if those 
assumptions are changed. 
 

Table h - Local Government Pension Scheme 

Sensitiv ity  Analysis

Increase in 

Assumptions

£000s

Decrease in 

Assumptions

£000s

Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 Year) 3,999              (3,999)             

Rate of Inflation (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 2,976              (2,976)             

Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 286                  (286)                

Rate of discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 

0.1%) (2,930)             2,930               
 

The methods used to carry out the sensitivity analyses are presented above for the material 
assumptions which are the same as those the Council has used previously. The calculations alter the 
relevant assumption by the amount specified, whilst assuming that all the other variables remain the 
same. The approach is not necessarily realistic, since some assumptions are related: for example, if the 
scenario is to show the effect if inflation is higher than expected, it might be reasonable to expect that 
nominal yields on corporate bonds will increase also. However, it enables the reader to isolate one 
effect from another. 

  

Page 90



P A G E  | 67 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 30 Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability is a potential liability which depends on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events. Pension guarantees previously reported as a contingent liability are 
now accounted for as a provision (see Note 16). The Council has identified no contingent liabilities as at 
31st March 2018.  

Note 31 Nature and Extent of Risks arising from Financial 
Instruments 

The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: 

 Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council 

 Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its 
commitments to make payments 

 Market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes in 
such measures as interest rates and stock market movements. 

The Council’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services. Risk 
management is carried out by the Finance and Property Unit, under policies approved by Burnley 
Borough Council in the annual treasury management strategy. The Council provides written principles 
for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, 
credit risk, and the investment of surplus cash. 

CREDIT RISK 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the 
Council’s customers. Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they are rated 
independently. The Council has a policy of not lending more than a certain amount to any one 
institution dependent upon the rating of that institution as approved by Link Asset Services (formerly 
Capita). The maximum amounts invested in any institution was £4m. In the case of the Council’s own 
bankers the limit is set at £15m. 

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past 
experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set in accordance with internal ratings in 
accordance with parameters set by the Council. 

The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its deposits in banks and building societies 
of £14.1m cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments 
or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown 
that it is rare for British based banks and building societies to be unable to meet their commitments. A 
risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Council’s deposits, but there was no evidence at the 31 March 
2018 that this was likely to occur. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91



P A G E  | 68 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The following analysis summarises the Council’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk on financial 
assets, based on experience of default and uncollectability over the last five financial years, adjusted to 
reflect current market conditions. The Council’s impairment allowance for doubtful debts at 31 March 
2018 totals £3.948m. Included within this amount is a general provision of £2.656m for customers such 
as trade debtors, excluding Council Tax and Business Rate payers. It is believed that the Council has 
provided more than sufficient to cover for future losses due to default.  
 

Table a - Credit Risk

A

Amount at 

31  March 

2018

£000s

B

Historical  

experience of 

default

%

C

Historical  

experience 

adjusted for 

market 

conditions at 

31  March 2018

%

(AxC)

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure to 

default 

and un- 

col lec tabi l ity  at 

31  March 2018

£000s

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure 

at 31  

March 

2017

£000s

Deposits with other banks and 

financial institutions (see note 

12a) 14,052          0.00% 0.00% -                             -                 

Customers (see note 13) 8,179            54.98% 48.27% 3,948                    3,759        

              3 ,948      3 ,759  
 

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and the Council does not expect any losses 
from non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits. 
 
The Council expects settlement terms from debtors of no greater than 14 days, such that £4.179m of 
the £8.179m balance is past its due date for payment. The past due but not impaired amount can be 
analysed by age as follows: 
 

Table b - Customer Debt 

Past Due Date

31 March 

2017

£000s

31 March 

2018

£000s

Less than three months                 174                       45 

Three to six months                    74                     135 

Six months to one year                 863                 1,518 
More than one year              2,946                 2,481 

        4 ,057            4 ,179  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 92



P A G E  | 69 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

LIQUIDITY RISK 
The Council has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is 
available as needed. If unexpected movements happen, the Council has ready access to borrowings 
from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. There is no significant risk that it will be 
unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. Instead, the risk is that the 
Council will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its borrowings at a time of unfavourable 
interest rates. For loans with more than one year to maturity, the strategy is to ensure that not more 
than £2m of loans are due to mature within any one year through a combination of careful planning of 
new loans taken out and (where it is economic to do so) making early repayments. The maturity analysis 
of financial liabilities is as follows: 
 

Table c  - Liquidity  Risk

31  March 

2017

£000s

31 March 

2018

£000s

Less than one year 1,029            1,062                

Between one and two years 1,015            1,410                

Between two and five years 4,613            4,276                

Between five and ten years 5,990            5,954                

Between ten and fifteen years 1,037            -                         

More than fifteen years 6,932            11,432             

      20 ,616           24 ,134   
 

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year. 

 
MARKET RISK 
Interest Rate Risk 
The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and 
investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Council. For instance, a rise in 
interest rates would have the following effects: 

 Borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services will rise 

 Borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the borrowings will fall 

 Deposits at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services will rise 

 Deposits at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall. 

Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings would not 
impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure. However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and 
investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and affect the General 
Fund Balance. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments that have a quoted market price 
will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The policy is to aim to keep a 
maximum of 25% of its borrowings in variable rate loans. During periods of falling interest rates, and 
where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate loans will be repaid early to limit exposure 
to losses. The risk of loss is reduced by the fact that a proportion of Government grant payable on 
financing costs will normally move with prevailing interest rates or the Council’s cost of borrowing and 
provide compensation for a proportion of any higher costs. 

 
 
 Page 93



P A G E  | 70 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The treasury management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that feeds 
into the setting of the annual budget and which is used to update the budget periodically during the 
year. This allows any adverse changes to be accommodated. The analysis will also advise whether new 
borrowing taken out is fixed or variable. 

According to this assessment strategy, at 31 March 2018, if interest rates had been 1% higher with all 
other variables held constant, the financial effect would be: 
 

Table d - Market Risk

31  March 

2017

£000s

31 March 

2018

£000s

Increase in interest receivable on 

variable rate investments
(159)              (138)                  

Impact on Surplus or Defic it 

on the Provision of Serv ices
(159)         (138)            

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate 

borrowings liabilities (no impact 

on the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services or Other 

Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure)

2,649            3,507                

 
 

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed. 
  

Page 94



P A G E  | 71 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 

Page 95



P A G E  | 72 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  COLLECTION FUND 

 

Supplementary Financial Statement 
THE COLLECTION FUND STATEMENT 

 

Business Rates

£

Counc i l  Tax

£

31 March 

2017 Total

£ CO LLECTIO N FUND 2017/18

Business Rates

£2

Counc i l  Tax

£3

31 March 

2018 Total

£

Income

-                           (38,714,184)      (38,714,184)      Council Tax Receivables -                           (40,577,922)      (40,577,922)      

(29,967,611)      -                           (29,967,611)      Business Rates Receivables (27,202,925)      -                           (27,202,925)      

14,022               (78)                      13,944               

Transitional Relief Payments 

(Receivable)/Payable 2,093,134          (688)                    2,092,446          

(29 ,953,589) (38 ,714,262) (68 ,667,851) (25 ,109,791) (40 ,578,610) (65 ,688,401) 

Expenditure

Apportionment of Previous Year 

Surplus /  (Defic it)

(2,951,154)        -                           (2,951,154)        Central Government (594,424)            -                           (594,424)            

(2,360,923)        81,364               (2,279,559)        Burnley Borough Council (475,538)            81,364               (394,174)            

(531,208)            337,236             (193,972)            Lancashire County Council (106,996)            343,337             236,341             

(59,023)              19,361               (39,662)              Lancashire Fire & Rescue Authority (11,888)              19,141               7,253                  

-                           47,479               47,479               

Police and Crime Commissioner for 

Lancashire -                           47,407               47,407               

(5 ,902,308)   485,440        (5 ,416,868)   (1 ,188,846)   491,249        (697,597)      

Precepts, Demands and Shares

14,073,832       -                           14,073,832       Central Government 12,331,845       -                           12,331,845       

11,259,066       6,204,544          17,463,610       Burnley Borough Council 9,865,476          6,483,324          16,348,800       

2,533,290          25,930,335       28,463,625       Lancashire County Council 2,219,732          27,585,667       29,805,399       

281,477             1,445,651          1,727,128          Lancashire Fire & Rescue Authority 246,637             1,478,925          1,725,562          

-                           3,580,358          3,580,358          

Police and Crime Commissioner for 

Lancashire -                           3,735,696          3,735,696          

28 ,147,665   37 ,160,888   65 ,308,553   24 ,663,690   39 ,283,612   63 ,947,302   

Charges to the Col lec tion Fund

481,603             (1,560)                480,043             

Less write offs of uncollectable 

amounts 430,886             132,483             563,369             

(58,075)              584,181             526,106             

Less: Increase / (Decrease) in Bad Debt 

Provision 61,940               738,172             800,112             

(316,817)            -                           (316,817)            

Less: Increase / Decrease in Provision 

for Appeals (114,582)            -                           (114,582)            

151,284             -                           151,284             Less: Cost of Collection 148,995             -                           148,995             

238,391             -                           238,391             Less: Renewable Energy Schemes 234,277             -                           234,277             

3,683                  -                           3,683                  Less: Interest on Refunds -                           -                           -                           

500,069        582,621        1 ,082,690     761,516        870,655        1 ,632,171     

CO LLECTIO N FUND BALANCE

(7 ,208,163)   (485,313)      (7 ,693,476)   

(Suplus) /  Defic it arising during 

the year (873,431)      66 ,906          (806,525)      

7,064,893          (798,651)            6,266,242          (Surplus) /  Deficit b/fwd 1 April (143,270)            (1,283,964)        (1,427,234)        

(143,270)      (1 ,283,964)   (1 ,427,234)   (Surplus) /  Defic it c / fwd 31  March (1 ,016,701)   (1 ,217,058)   (2 ,233,759)   

Al located to:

(57,308)              (210,468)            (267,776)            Burnley Borough Council (406,680)            (195,844)            (602,524)            

(12,894)              (901,446)            (914,340)            Lancashire County Council (91,503)              (858,821)            (950,324)            

-                           (122,987)            (122,987)            

Police and Crime Commissioner for 

Lancashire -                           (117,070)            (117,070)            

(1,433)                (49,063)              (50,496)              Lancashire Fire & Rescue Authority (10,167)              (45,323)              (55,490)              

(71,635)              -                           (71,635)              Central Government (508,351)            -                           (508,351)            

(143,270)      (1 ,283,964)   (1 ,427,234)   (1 ,016,701)   (1 ,217,058)   (2 ,233,759)    Page 96



P A G E  | 73 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  COLLECTION FUND 

 

Notes to the Collection Fund Statement 

Note 1  General 
The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation of billing authorities to 
maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in 
relation to the collection from taxpayers of Council Tax and Non-Domestic Business Rates (NDR) and its 
distribution to precepting bodies and the Government. For Burnley the precepting bodies are Lancashire 
County Council (LCC), the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire (PCCL) and the Lancashire Fire 
and Rescue Authority (LFRA). 

The Council has a statutory requirement to operate a Collection Fund as a separate account to the 
General Fund. The purpose of the Collection Fund therefore, is to isolate the income and expenditure 
relating to Council Tax and Non-Domestic Business Rates. The administration costs associated with the 
collection process are charged to the General Fund.  

Note 2  Council Tax 
Council Tax income derives from charges raised according to the value of residential properties, which 
have been classified into nine valuation bands (A to H) for this specific purpose. Individual charges are 
calculated by estimating the amount of income required to be taken from the Collection Fund by the 
Council for the forthcoming year and dividing this by the Council Tax base (i.e. the equivalent number of 
Band D dwellings). 

The Council Tax base was 22,579 for 2017/18 (22,071 for 2016/17). The increase between financial years 
evidences the success of the local policy to regenerate the borough by the continued growth of new 
builds and occupied properties within the local tax base. 

The basic amount of Council Tax for a Band D property (£1,735.73 for 2017/18 (£1,680.34 for 2016/17)) 
is multiplied by the proportion specified for the particular band to give an individual amount due.  

The balance on the Council Tax element of the Collection Fund at 31 March 2018 was a surplus of 
£1,217,058 which includes a deficit for the year of £66,906. 
 
COUNCIL TAX BASE 
The Council Tax base for 2017/18 was approved at the Council meeting on 22 February 2017.  Details 
are shown below: 
 

Band Ratio

Number of 

properties

Band D 

equivalent

A Reduced 5/9 28                     15                

A 6/9 15,767             10,511        

B 7/9 4,390               3,415           

C 8/9 5,349               4,755           

D 9/9 2,527               2,527           

E 11/9 1,159               1,416           

F 13/9 297                   429              

G 15/9 116                   193              

H 18/9 8                       17                

Total 29 ,641        23 ,278    

Less: Allowance for non-collection 3.0% 699         

Taxbase for year 22,579     

Page 97



P A G E  | 74 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  COLLECTION FUND 

 

Note 3  Council Tax Due  
The calculation of the tax due is derived from the Council Tax base for the year calculated in accordance 
with the provisions of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.  The Band D Council Tax for the year 
2017/18 was calculated as follows: 

 

Counc il  Tax Due

2017/18

£

Lancashire County Council 27,585,667     

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire 3,735,696       

Lancashire Fire and Rescue Authority 1,478,925       

Burnley Borough Council 6,390,760       

Briercliffe with Extwistle Parish Council 15,000             

Cliviger Parish Council 10,000             

Habergham Eaves Parish Council 5,000               

Hapton Parish Council 10,000             

Ightenhill Parish Council 1,500               

Padiham Town Council 35,364             

Worsthorne with Hurstwood Parish Council 15,700             

Total  to be met from Counc il  Tax 39,283,612  
 

Divided by the Council Tax Base (22,579) this gives an average Band D Council Tax for the year 2017/18 
of £1,739.83 (£1,683.70 in 2016/17). This is slightly higher than the figure in Note 2 due to the inclusion 
above of the parish and town council precept amounts. 

Note 4  Non-Domestic Rates 
The Council collects Non-Domestic Business Rates (NDR) for its area based on local rateable values 
provided by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) multiplied by a uniform business rate set by Central 
Government.  

The scheme allows the Council to retain a proportion of the total NDR received. The Burnley share is 
40% with the remainder paid to the precepting bodies. For Burnley the NDR precepting bodies are 
Central Government (50% share), LCC (9% Share) and LFRA (1% Share).  

For 2017/18, the total non-domestic rateable value for the Council’s area at 31 March 2018 was 
£74,979,210 (£74,932,876 at 31 March 2017). The national multipliers for 2017/18 were 46.6p for 
qualifying small businesses (48.4p in 2016/17) and the standard multiplier being 47.9p for all other 
businesses (49.7p in 2016/17).   

NDR surpluses declared by the billing authority in relation to the Collection Fund are apportioned to the 
relevant precepting bodies in the subsequent financial year in their respective proportions. Deficits 
likewise are proportionately charged to the relevant precepting bodies in the following year.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 98



P A G E  | 75 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  COLLECTION FUND 

 

Note 5  Lancashire Business Rates Pool 
During 2016/17 this Council was part of the Lancashire Business Rates Pool which began on 1 April 2016. 
In a Business Rate Pool, tariffs, top-ups, levies and safety nets can be combined. This can result in a 
significantly lower levy rate or even a zero levy rate meaning that more or all of the business rate 
growth can be retained within the pool area instead of being payable to the Government. 
The Lancashire Business Rates Pool, which includes most but not all of the local authorities in 
Lancashire, has been designated by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government and 
the retained levy in Lancashire has been distributed as follows: 

 Lancashire County Council is paid 10% of the overall retained levy; 

 Each district within the pool retains 90% of their levy.  

With regard to this Council, the retained levy for 2016/17 would be £678,064, hence under pooling we 
have benefited from extra income of £610,258. Lancashire County Council has received the remaining 
10% of retained levy. 

During 2017/18 this Council decided to withdraw from the Lancashire Business Rates Pool. As a result 
the Council did not benefit from any retained levy. 

 
  

Page 99



P A G E  | 76 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  COLLECTION FUND 

 

 

Page 100



P A G E  | 77 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

Accounting Policies 
I. GENERAL PRINCIPLES 

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2017/18 financial year and its 
position at the year-end of 31 March 2018. The Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of 
Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which those Regulations require to be prepared 
in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 (the Code) supported by International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified 
by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 

The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the assumption that the Council will 
continue in existence for the foreseeable future. 

II. ACCRUALS OF EXPENDITURE & INCOME 

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received. In particular: 

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant risks and 
rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably the 
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.  

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between 
the date supplies are received and their consumption; they are carried as inventories on the 
Balance Sheet.  

 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded 
as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made. 

 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as 
income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.  

 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a 
debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may 
not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the 
income that might not be collected. 

III. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – (SEE NOTE 14) 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty 
on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in three 
months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are 
shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s 
cash management.  

 

 Page 101



P A G E  | 78 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

IV. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS, CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES 
AND ERRORS 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material 
error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future 
years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the 
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and 
conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is 
applied retrospectively (unless otherwise stated) by adjusting opening balances and comparative 
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.  

V. CHARGES TO REVENUE FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the 
cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service. 

 Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off. 

 Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service. 

The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses 
or amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the 
reduction in its overall borrowing requirement. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and 
amortisation are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance (Minimum 
Revenue Provision (MRP)) by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 

VI. COUNCIL TAX AND NON-DOMESTIC RATES 

Billing authorities such as Burnley Council, act as agents, collecting Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates 
(NDR) on behalf of the major preceptors (including Government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting 
Council Tax and NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate 
fund (ie the Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of Council Tax 
and NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors 
and Central Government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of Council Tax 
and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted. 

ACCOUNTING FOR COUNCIL TAX AND NDR 

The Council Tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is 
the Council’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the amount of 
Council Tax and NDR that must be included in the Council’s General Fund. Therefore the difference 
between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the 
amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund 
Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

The Balance Sheet includes the Council’s share of the end of year balances in respect of Council Tax and 
NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowance for doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and 
appeals. 

 Page 102



P A G E  | 79 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

VII. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS – (SEE NOTES 18F, 23 AND 29) 

BENEFITS PAYABLE DURING EMPLOYMENT 

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year-end. 
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave for current 
employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service 
to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements earned by employees but not 
taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year, see Note 18f. 
The accrual is made at the salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in 
which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday 
entitlements are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 

Full details of employee benefits paid during employment for senior officers are shown at Note 23.  

TERMINATION BENEFITS – (SEE NOTE 23) 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an 
officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary 
redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate 
service or, where applicable , to the non-distributed costs line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement when the Council is demonstrably committed to the termination of the 
employment of an officer. 

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or 
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to 
remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them 
with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but 
unpaid at the year-end. 

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – (SEE NOTE 29) 
Most employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by 
Lancashire County Council.  It is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme providing retirement lump 
sums and pensions earned as employees working for the Council: 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME  
The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 

 The liabilities of the Lancashire County Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in 
the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – this entails an 
assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to 
date by employees, based upon assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates and 
projected future earnings for current employees. 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.6% (based 
upon the indicative rate of return on an AA corporate bond - not the highest quality AAA bond 
but nevertheless a “high grade” bond). 

 

 The assets of the Lancashire County Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the 
Balance Sheet at their fair value – quoted securities at current bid price, unquoted securities by 
means of a professional estimate, unitised securities at the current bid price and property at 
market value. 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: Page 103



P A G E  | 80 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

 Service cost comprising: 
- Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned in the 
year and allocated to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services 
for which the employees worked. 
- Past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or 
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years. This is debited to 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as part of Non-Distributed Costs. 
- Net interest on the net defined  benefit liability (asset), ie net interest expense for the 
Council – the change during the period in the net defined  benefit liability (asset) that arises 
from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this is calculated by applying 
the discount  rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the 
period to the net defined  benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period – taking into 
account any changes in the net defined  benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result 
of contribution and benefit payments. 

 Remeasurements comprising: 
- The return on plan assets - excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) - charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure. 
- Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events 
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 
actuaries have updated their assumptions - charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

 Contributions paid to the Lancashire County Pension Fund – cash paid as employer’s 
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged 
with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not 
the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves 
Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension 
fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at year-end. The negative balance that 
arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being 
required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits that are 
earned by employees. 

VIII. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD – (SEE NOTE 3) 

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for 
issue.  Two types of events can be identified: 

 Adjusting Events - those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 
reporting period. The Statement of Account is adjusted to reflect such events. 

 Non-adjusting Events – those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting 
period. The Statement of Account is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of 
events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events 
and their estimated financial effect.  

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts. 

Page 104



P A G E  | 81 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS – (SEE NOTES 12 AND 31) 
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at 
their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying 
amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective rate 
of interest is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the 
instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised. 

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance 
Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest), and interest charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the 
loan agreement. 

Gains and Losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has taken place as part of 
a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of existing instruments, 
the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new or 
modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread 
over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate. 

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread over future years. 
The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was remaining on the loan 
against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it is repaid. When a premium or 
discount has been incurred and paid in full by a grant from an external body it is accounted for in full in 
the year that the grant was received. The reconciliation of the amounts charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is 
managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instrument Adjustment Account in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 

FINANCIAL ASSETS 
These are classified into two types: 

 Loans and Receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in 
an active market. 

  Available for sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or 
determinable payments. 

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES 
Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are 
subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure Line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable 
are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the amount presented in 
the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan 
agreement.  

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments 
due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the relevant 
service (for receivables specific to that service) of the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure Page 105



P A G E  | 82 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The impairment loss is measured as the 
difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows 
discounted at the assets original effective interest rate. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

AVAILABLE FOR SALE ASSETS 
Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value. 
Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for 
the instrument. Where there are no fixed or determinable payments, income (e.g. dividends) is credited 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by the Council. 

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following techniques: 

 instruments with quoted market prices – the market price 

 other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis 

 equity shares with no quoted market prices – independent appraisal of company valuations. 

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three 
levels: 

 Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the Council 

can access at the measurement date. 

 Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 

the asset, either directly or indirectly. 

 Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset. 

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and the gain/loss is 
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for-sale Financial Assets. The exception 
is where impairment losses have been incurred – these are debited to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with any 
net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve. 

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments 
due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value falls below cost, 
the asset is written down and a charge is made to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. If the asset has fixed or 
determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying 
amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original 
effective interest rate. Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against 
the acquisition cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation). 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited and debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the Available-for-Sale 
Reserve. 
Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any impairment 
losses). 
 
 

Page 106



P A G E  | 83 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

X. GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS – (SEE NOTE 25) 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, Government grants and third party contributions 

and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that: 

 The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

 The grants or contributions will be received. 

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. 
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied 
in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as 
specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in 
the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to 
the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific 
Grant Income and Expenditure (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has 
yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. 
Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital 
Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been 
applied to fund capital expenditure. 

XI. HERITAGE ASSETS – (SEE NOTES 10) 

Tangible and Intangible Heritage Assets 

The Council’s Heritage Assets are held at Towneley Hall Art Gallery & Museum and Burnley Town Hall. 
The Council has seven collections of heritage assets which are held principally for their contribution to 
knowledge, understanding and appreciation of the Council’s history and local area. Heritage Assets are 
recognised and measured (including treatment of revaluation gains and losses) in accordance with the 
Council’s accounting policies on property, plant and equipment. However, some of the measurement 
rules are relaxed allowing the Council’s heritage assets to be included on the Balance Sheet at their 
insured value where available.  

Heritage assets are deemed to have an indefinite life, and therefore are not depreciated as the charge 
would be minimal and immaterial. Nevertheless, where there is evidence of physical deterioration, or 
doubts arise as to its authenticity, the value of the asset has to be reviewed.   

XII. INTANGIBLE ASSETS  

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 
Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future 
economic benefits or service potential will flow from intangible asset to the Council. 

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically 
feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the Council will 
be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the 
asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is 
restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research expenditure cannot be capitalised). 

This Council does not have any internally generated assets. 
Page 107



P A G E  | 84 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

Expenditure on the development of website is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 
intended to promote or advertise the Council’s goods or services. 

Intangible Assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the 
assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible 
asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The 
depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service lines in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The useful lives and associated amortisation 
rates of computer software have been estimated at 5 years. An asset is tested for impairment whenever 
there is an indication that the asset might be impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the 
relevant service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising 
on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on 
the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale 
proceeds greater then £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

XIII. INVENTORIES AND LONG TERM CONTRACTS 

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of 
inventories is assigned using the FIFO/weighted average costing formula. Long-term contracts are 
accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services with the value 
of works and services received under the contract during the financial year.  

XIV. INVESTMENT PROPERTY – (SEE NOTE 11) 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation. The 
definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production 
of goods or is held for sale. 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the price that 
would be receivable to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
measurement date. As a non-financial asset, Investment Properties are measured at highest and best 
use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the 
year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is 
applied to gains and losses on disposal. 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment 
Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains 
and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. 
The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater 
than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

XV. LEASES – (SEE NOTE 28) 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All 
other leases are classified as operating leases.  

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification.  

Page 108



P A G E  | 85 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for 
payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the 
use of specific assets.  

THE AUTHORITY AS LESSEE  
Finance Leases  
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of 
the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation 
to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the authority are added to the carrying amount of the asset. 
Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are 
charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.  

Lease payments are apportioned between:  

 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to write 
down the lease liability, and  

 a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies 
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is 
shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the 
authority at the end of the lease period).  

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment 
losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds 
towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and 
revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General 
Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement 
in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.  

Operating Leases  
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or 
equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not 
match the pattern of payments (eg there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).  

THE AUTHORITY AS LESSOR  
Finance Leases  
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the relevant 
asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the carrying 
amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for 
sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the Council’s net 
investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the 
asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.  

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:  

 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the lease 
debtor (together with any premiums received), and  

 finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).  Page 109



P A G E  | 86 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not 
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital 
receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the 
Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in relation to 
the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of 
the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve. 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is 
fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore 
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.  

Operating Leases  
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset 
is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over 
the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at 
the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are 
added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on 
the same basis as rental income. An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. Where assets are acquired under operating leases 
the leasing rentals payable are recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on 
a straight line basis over the term of the lease.  

XVI. OVERHEADS AND SUPPORT SERVICES 

The cost of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with the 
Council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance. 

XVII. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT – (SEE NOTE 9) 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during 
more than one financial year are classified as property, plant and equipment. 

RECOGNITION  
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is capitalised 
on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits 
or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred. 

MEASUREMENT 
Assets are initially measured at cost comprising: 

 The purchase price 

 Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 

which it is located. 

The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction. 

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition 
does not have commercial substance (ie will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Council). In 
the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying 
amount of the asset given up by the Council. Page 110



P A G E  | 87 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any 
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure line of 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made 
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. Where gains 
are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the 
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

 Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical cost.  

 Dwellings -  fair value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social housing (EUV-

SH) 

 Surplus asset – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and best 

use from a market participants perspective 

 All other assets – current value , determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in 

its existing use (existing use value – EUV) 

Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an asset, 
depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value. 

Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost 
basis is used as a proxy for current value. 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that 
their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as a 
minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to 
recognise unrealised gains. [Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.] 

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:  

 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 

carrying amount is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 

gains). 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service lines in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement. 

The Revaluation reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its 
formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 
 

IMPAIRMENT  
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the 
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 

 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 

carrying amount is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 

gains). 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service lines in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Page 111



P A G E  | 88 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service lines 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, 
adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 

DEPRECIATION 
Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic allocation of 
their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a 
determinable finite useful life (ie freehold land and certain community assets) and assets that are not 
yet available for use (ie assets under construction). 

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 

 Dwellings and other buildings - straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as 

estimated by the valuer. 

 Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – a percentage of the value of each class of assets in 

the Balance Sheet, as advised by a suitably qualified officer. 

 Infrastructure – straight-line allocation over 25 years. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant 
in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately if they have 
different economic useful lives. The minimum value for separate components has been set at £100k as 
it is believed that anything below this would result in a trivial impact on the Council’s accounts. 
However, the major components of land and buildings have already been separated for many years, 
with no depreciation being applied to the land element. 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 

DISPOSALS AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an asset held for sale. The 
asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and 
fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss 
is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised 
in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale.  

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified back to 
non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held 
for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had 
they not been classified as held for sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to 
sell. 

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale. 

When as asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet 
(whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line of the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (ie netted off against the carrying 
value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the 
Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Page 112



P A G E  | 89 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. The receipt is 
required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital 
investment [or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing 
requirement)]. Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
The written off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of the non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated 
to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 

XVIII. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  

PROVISIONS – (SEE NOTE 16) 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive 
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Council may be 
involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of 
compensation. 

Provisions are charges as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured 
at the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, 
taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. 
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than 
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than 
anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 

Provisions have also been made for doubtful debts and known uncollectable debts have been written 
off during the year. The balance of the doubtful debt provision is used to reduce the overall level of 
Short-Term Debtors is disclosed in Note 13. 

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES – (SEE NOTE 30) 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible obligation 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a 
provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 

XIX. RESERVES 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. 
Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund Balance. When expenditure to be 
financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into the General Fund Balance so that there is no net 
charge against council tax for the expenditure. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, local taxation, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources 
for the Council – these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 

 Page 113



P A G E  | 90 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

XX. REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Revenue is a sub-set of income and is defined as the gross inflow of economic benefits or service 
potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an increase in net worth. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. In most cases, the consideration 
receivable is in the form of cash and cash equivalents and the amount of revenue is the amount of cash 
and cash equivalents receivable. Where the Council is acting as an agent of another organisation the 
amounts collected for that organisation are excluded from revenue. 
Revenue relating to the sale of goods is recognised when the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably, it is probable the revenue will be received by the Council and the risks and rewards of 
ownership have passed to the purchaser. Revenue relating to the provision of services is recognised 
when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable the revenue will be received by 
the Council and the stage of completion of the service can be measured. 

XXI. REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE  

This is expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that 
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset. It has been charged as expenditure to the relevant 
service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Council has 
determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a 
transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital 
Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of 
council tax - see workings at Note 7. 

XXII.   VALUE ADDED TAX 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.  

XXIII.   FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets and liabilities such as surplus assets and 
investment properties at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Fair value is the price that would 
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The Council uses in-house valuers to provide a valuation of its assets and liabilities, for recognition or 
disclosure as appropriate, in line with the highest and best use definition within IFRS 13 Fair Value 
Measurement. The highest and best use of the asset or liability being valued is considered from the 
perspective of a market participant. Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of the Council’s fair 
value measurement of its assets and liabilities are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows: 

• Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
Council can access at the measurement date. 

• Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

• Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
  

Page 114



P A G E  | 91 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

 

Page 115



P A G E  | 92 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  GLOSSARY 

 

Glossary of Terms 
 

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 

The period of time covered by the accounts, 12 months commencing on 1 April and ending on 31 March 
(the balance sheet date). 

ACCRUAL 

The concept is that income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or incurred and not as 
money is received or paid. 

ACTUARIAL GAINS AND LOSSES 

For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because 
events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation (experience gains 
and losses) or the actuarial assumptions have changed. 

AGENCY SERVICES 

Services provided by the Council, as an agent on behalf of the responsible body, where that body 
reimburses the Council for the cost of the work carried out. 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (AGS) 

The formal statement that recognises, records and publishes a local Authority’s governance 
arrangements. 

ASSET 

A resource controlled by the Authority as a result of past events and from which future economic or 
service potential is expected to flow to the Authority. 

AUDITOR’S OPINION 

The opinion required by statute, from the Council’s external auditors, indicating whether the statement 
of accounts give a true & fair view of the financial position of the Authority. 

BALANCE SHEET 

A statement of recorded assets, liabilities and other balances at the end of the accounting period. 

BALANCES 

The capital or revenue reserves of the Council made up of the accumulated surplus of income over 
expenditure on the General Fund or any other fund. 

BUDGET 

A statement of the Council’s spending plans for revenue and capital expenditure over a specified period 
of time. 

CAPITAL ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT 

Represents the amounts set aside from revenue resources or capital receipts to finance expenditure on 
fixed assets or to make repayments relating to external loans or other types of capital finance. 

CAPITAL CHARGE 

A charge to revenue accounts to reflect the cost of fixed assets used in the provision of services. 

 

Page 116



P A G E  | 93 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  GLOSSARY 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

Spending on the acquisition and substantial renovation of assets either directly by the Council or 
indirectly in the form of grants to other persons or bodies. The Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the UK defines “expenditure for capital purposes”. Expenditure which does not fall within 
the definition must be charged to a revenue account. 

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS 

The annual cost of borrowing (principal repayments and interest charges), leasing charges and other 
costs of funding capital expenditure. 

CAPITAL GRANTS UNAPPLIED 
Government grants and other contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis and recognised in the 
accounting statements when the conditions for their receipt have been complied with. This reserve 
holds the balance of grants unapplied at year-end. 

CAPITAL RECEIPTS 

Income from the sale of capital assets. Such income may only be used for purposes authorised by 
regulations under Local Government Act 2003, for example to repay loan debt and to finance new 
capital expenditure. 

CAPITAL RECEIPTS - DEFERRED 

These represent amounts derived from the sale of assets, which will be received in instalments over 
agreed periods of time. 

CARRYING AMOUNT 

Is the amount at which an asset is recognised after deducting any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. 

CIPFA 

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountants is the accountancy body which recommends 
accounting practice for the preparation of local authority accounts. 

CIPFA PRUDENTIAL CODE 

This Code was introduced from 1 April 2004. The basic principle of the Code is that local authorities will 
be free to invest so long as their capital spending plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. The 
Code sets out indicators that the Authority must use and factors that they must take into account to 
demonstrate that they have fulfilled this objective.  

CODE OF PRACTICE 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) specifies the 
principles and practices of accounting required to give a ‘true and fair’ view of the financial position and 
transactions of a local Authority. 
The Code sets out the proper accounting practices required by section 21(2) of the Local Government 
Act 2003. These proper practices apply to: 

 Statements of Accounts prepared in accordance with the statutory framework established for 

England by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011. 

 The audit of those accounts undertaken in accordance with the statutory framework established by 

section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 for England. 

 

 

 

 Page 117



P A G E  | 94 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  GLOSSARY 

 

The Code prescribes the accounting treatment and disclosures for all normal transactions of a local 
Authority, and is based on the following hierarchy of standards: 

 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) (including International Accounting Standards 

(IASs) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standing 

Interpretations Committee (SIC) interpretations) as adopted by the European Union (i.e. EU-adopted 

IFRS). 

 International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs). 

 UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) (Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs), 

Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (SSAPs) and Urgent Issues Task Force (UITF) Abstracts). 

The Code has effect for financial years commencing on or after 1 April 2010. 

COLLECTION FUND 

The Collection Fund shows the transactions of the Council in relation to the collection from taxpayers 
and distribution to precepting authorities, the Council and the Government of Council Tax and Non-
Domestic Rates. The Collection Fund (England) is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory 
obligation for billing authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the 
transactions of the billing Authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to local 
authorities and the Government of Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates.  

COMMUNITY ASSETS 

Assets that the Council intends to hold in perpetuity that have no determinable useful life and that may 
have restrictions on their disposal. Examples of community assets are parks and historic buildings. 

CONSISTENCY 

The concept that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting period and from one 
period to the next is the same. 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

The combined fund balance sheets of the Council. 

CONTINGENCY SUM 

A sum set aside to provide for foreseen but unquantifiable future commitments or for unforeseen 
expenditure which may become necessary during the year. 

CONTINGENT LIABILITY 

A contingent liability is either: 

(a) A possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the Authority’s control, or 

(b) A present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that a transfer of economic 
benefits will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  

The authoritative rules and controls in place within the Council required to promote openness, 
inclusivity, integrity and accountability. 

COST OF MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION 

An allocation to service accounts of the net cost of the administrative and professional departments 
which support all of the Council’s services. 

CREDITORS 

Are financial liabilities arising from the contractual obligation to pay cash in the future for goods or 
services or other benefits that have been received or supplied and have been invoiced or formally 
agreed with the supplier. 

Page 118



P A G E  | 95 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  GLOSSARY 

 

CURRENT ASSET 

Is an asset that is intended to be sold within the normal operating cycle; the asset is held primarily for 
the purpose of trading or the Authority expects to realise the asset within 12 months after the reporting 
date. 

CURRENT LIABILITY 

An amount which will become payable or could be called in within the next accounting period e.g. 
creditors or cash overdrawn. 

CURRENT SERVICE COST (PENSIONS) 

The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s liabilities expected to arise from 
employee service in the current period. 

DEBT REDEMPTION 

The repayment of external loans previously raised to finance capital expenditure. 

DEBTOR 

Are financial assets not traded in an active market with fixed or determinable payments that are 
contractual rights to receive cash or cash equivalents. 

DEFERRED CHARGES 

Expenditure which does not result in, or remain matched with, tangible assets. An example of a deferred 
charge is expenditure on items such as improvement grants. Deferred charges are written off to the 
revenue account in the year of account. 

DEFERRED DEBTORS 

Debts of a capital nature repayable over a period of time in excess of one accounting period e.g. 
mortgages. 

DEPRECIATION 

The measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the fixed asset that have been consumed 
during the period. Consumption includes the wearing out, using up or other reduction in the useful life 
of a fixed asset whether arising from use, passage of time or obsolescence through either changes in 
technology or demand for the goods and services produced by the asset.  

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 

Material items which derive from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary activities of the 
Council and which need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size or incidence to give a fair 
presentation of the accounts. 

EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN ON PENSIONS ASSETS 

For a funded defined benefit scheme, the average rate of return, including both income and changes in 
fair value but net of scheme expenses, expected over the remaining life of the related obligation on the 
actual assets held by the scheme. 

EXPENSES 

Are decreases in economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period in the form of 
outflows or consumption of assets or increases of liabilities that result in decreases in reserves. 
Expenses include expenses that arise in the course of the ordinary activities and losses such as 
revaluation of fixed assets. 

FAIR VALUE 

Is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an 
arms-length transaction.  

Page 119



P A G E  | 96 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  GLOSSARY 

 

FINANCE LEASE 

A finance lease is one that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed 
asset to the lessee. It should be presumed that such a transfer of risks and rewards occurs if at the 
inception of a lease the present value of the minimum lease payments including any initial payment 
amounts to substantially all (normally 90% or more) of the fair value of the leased asset. 

FINANCIAL YEAR 

In the context of a local Authority this means the period from 1 April to the following 31 March 
inclusive. 

FIXED ASSETS 

Tangible assets that yield benefits to the Council and the services it provides for a period of more than 
one year. 

FORMULA GRANT 

General Government Grant towards the Councils net revenue budget; and which comprises 
entitlements of Revenue Support Grant and the Council’s business rates retained. 

GENERAL FUND 

The main revenue fund of the Council. Day-to-day spending on services is met from the fund. 

GOING CONCERN 

The Authority’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; that is, the accounts 
have been prepared on the assumption that the functions of the Authority will continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future. 

GROSS EXPENDITURE 

The cost of service provision before allowing for Government grants, council taxes and other income. 

HISTORICAL COST 

Is deemed to be the carrying amount of an asset as at 1 April 2007 (i.e. b/f from 31 March 2007) or at 
the date of acquisition, whichever date is the later, and adjusted for subsequent depreciation or 
impairment (if applicable). 

IMPAIRMENT 

This is where the useful working life of an asset is significantly reduced – for example, because of 
damage to a piece of equipment or changes in technology which mean that a service can be provided 
more efficiently in other ways. 

INCOME 

Is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those 
inflows or enhancements of assets or decreases of liabilities result in an increase in reserves. Income 
includes both revenue arising in the course of ordinary activities and gains such as the revaluation of 
fixed assets. 

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS 

Fixed assets that are inalienable, expenditure on which is recoverable only by continued use of the asset 
created. Examples of infrastructure assets are highways and footpaths. 

INTANGIBLE ASSET 

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. It must be 
controlled by the Authority as a result of past events, and future economic or service benefits must be 
expected to flow from the intangible asset to the Authority. The most common class of intangible asset 
in local authorities is computer software. Page 120



P A G E  | 97 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  GLOSSARY 

 

INTEREST COST (PENSIONS) 

For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the period in the present value of the 
scheme liabilities because the benefits are one period closer to settlement. 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

An investment property is one that is used solely to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. 

LEASING 

A method of utilising assets where a rental charge is paid for a specified period of time, instead of 
outright purchase. 

LIABILITIES 

Are present obligations of the entity arising from past events, the settlement of which is expected to 
result in an outflow from the entity of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential. 

LOANS OUTSTANDING 

The total amounts borrowed from external lenders for capital and temporary revenue purposes but not 
repaid at the balance sheet date. 

MATERIALITY 

The relevance of information contained in the financial statements is affected by its nature and 
materiality. Omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or collectively, 
influence the decisions or assessments of users made on the basis of the financial statements. 
Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission or misstatement judged in the surrounding 
circumstances. The nature or size of the item, or a combination of both, could be the determining 
factor. Therefore materiality provides a threshold or cut-off point rather than a primary qualitative 
characteristic which information must have if it is to be useful. An Authority need not comply with the 
Code, as to both disclosure and accounting principles, if the information is not material to the true and 
fair view of the financial statements and to the understanding of users. 

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION 

The minimum amount that the Council must charge to the income and expenditure account to provide 
for the repayment of debt. 

NON-DOMESTIC RATES (NDR) 

With effect from April 1990 all non-domestic properties were revalued and the Government determines 
a national non-domestic rating multiplier every year which is applicable to all local authorities. The 
rateable values are set by the Valuation Office Agency of HM Revenue & Customs, and there is a 
statutory revaluation every 5 years. The proceeds of the business rates are partly retained by the 
Council and the balance is redistributed to the Government, Lancashire County Council and Lancashire 
Fire and Rescue Authority. 

NET EXPENDITURE 

Gross expenditure less specific Government grants and other income. 

NET BOOK VALUE 

The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet, i.e. their historical cost of current 
value, less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation. 

NON-OPERATIONAL ASSETS 

Fixed assets held by the Council but not directly occupied, used or consumed in the delivery of services. 
Examples of non-operational assets are investment property and assets that are surplus to 
requirements, pending sale or redevelopment. 

Page 121



P A G E  | 98 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  GLOSSARY 

 

OPERATING LEASE 

A lease under which the ownership of the asset remains with the lessor; for practical purposes it is 
equivalent to contract hiring. 

OPERATIONAL ASSETS 

Fixed assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the Council in the direct delivery of those services 
for which it has either a statutory or discretionary responsibility. 

PAST SERVICE COST 

For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the present value of the scheme liabilities related to 
employee service in prior periods arising in the current period as a result of the introduction of, or 
improvement to, retirement benefits. 

PRECEPT 

The levy made by precepting authorities (Lancashire County Council, Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Lancashire, Lancashire Fire and Rescue Authority, Town & Parish Councils) on the Council, requiring the 
Council to collect income from Council taxpayers on behalf of the precepting authorities and paying over 
the cash collected to them. 

PROVISION 

An amount set aside in the accounts for liabilities which are certain to be incurred in the future, but 
cannot be quantified accurately at the balance sheet date. 

PRUDENCE 

Accounts should be prepared in accordance with the concept of prudence. Income should only be 
anticipated to the extent that it will be received, as cash or other assets, with reasonable certainty and 
full and proper allowance should be made for all known and foreseeable losses and liabilities. 

PRUDENTIAL FRAMEWORK 

One of the principal features of the Local Government Act 2003 was to provide the primary legislative 
requirements to introduce a new prudential regime for the control of Local Authority capital 
expenditure. The regime relies upon both secondary legislation in the form of regulations, and a 
prudential code which has been published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA). 

Under the prudential framework local authorities are free to borrow without specific Government 
consent if they can afford to service the debt without extra Government support. The basic principle is 
that authorities will be free to invest as long as their capital spending plans are affordable, sustainable 
and prudent. As a control mechanism to ensure this occurs all authorities must follow the prudential 
code published by CIPFA. This involves setting various prudential limits and indicators that must be 
approved by the Council. 

PUBLIC WORKS LOAN BOARD (PWLB) 

A body, now part of the Debt Management Office (a Government agency), which lends money to public 
bodies for capital purposes. At present nearly all borrowers are local authorities. Monies are drawn from 
the National Loans Fund and rates of interest are determined by the Treasury. 

RELATED PARTIES 

Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financial period: 

 One party has direct or indirect control of the other party; or 

 The parties are subject to common control from the same source; or 

 One party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party to an extent 

that the other party might be inhibited from pursing at all times its own separate interests; or Page 122



P A G E  | 99 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  GLOSSARY 

 

 The parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source to such an 

extent that one of the parties to the transaction has subordinated its own separate interests. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance of services by, to, or 
for, a related party irrespective of whether a charge is made. The materiality of related party 
transactions should be judged not only in terms of their significance to the Authority, but also in relation 
to its related party. 

RENT ALLOWANCE 

A subsidy payable by the Council to low-income tenants in private rented accommodation. 

RESERVE 

The residual interest in the assets of the Authority after deducting all its liabilities. The Movement in 
Reserves Statement shows the true economic cost of providing the Authority’s services, represented by 
the line ‘Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services’. Some income and expenditure is required to be 
recognised on a different basis or in a different accounting period (i.e. in accordance with legislation) in 
the General Fund. These differences are shown in the line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and 
funding basis under regulations’. Voluntary transfers to or from the General Fund Balance also affect the 
amount to be funded from Council Tax; these are shown in the line ‘Transfers to or from reserves 
available to fund services’. The Movement in Reserves Statement also shows Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure, for example revaluation gains. 

RESIDUAL VALUE 

Of an asset is the estimated amount that an entity would currently obtain from disposal of the asset, 
after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the condition 
expected at the end of its useful life. 

REVALUATION RESERVE 

From April 2007, this replaced the former Fixed Asset Restatement Account. The Revaluation Reserve 
will, like the Fixed Asset Restatement Account, measure the gains or losses on assets where a 
revaluation has taken place. 

REVENUE ACCOUNT 

An account that records an Authority’s day-to-day expenditure and income on such items as salaries and 
wages and other running costs of services. 

REVENUE EXPENDITURE FINANCED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE (REFFCUS) 

Expenditure to be classified as capital for funding purposes when it does not result in it being carried on 
the balance sheet as a fixed asset. 

REVENUE SUPPORT GRANT (RSG) 

A grant paid by Central Government to every Local Authority to help to finance its expenditure generally 
and not specific services. It is based on the Government’s assessment of how much the Council needs to 
spend in order to provide a standard level of service. 

STOCKS AND WORK IN PROGRESS 

Items of stores and raw materials which have been procured for use on an on-going basis and which 
have not yet been used at the end of the accounting period. 

TEMPORARY LOANS 

Loans where repayment is due to be made or repayment can be demanded, within one year from the 
date of advance. 

Page 123



P A G E  | 100 BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18  GLOSSARY 

 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

This relates to Borrowing and Cash activities (including Investment) of the Authority, and the effective 
management of any associated risks. Local authorities’ treasury management activities are prescribed by 
statute – in England & Wales the source of such powers is the Local Government Act 2003, which 
simplified past complexities and gave further clarification. A local Authority may borrow or invest for 
any purpose relevant to its functions, under any enactment (law) for the purpose of the prudent 
management of its financial affairs. The Council also applies the CIPFA code of practice on treasury 
management in public services. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



Page 125



 

Page 126



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18 

DRAFT
This version of the 

report is a draft. Its 

contents and subject 

matter remain under 

review and its contents 

may change and be 

expanded as part of the 

finalisation of the report.

This draft has been 

created from the 

template dated

DD MMM YYYY

Audit Findings
Year ending 31 March 2018

Burnley Borough Council

19 July 2018

P
age 127



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18 

DRAFT

2

Contents

Section Page

1. Headlines 3

2. Financial statements 4

3. Value for money 12

4. Independence and ethics 14

Appendices

A. Audit adjustments

B. Fees

C. Audit Opinion

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing 

our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify 

control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements 

in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our 

prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report 

was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is 

available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 

Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 

of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

Mark Heap

Director

T:  0161 234 6375

M: 07880 456 204

E: mark.r.heap@uk.gt.com

Marianne Dixon

Manager

T: 0113 200 2699

M: 07880 456 157

E: marianne.dixon@uk.gt.com

P
age 128



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18 

DRAFT

3

Headlines
This table summarises the key issues arising from the statutory audit of Burnley Borough Council (‘the Council’) and the preparation of the Council's financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2018 for those charged with governance.

Financial

Statements

Under the International Standards of Auditing (UK) (ISAs), we are

required to report whether, in our opinion:

• the Council's financial statements give  a true and fair view of the

Council’s financial position and of the Council’s expenditure and 

income for the year, and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the 

CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting and 

prepared in accordance with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014.

We are also required to report whether other information published 

together with the audited financial statements (including the Statement 

of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and Narrative 

Report), is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated.

We received the draft financial statements on the 17th May, a number a weeks in 

advance of the statutory deadline. Good comprehensive working papers were also 

available in advance of the start of our audit visit on the 1 June 2018. This demonstrates 

the Council’s commitment to good quality, timely financial statements.

Finance staff responded promptly and knowledgeably to our questions and queries 

during the audit.

Our audit work was completed on site during June. Our findings are summarised on 

pages 4 to 11. We have not identified any adjustments affecting the Council’s reported 

outturn position which recorded net income of £6,338k. 

We recommended one classification adjustment to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement and a small number of adjustments to improve the presentation 

of the accounts. Audit adjustments are detailed in Appendix A.

Subject to outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit 

opinion following the Audit and Standards Committee meeting on 19 July 2018, as 

detailed in Appendix C. 

We have concluded that the other information published with the financial statements, 

which includes the Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement and Narrative 

Report, are consistent with our knowledge of your organisation and with the financial 

statements we have audited.

Value for Money 

arrangements

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the

Code'), we are required to report whether, in our opinion:

• the Council has made proper arrangements to secure economy,

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources ('the value for

money (VFM) conclusion')

We have completed our risk based review of the Council’s value for money 

arrangements. We have concluded that Burnley Borough Council has proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We therefore anticipate issuing an unqualified value for money conclusion, as detailed in 

Appendix C. Our findings are summarised on pages 12 to 13.

Statutory duties The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) also requires us

to:

• report to you if we have applied any of the additional powers and

duties ascribed to us under the Act; and

• certify the closure of the audit

We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties.

We have completed the majority of work under the Code and expect to be able to certify 

the completion of the audit when we give our audit opinion.

P
age 129



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Burnley Borough Council Report  | 2017/18

DRAFT

4

Summary

Overview of the scope of our audit

This Audit Findings presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to 

the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial reporting 

process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and the Code of 

Audit Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents have been discussed with management and will 

be presented to the Audit and Standards Committee on 19th July 2018. 

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International 

Standards on Auditing (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion 

on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of 

those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve 

management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the 

preparation of the financial statements.

Audit approach

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business 

and is risk based, and in particular included:

• An evaluation of the Council's internal controls environment including its IT systems 

and controls; and

• Substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances, 

including the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

Conclusion

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements and subject to 

outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion 

following the Audit and Standards Committee meeting on 19 July 2018, as detailed in 

Appendix C. These outstanding items include:

• review of final approved Annual Governance Statement;

• our final internal review procedures;

• review of the final set of financial statements;

• obtaining the signed management representation letter; and

• updating our post balance sheet events review, to the date of signing the opinion.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance 

provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Financial statements 

We detail in the table below our assessment of materiality for Burnley Borough 

Council.

Our approach to materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and 

the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure 

requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. 

Materiality calculations remains the same as reported in our audit plan.

Amount (£)

Materiality for the financial statements 1,286,000

Performance materiality 964,000

Trivial matters 64,300

P
age 130



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Burnley Borough Council Report  | 2017/18

DRAFT

5

Going concern

Financial statements

Our responsibility
As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use o f the going concern assumption in the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK) 570). 

Going concern commentary

Management's assessment process

Management have a range of procedures in place to provide 

assurance that the Council remains a going concern including:

• regular review of cash flow ;

• regular review and reporting of financial performance 

against budget;

• regular review and update of the Medium Term Financial 

Strategy; and

• appropriate review, scrutiny and reporting of earmarked 

reserves and General Fund Balance.

Auditor commentary 

• Management have undertaken a thorough review of the risks facing the Council including reduction in 

government funding and pressures on budgets.

• Plans to address the risks are considered realistic and deliverable.

• Overall management processes are considered to be sufficiently robust to demonstrate a well informed view of 

going concern.

Work performed 

Detail audit work performed on management’s assessment.

Auditor commentary

• We have not identified any events or conditions existing that may cast significant doubt on the Council’s ability to 

remain as a going concern.

Concluding comments Auditor commentary

We are satisfied that the financial statements have been appropriately prepared on a going concern basis.

P
age 131



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18

DRAFT

6

Significant audit risks
Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary


Improper revenue recognition

Under ISA 240 (UK) there is a presumed risk that 

revenue may be misstated due to the improper 

recognition of revenue. This presumption can be 

rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk 

of material misstatement due to fraud relating to 

revenue recognition.

Auditor commentary

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at the Council, we have 

determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition;

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited; and

• The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Burnley Borough Council, mean that all forms of 

fraud are seen as unacceptable.

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Burnley Borough Council.

Findings

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of revenue recognition.


Management override of controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable 

presumed risk that the risk of management over-ride 

of controls is present in all entities. 

The Council faces external scrutiny of its spending, 

and this could potentially place management under 

undue pressure in terms of how they report 

performance.

We identified management override of controls as a 

risk requiring special audit consideration.

Auditor commentary

In accordance with our audit plan we have completed the following work:

• gained an understanding of the accounting estimates, judgements applied, and decisions made by management and 

considered their reasonableness;

• obtained a full listing of journal entries, identified and tested unusual and significant journals for appropriateness; and

• evaluated the rationale for any change in accounting policies or significant unusual transactions.

Findings

Our audit work has not identified any evidence of management override of controls

Financial Statements 

P
age 132



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18

DRAFT

7

Significant audit risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary


Valuation of property, plant and 

equipment

The Council revalues its land and buildings to 

ensure that the carrying value is not materially 

different from fair value. This represents a 

significant estimate by management in the 

financial statements.

We identified the valuation of land and 

buildings revaluations and impairments as a 

risk requiring special audit consideration

The assets are revalued according to the 5 

year rolling programme following the full 

valuation of all land and buildings at 31/3 

2015.

Auditor commentary

We have carried out the following work in relation to this risk:

 reviewed management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to valuation 

experts and the scope of their work

 considered the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used.

 reviewed the basis on which the valuation is carried out and challenged the key assumptions.

 reviewed and challenged the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust and consistent with our understanding.

 tested revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into the Council's asset register

 evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and considered how 

management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current value.

Findings

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in relation to the risk identified .


Valuation of pension fund net liability

The Council's pension fund asset and liability 

as reflected in its balance sheet represent  a 

significant estimate in the financial statements.

We identified the valuation of the pension fund 

net liability as a risk requiring special audit 

consideration

Auditor commentary

We have carried out the following work in relation to this risk:

 identified the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and

assessed whether those controls were implemented as expected and were sufficient to mitigate the risk of material 

misstatement.

 evaluated the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Council's pension fund valuation. 

 obtained assurance from the auditor of the Pension Fund on the controls in place over accuracy of information provided to 

the actuary.

 gained an understanding of the basis on which the IAS 19 valuation was carried out, undertaking procedures to confirm the 

reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made, including the use of an audit expert.

 reviewed the consistency of the pension fund net liability disclosures in notes to the financial statements with the actuarial 

report from your actuary.

Findings

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in relation to the risk identified 

Financial statements

P
age 133



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18

DRAFT

8

Reasonably possible audit risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary


Operating expenses

Non-pay expenses on other goods and services represents  a 

significant percentage (77%) of the Council’s operating 

expenses. Management use judgement to estimate accruals 

and un-invoiced costs.

We identified completeness of non- pay expenses as a risk 

requiring particular audit attention

Auditor commentary

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:

• evaluated the Council's accounting policy for recognition of non-pay expenditure for appropriateness;

• updated our understanding of the Council's system for accounting for non-pay expenditure and evaluate the 

design of the associated controls; 

• performed substantive testing of a sample of non-pay expenses to confirm accuracy, valid spend, correct

classification and recognition in correct financial period;

• tested April non-pay expenditure to ensure it is charged to the correct year;

• re-performed year-end reconciliations and investigate significant adjustments.

Findings

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in relation to the completeness of non-pay operating

expenses.


Employee remuneration

Payroll expenditure also  represents a significant percentage 

(17%) of the Council’s operating expenses

As the payroll expenditure comes from a number of individual 

transactions and interfaces with sub-systems there is a risk 

that payroll expenditure in the accounts could be understated. 

We therefore identified completeness of payroll expenses as 

a risk requiring particular audit attention

Auditor commentary

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:

• evaluated the Council's accounting policy for recognition of payroll expenditure for appropriateness;

• updated our understanding of the Council's system for accounting for payroll expenditure and evaluated the

design of the associated controls;

 tested a sample of employee expenses to staff records, pay rates and classification in the general ledger

 reconciled total payroll costs from the payroll subsystem to the general ledger

 performed a monthly trend analysis to identify any months with unusually high or low pay levels

Findings

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in relation to the completeness of payroll expenses.

Financial statements

P
age 134



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18 

DRAFT

9

Accounting policies

Financial statements

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment

Revenue recognition • Revenue from the provision of goods and services is 

recognised when the amount of revenue can be 

measured reliably and it is probable the revenue will 

be received by the Council.

• Council Tax and NDR income included in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

is the Council’s share of accrued income for the 

year.

• Government grants are recognised only when there 

is reasonable assurance that the Council will comply 

with conditions attached to the payments, and the 

grants or contributions will be received.

 The Council's policy is appropriate and consistent with the 

relevant accounting framework – the CIPFA Code of Practice on 

Local Authority Accounting (the CIPFA Code).

 The main elements of the Council's revenues are predictable and 

there is minimal judgement required from the Council.

 The accounting policy for revenue recognition is appropriately 

disclosed.



Judgements and estimates Key estimates and judgements include

 Useful lives of Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

 Net Pensions Liability

 Business Rate appeals

 Debt impairment

• The Council's accounting policies for key estimates and 

judgements are appropriate and consistent with the CIPFA Code. 

• The Council's policies and judgements are reasonable and 

appropriately disclosed. Note 2 sets out critical judgements in 

applying accounting policies and Note 4 sets out assumptions 

made about future and other major sources of estimation 

uncertainty.

 The Council has appropriately relied on the work of experts for 

material estimates of asset revaluations, business rate appeal 

provisions and pension fund revaluations. 

• Our testing indicates that the material estimates included in the 

financial statements have been calculated based on reasonable 

judgements and assumptions from experts.



Other critical policies We have reviewed the Council's policies against the requirements of 

the CIPFA Code of Practice. The Council's accounting policies are 

appropriate and consistent with previous years.



Assessment

 Marginal accounting policy which could potentially be open to challenge by regulators

 Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure

 Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

P
age 135



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18 

DRAFT

10

Other communication requirements

Financial Statements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.

Issue Commentary


Matters in relation to fraud  We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit and Standards Committee.  We have not been made aware of any other 

incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.


Matters in relation to related 

parties

• We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.


Matters in relation to laws and 

regulations

 You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not 

identified any incidences from our audit work. 


Written representations  A standard letter of representation has been requested from the Council.


Confirmation requests from 

third parties 

 We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to the Council's Bank for bank balance, and to several 

other institutions for investment confirmation. This permission was granted and the requests were sent. 

 We have received positive confirmations for all requests. 


Disclosures  Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements.


Significant difficulties  No significant difficulties were encountered during the completion of our work. 

P
age 136



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18 

DRAFT

11

Other responsibilities under the Code 

Financial statements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.

Issue Commentary


Other information  We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements 

(including the Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and Narrative Report), is materially inconsistent with the 

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

No inconsistencies have been identified.


Matters on which we report by 

exception

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a numbers of areas:

 If the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is 

misleading or inconsistent with the other information of which we are aware from our audit

 If we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties

We have nothing to report on these matters.


Specified procedures for 

Whole of Government 

Accounts 

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation

pack under WGA group audit instructions. 

• In the case of Burnley Borough Council no work is required as the Council does not exceed the NAO’s threshold specified for Income, 

Expenditure, Assets or Liabilities.


Certification of the closure of 

the audit

We intend to certify the closure of the 2017/18 audit of Burnley Borough Council in the audit opinion, as detailed in Appendix C.

P
age 137



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18 

DRAFT

12

Value for Money

Risk assessment 

We carried out an initial risk assessment in January 2018 and identified one 
significant risk in respect of specific areas of proper arrangements using the guidance 
contained in AGN03. We communicated this risk to you in our Audit Plan dated 23 
February 2018. 

We have continued our review of relevant documents up to the date of giving our 
report, and have not identified any further significant risks where we need to perform 
further work.

We carried out further work only in respect of the significant risks we identified from 
our initial and ongoing risk assessment. Where our consideration of the significant 
risks determined that arrangements were not operating effectively, we have used the 
examples of proper arrangements from AGN 03 to explain the gaps in proper 
arrangements that we have reported in our VFM conclusion.

Our work

AGN 03 requires us to disclose our views on significant qualitative aspects of the 

Council's arrangements for delivering economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

We have focused our work on the significant risk that we identified in the Council's 

arrangements. Our main considerations in arriving at our conclusion, are set out on 

page 13.

Overall conclusion

Based on the work we performed to address the significant risk, we concluded that:

• the Council had proper arrangements in all significant respects to ensure it 

delivered value for money in its use of resources. 

The text of our report, which confirms this can be found at Appendix C.

Significant difficulties in undertaking our work

We did not identify any significant difficulties in undertaking our work on your 

arrangements which we wish to draw to your attention.

Significant matters discussed with management

There were no matters where no other evidence was available or matters of such 

significance to our conclusion or that we required written representation from 

management or those charged with governance.

Value for Money
Background to our VFM approach

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work for 2017/18 in

November 2017. The guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are

required to give a conclusion on whether the Council has proper arrangements in place.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys

resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Informed 

decision 

making

Value for 

Money 

arrangements 

criteria
Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

Working 

with partners 

& other third 

parties

P
age 138



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18 

DRAFT

13

Key findings

We set out below our key findings against the one significant risk we identified through our initial risk assessment. No further risks were identified through our review.

Value for Money

Significant risk Findings Conclusion


Financial sustainability

Whilst the Council has been

successful in recent years in reducing

its net expenditure, the Council still

needs to find savings of around £5m

over the 4 year period 2018/19 -

2021/22, which is equivalent to around

33% of the Council’s net budget

This risk relates to the Council's

arrangements for sustainable resource

deployment.

To address this risk to our vfm

conclusion we will:

• review the latest medium term

financial strategy (MTFS) to

confirm that it reflects an accurate

assessment of the Council's

financial position and consideration

of the progress made by officers in

developing plans to address the

financial gap

• review the Council’s organisational

development strategy and ensure

that strategic prioritisation and

service transformation are

recognised within the strategic plan

• review evidence that the Council

has taken sufficient steps to ensure

it has a realistic expectation that

the savings required can be

achieved.

• review the outturn position for

2017/18.

The Council’s set a balanced budget for 2018/19 in February 2018, determining a net revenue budget of 

£15,090k. The budget appropriately recognised increases in spending pressure such as pay and activity 

growth pressures, as well as a realistic estimate of revenue increases from business rates and Council 

Tax. Further budget savings of £179k were identified as being required and allocated across operational 

budgets.

The Council also updated the MTFS for the period 2019/20 to 2021/22 incorporating key assumptions such 

as loss of New Homes Grant, ongoing pay growth, and retaining Council Tax increases at 1.99%. The 

cumulative budget gap over the 3 year period has been identified as £3.2 million or 21% of the Net 

Revenue Budget for 2018/19. To date the Council has approved around £355k of savings to be made over 

the first 2 years of the MTFS, with work ongoing to address the cumulative gap.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) clearly sets out the assumptions that have been made about 

future levels of income and expenditure, identifying any risks attached to them and demonstrating an 

accurate assessment of the Council’s financial position.

The Council approved its Capital Budget for 2018/19 in February 2018 as £10,141k, however this has now 

been revised to £11,451k following the re-profiling of slippage from the 2017/18 capital programme.

The Council is continuing to work with its strategic partner Liberata to obtain efficiencies and improvements 

through the service transformation of Revenues and Benefits. The performance of these services has 

remained high throughout the transitional phase. Developments introduced in 2017/18 include: 

• increased service automation for citizens through the development and imminent launch of ‘Citizens 

Access’’ with support for vulnerable customers;

• improving ‘self service’ functionality for both citizens and businesses;

• working towards more effective customer contact, reducing the need for unnecessary repeat contacts.

Developments are generally on track to deliver the savings and benefit anticipated from the strategic 

partnership which is a key part of the Council’s organisational development plan. The Council continues to 

focus on a more ‘commercial’ way of delivering services with its strategic partner as part of its strategic 

plan.

The Council has again delivered its planned outturn position for 2017/18 with a budget surplus of £92k 

against its Net Revenue Budget of £14,596k, with a reduction of £1,254k in Earmarked Reserves to retain 

a General Fund Balance of £1,379K consistent with previous years.

The Council has a strong track record of understanding its financial position and being able to make tough 

decision in terms of actions needed to deliver outturns and achieve a sustainable financial position in the 

medium term.

Auditor view

• We have concluded 

that the Council has 

effective 

arrangements in 

place for sustainable 

resource deployment.

P
age 139



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18 

DRAFT

14

Independence and ethics

Independence and ethics

• We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with 

the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the 

financial statements 

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical 

requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix B.

Fees, non audit services and independence

Non-audit services

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following audit related services were identified. 

Service £ Threats Safeguards

Audit related

Limited Assurance report 

on RGF Grant final return 

–Aerospace project.

2,950 Self-Interest (because 

this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee  

for this work is £2,950 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £57,299 and in particular relative to Grant 

Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These 

factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Non-audit related

None nil

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are consistent with 

the Council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit (audit related) work to your auditors.

P
age 140



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18 

DRAFT

15

Audit Adjustments

Appendix A

Adjusted and unadjusted misstatements

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. There were no adjusted or 

unadjusted misstatements identified as a result of our procedures.

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of f inancial statements. 

Misclassification / 

Disclosure changes Detail Auditor recommendations Adjusted?

Misclassification – CIES

Income and Expenditure 

from Investment 

Properties

• Income and expenditure from Investment Properties had been 

recognised within Income / Expenditure in the Cost of Services  

(Governance Law, Property and Regulation),  rather than within 

Financing and Investments  (Income and Expenditure relating to 

Investment Properties).

• Reclassify Investment Properties Income and 

Expenditure from Cost of Services to Financing 

and Investments (investment properties line).



Disclosure – Note 23(b)

Remuneration bandings 

>50k

 The banding of £155,000k - £159,999k included the accrual of an exit 

payment to an individual who had not yet left the Council or received the 

exit payment. This exit payment should therefore not be included in 

calculating the individuals remuneration, in which case the individual’s 

remuneration would be <£50k.

• Remove banding £155,000 to £159,999 from the 

table (since no other individuals recorded). 

P
age 141



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18 

DRAFT

16

Fees

Proposed fee Final fee

Council Audit 50,567 50,567 

Grant Certification 6,732 TBA

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £57,299 £TBA

Other Fees

Fees for other services

Fees 

£‘000

Audit related services:

• RGF Grant – Aerospace 

2,950

Non-audit services NIL

£2,950

Appendix B

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and audit related services there were no fees for the provision of non audit services.

Audit Fees

The proposed fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) 

Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit subsidy certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Fees in respect of other 

grant work, such as reasonable assurance reports, are shown under 'Fees for other services'.

P
age 142



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18 

DRAFT

17

Audit opinion
We anticipate we will provide the Council with an unmodified audit report 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Burnley Borough Council

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Burnley Borough Council (the ‘Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 

2018 which comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements the Movement in Reserves 

Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund Statement, notes to the financial 

statements and Accounting Policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 

applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 

2017/18.

In our opinion the financial statements:

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2018 and of its 

expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

 have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 

accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 

law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of 

the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical 

Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe 

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Who we are reporting to

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit 

and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and 

Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so 

that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report 

and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 

anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for 

the opinions we have formed.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to 

report to you where:

 the Chief Financial Officer (section 151 Officer)’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 

preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

 the Chief Financial Officer (section 151 Officer) has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified 

material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue to adopt the 

going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial 

statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer) is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts set out on pages 17-90, the Narrative Report, and 

the Annual Governance Statement other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion 

on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated 

in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 

knowledge of the Authority obtained in the course of our work including that gained through work in relation to the 

Authority’s arrangements for securing value for money through economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 

its resources or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent 

material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial 

statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of 

Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor 

General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does 

not comply with the ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government:  Framework (2016)’ published by CIPFA 

and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are 

not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are 

satisfactorily addressed by internal controls. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our 

knowledge of the Authority gained through our work in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, the other information published together with the 

financial statements in the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement. for 

the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice we are required to report to you if:

 we have reported a matter in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014  in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

 we have made a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014  in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

 we have exercised any other special powers of the auditor under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Appendix C

P
age 143



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for  Burnley Borough Council  |  2017/18 

DRAFT

18

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer) 

and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities set out on page 12, the Authority is required to make 

arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the 

responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  In this authority, that officer is the Chief Financial Officer 

(Section 151 Officer). The Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer) is responsible for the preparation of the 

Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 

CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18, which give a true 

and fair view, and for such internal control as the Chief Financial Officer determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer) is responsible for assessing 

the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 

using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Authority lacks funding for its continued existence or when 

policy decisions have been made that affect the services provided by the Authority.

The Audit and Standards Committee is Those Charged with Governance.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 

Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s 

report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Conclusion on the Authority’s 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources

Conclusion 

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and 

Auditor General in November 2017, we are satisfied that the Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Responsibilities of the Authority 

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the 

adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the 

Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on the 

specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, as to whether in all significant 

respects the Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed 

resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor 

General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying 

ourselves whether the Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 

in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2018.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook 

such work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Authority in accordance with the 

requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.

Mark Heap

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor

4, Hardman Square, Spinningfields, Manchester M3 3EB

July 2018

Appendix C

P
age 144

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Burnley Borough Council Report  | 2017/18

DRAFT

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 145



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ITEM 
NO

[AgendaItem]

D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\2\AI00006204\$sjwbytge.docx

Internal Audit Opinion 2017 18

REPORT TO AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE

DATE 19/07/2018
PORTFOLIO Resources & Performance Management
REPORT AUTHOR Asad Mushtaq
TEL NO 01282 425011 Ext 7173

EMAIL amushtaq@burnley.gov.uk

PURPOSE

1. To provide members with the Head of Finance and Property as Chief Audit Executive 
(CAE) opinion on the Internal Controls of the Council for financial year 2017-2018.

RECOMMENDATION

2. That the Committee considers the opinion

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3. To comply with the terms of reference for the Audit and Standards Committee through 
review of the scope and results of work completed by Internal Audit, and, to support and 
maintain the independence and objectivity of the Internal Audit function.

4. To meet the requirements set out in the Public Service Internal Audit Standards and 
CIPFA’s Local Government Application Note. The Annual Audit Opinion supports and 
complements the Annual Governance Statement which is required under regulation 4 of 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS

5. Limitation of Opinion

This opinion on the Internal Controls of the council is based on the work undertaken by 
Internal Audit both during 2017/18 and that relates to that year. It provides reasonable but 
not complete assurance concerning the Council’s internal control system. This also takes 
account of actions that have been agreed with Managers to address weaknesses 
identified.

6. Overall Opinion

The controls of the Council continue to operate effectively.  These include compliance 
with policy, separation of duties, authorisation, monitoring and internal checks.  Where 

Page 147

Agenda Item 9



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\2\AI00006204\$sjwbytge.docx

during audits control weaknesses have been identified, these have been addressed as 
part of an agreed Action Plan. Compliance with Action Plans is monitored and where 
these have not been implemented, further assurances have been provided by 
management that these issues will be addressed. 

In providing this opinion I have had regard for the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
and Public Service Internal Audit Standards and CIPFA’s Local Government Application 
Note. The results of the review of internal audits effectiveness and its quality assurance 
and improvement programme conclude that this work was delivered in compliance with 
the Public Service Internal Audit Standards and CIPFA’s Local Government Application 
Note.

7. Work Completed

Internal Audit has provided to the Audit and Standards Committee summaries of the work 
completed during 2017/18 and these should be considered in relation to this section. 
Appendix 1 contains summaries of the work, opinions and key actions agreed. Additional 
detail on progress against the Audit Plan is provided in Appendix 2.

The Internal Audit has also provided audits and support under a service level agreement 
for Burnley Leisure.

Assistance was provided in evaluation of contractors for several contracting exercises.

8. Performance

The Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18 provided for the delivery of 350 audit days whereas 
the number of actual audit days delivered was 308 This represents 88% audit coverage.
The plan did not anticipate the requirements for data protection to be placed on the 
Internal Audit Manager. This required additional training and additional work in preparing 
the organisation for the changes to legislation. The audit reports target based on the 
original plan for the year was 23 and the actual delivered was 17; the difference of a 
report is accounted for the reduced number of available audit days.

Internal Audit have reported the performance of the Service in comparison with its targets 
to the Audit and Standards Committee and Management during the year, the year end 
2017/18 actual performance to targets of implementation of high priority agreed actions is 
at 100%. 

During the year a quality assurance and improvement programme has been maintained. 
This involves an internal review of the audit work, and management questionnaires. The 
results of the internal review of work are provided to auditors as are the actions 
undertaken during the audit process to correct issues. The results of the management 
questionnaire are discussed with auditors and any actions required are agreed. The 
service also benchmarks with other Lancashire District Councils.

9. Investigations

In total 20 days were spent on investigations during 2017/18. 

The primary outcomes included the report correction of mileage rates for the Council, 
review of data protection incidents and in the continued involvement in an issue involving 

Page 148



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\2\AI00006204\$sjwbytge.docx

an outside body. It is pleasing to report that there were no significant frauds investigated 
in 2017/18.

10.Other work

I am in the combined role of Chief Audit Executive (CAE) and Section 151 officer. I have 
arrangements which will ensure that the roles do not impact on the continued 
independence of the Internal Audit service. During the financial year I am not aware of 
any actual or perceived conflict of interest in these roles.  
The Internal Audit Manager has been appointed Data Protection Officer and has been 
involved with the Council’s preparation for the implementation of the General Data 
Protection Regulation and Data Protection Act 2018. 
Work on corporate business continuity continued during the year and risk management 
has been supported.
Support has provided during the year to other services in Finance and arrangements are 
in place to ensure that this does not impact on the independence of the internal audit 
service.
I have revised the service structure at the end of the year effective from the 1st April, this 
has required some time to revise Job Descriptions and consult with relevant officers.
Work has also been undertaken to update the Council’s write-off policy.

11.Compliance with the Public Service Internal Audit Standard and Local Government 
Application Note

During 2017 18 the internal audit service conducted a quality assurance and 
improvement programme as required by the Standards. Included in this programme was 
an external review of the services compliance with the standards. The Report from this 
review was reported the committee in July 2017. The report found that the service 
conforms with the standards.
There are 327 requirements of which the service was compliant more than 95% of them.
The report and the points with the Council’s action plan is included in the July 2017 report 
to the Audit and Standards Committee.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND BUDGET PROVISION

12.None

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

13.The Annual Internal Audit Opinion is considered as part of the Annual Governance 
Statement, which is part of the Local Code of Corporate Governance

DETAILS OF CONSULTATION

14.None

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Page 149



ITEM 
NO

[AgendaItem]

D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\2\AI00006204\$sjwbytge.docx

15.None

FURTHER INFORMATION      
PLEASE CONTACT: Asad Mushtaq Ext 7173
ALSO: Ian Evenett Ext 7175

Page 150



Appendix 1
Summary of Audit reports Issued 2017/18

Audit Service Audit Purpose Audit Opinion Key Actions Agreed Implementation 
Detail

Score

Elections 
(May)

Governance, 
Law and 
Regulation

To audit the staffing 
payments for the elections in 
May 2017.

No issues to report. None None 1

Annual 
Governance 
Statement

Corporate To provide assurance on the 
Council’s governance 
system.

No significant issues 
identified.

None None NA 
(Satisfactory)

Parlimentary 
Elections 
2017

Governance, 
Law and 
Regulation

To audit the staffing 
payments for the elections in 
June 2017.

No issues to report. None None 1

J W Shaw 
Bequest

Finance To provide an independent 
examination report on the 
charity.

No issues to report. None None 1

Mayor’s 
Charity 
Accounts

Finance To provide an independent 
examination report on the 
charity.

No issues to report. None None 1

Burnley Acorn 
Fund

Finance To provide an independent 
examination report on the 
charity.

No issues to report. None None 1

Stocks 
Massey 
Accounts

Finance To provide an independent 
examination report on the 
charity.

No issues to report. None None 1

Performance 
Indicators

Regulation To review the accuracy of 
performance indicators as 
reported by the Regulation 
service.

Reliance can be placed on 
the outturn reported for 
each of the performance 
indicators.

Adopt a single spreadsheet on 
which all data is consolidated 
and calculations are done 
automatically avoiding manual 
intervention as much as 
possible.

Spreadsheet 
developed and use of 
which has commenced. 
Data populated from 
April 2017.

2

Income 
Management

Markets To determine the income 
management procedures and 
comment on their 
effectiveness.

Income management 
procedures are effective.  
Rents are collected in a 
timely fashion with effective 
processes for missed 
payments.

Introduce requirement of 
deposit at commencement of 
tenancy, to mitigate against 
risk of loss of income.

Introduced. 2

Treasury 
Management

Finance To review effectiveness of 
controls over treasury 
management.

Mechanisms have been 
established to record, 
monitor and make informed 
treasury decisions, thisis 
applied medthodically and 
consistently. Controls are 
effective.

None None 1

P
age 151



Appendix 1
Summary of Audit reports Issued 2017/18

Audit Service Audit Purpose Audit Opinion Key Actions Agreed Implementation 
Detail

Score

Website 
Management

Information 
Technology 
Services

To provide assurance that 
controls in the management 
of the Council’s website are 
effective.

The internal controls 
managing the Council’s 
website operate to mitigate 
risks and are effective in 
doing this.

Review list of website editors 
for continued requirement.
Update and identify deadlinks.

List of editors are under 
review, working in 
conjunction with 
services.
Online tools are being 
used to identify and 
correct deadlinks. 

2

Asset Control Green Spaces 
and Amenities

To review and comment on 
the adequacy of asset control 
within Green Spaces and 
Amentities.

Controls of assets is 
effective. Completion of 
inventory will increase level 
of assurance.

Remind officers of purchasing 
system for ordering goods.
Mark all acquired equipment 
and ensure these are recorded 
in an inventory

Officers reminded of 
purchasing system.
Inventory to be 
completed after Hand 
Arm Compliance 
testing.

2

Assessement 
of Benefits

Finance and 
Property

To review controls in the 
assessment of benefits

No issues to report None None 1

Selective 
Licencing

Housing and 
Development 
Control

To review and evaluate the 
operational, financial and 
management controls and 
comment on their 
effectiveness.

Operational, financial and 
management controls are 
effective.  

The recommendations made 
relate to ensuring all staff are 
aware of their information 
governance responsibilities

Officers to complete 
Data Protection 
training.

2

Write-Offs 
2017/18

Finance and 
Property

To review the write-offs for 
2017/18 and to present an 
analysis for authorisation of 
write-offs

The operation of write-offs 
has altered several times 
during 2017/18 as the 
responsibility of 
authorisation has altered 
over the year, but the 
consistence of the 
operational staff continues 
to maintain a controlled and 
appropriate system

None None 1

Audit Score Defined

Score Opinion Definition of Opinion
1 Comprehensive 

Assurance
There is a sound system of controls designed to meet objectives and controls are consistently applied in all the areas reviewed.

2 Reasonable Assurance There is a good system of controls. However, there are minor weaknesses in the design or consistency of application that may put 
the achievement of some objectives at risk in the areas reviewed.

P
age 152



Appendix 1
3 Limited Assurance Key controls exist to help achieve system objectives and manage principle risks. 

However, weaknesses in design or inconsistent application of controls are such that put the achievement of system objectives at risk 
in the areas reviewed.

4 No Assurance The absence of basic key controls or the inconsistent application of key controls is so severe that the audit area is open to abuse or 
error. 

N/A Not Applicable The audit review undertaken did not have as its primary objective an assessment of system, its controls and their effectiveness. 

P
age 153



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 Internal Audit Activity 2017-18

Audit Started Report 
Issued Audit Score

Corporate

Annual Governance Statement   NA (Satisfactory)

Governance of Partnerships 

Charities

J W Shaw   1

Mayor’s Charity   1

Stocks Massey   1

Acorn Fund   1

Debts Write-Off   1

Fraud Risk Assessment   NA (Satisfactory)

Strategic Partner Performance 
Indicators 

Finance

Benefits Calculation Check   NA (Satisfactory)

Payment of Benefits and 
Overpayments          1

Bank Reconciliation

Final Accounts         NA (Satisfactory)

Budget Monitoring 

Council Tax

General Ledger

Creditors

Payroll 

Income Management

Treasury Management   2
Economy and Growth

Burnley Indoor Market   2

Audit Started Report 
Issued Audit Score

Housing and Development 
Control

Selective Licensing   2
Information Governance

Data Protection 

iWorld – Application Control

Website  

Green Spaces

Cemetary and Crematorium 

Governance, Law, Property and 
Regulation

Elections

County   1

Parlimentary   1
External Clients

Burnley Leisure – Service Level 
Agreement  

P
age 155



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ITEM 
NO

[AgendaItem]

D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\2\AI00006203\$cj2ur2lf.docx

Governance of Strategic Partner 2017 18

REPORT TO AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE

DATE 19/07/2018
PORTFOLIO Resources & Performance Management
REPORT AUTHOR Ian Evenett
TEL NO 01282 425011

EMAIL ievenett@burnley.gov.uk

PURPOSE

1. To provide members with a report on the governance of the Strategic Partner during 
2017/18.

RECOMMENDATION

2. That the Committee considers the opinion

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3. The report was requested by the Audit and Standards Committee.

SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS

4. The Governance of the partnership is recorded in Partnering Protocol. In addition, there is 
delegated authority in Part 3 of the constitution to the Head of Finance and Property to 
take decisions in respect of strategic partnerships.
 

5. Board Level – Strategic Partnering Board.

There were 4 Strategic Partnership Board meetings held approximately Quarterly.
Senior Management from both the Council and Liberata attended. Strategic level 
meetings are to ensure that the partnership is aligned with the Council’s objectives and 
continues to meet both partner’s needs.

6. Operational Level - Project Operating Group

There were six Project Operating Group Meetings held during 2017/18. These were held 
about one every 2 months. This had decreased from monthly meetings during 2016.
Operational management from the Council and Liberata attended. At these meetings 
operational issues, such as progression of change controls, issues from service liaison 
and corporate developments which affect the partnership working to be discussed and 
resolved. 

Page 157

Agenda Item 10



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\2\AI00006203\$cj2ur2lf.docx

7. Service Level – Service Leads Liaison

There were meetings between the Council and Liberata Operational Service leads. There 
are six service leads. These liaisons meetings generally operate approximately monthly, 
but can be more frequent depending on issues arising and availability. They cover the 
details of performance, planning, delivery and development in the specific service area.

8. Project Teams

Where required and particularly in respect of IT there are project teams which work where 
partner colleagues work to deliver new systems or process improvement. During 2017/18 
Office 365 development was one such project.

9. Day to Day interaction

There are many thousands of operational interactions between the partners. These work 
to ensure that the partnership delivers services. This high level of integration helps to 
ensure that the partnership is aligned and working effectively. 

10.Performance

There are two tiers of performance indicators; Key performance Indicators (KPI’s) and 
Performance Indicators (PI). The difference is that there are penalties for not meeting 
KPI’s and no penalties for not achieving PI’s. Performance is reported monthly, quarterly 
and at year end.
In audit testing of the KPI’s and PI’s no significant issues have been identified. 

11.Change Control

This relates to the formal process for altering the terms and arrangement of the 
partnership. Either partner can initiate a change and this goes through a process of 
approval until it is approved by the senior management of both sides.
There is a specific change control process for the IT service where there are competing 
development requests and limited development resource.

12.Risk Management

A risks and issues log (RAID – Risks, Assumptions, Issues and Dependences) is 
maintained by the partnership as a formal record of the risk management. The RAID log 
is discussed at POG and SPB meetings. The Head of Policy and Engagement, who is the 
operational risk owner for the Partnership has identified two current risks. 
GDPR (General Data Protection Regulation) Risk, the council as data controller cannot 
transfer the risk of fines and reputational impact of a data protection. The partnership has 
worked together to prepare for the changes in legislation. 
IT Resources, the partnership has an ambitious programme to improve IT systems. While 
Liberata protects the council in this regard by operating at scale, there is a residual risk 
that there is insufficient staff resource to deliver the programme to schedule. This risk is 
managed through regular joint planning. 

13.Communication

Page 158



ITEM 
NO

[AgendaItem]

D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\2\AI00006203\$cj2ur2lf.docx

Agreed messages and clear communications is an important factor in an effective 
partnership. This demonstrates the alignment of the partners. External and internal 
communications are discussed at SPB. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND BUDGET PROVISION

14.None

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

15.None

DETAILS OF CONSULTATION

16.None

BACKGROUND PAPERS

17.None

FURTHER INFORMATION      
PLEASE CONTACT: Ian Evenett Ext 7175
ALSO:

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



ITEM 
NO

[AgendaItem]

D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\0\2\AI00006205\$d52v51fh.docx

Padiham Town Council Report

REPORT TO AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE

DATE 19/07/2018
PORTFOLIO Resources & Performance Management
REPORT AUTHOR Ian Evenett
TEL NO 01282 425011 Ext 7175

EMAIL ievenett@burnley.gov.uk

PURPOSE

1. To report to members on enquires made with Padiham Town Council

RECOMMENDATION

2. The Committee considers the report.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3. Members consider the standards applicable to Parish and Town Councils.

SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS

Report in the Public Interest
4. The Town Council’s external Auditor had published a report in the public interest and 

closed its audit involvement for the financial year 2016/17 after the Council had not 
supplied its annual return for 2016/17. This effectively means that the Council has no 
external auditor opinion for the year. Padiham Town Council had had a previous report in 
the public interest from their external auditor after a fraud.

5. The Town Council has published their 2016/17 financial accounts on their website.

Governance and Reporting Framework
6. Padiham Town Council was required to produce an annual statement of goverance for 

2016/17, the return and key documents should have been provided to the external auditor 
for a review. The external auditor will have requested these documents and they had not 
been provided.

7. The documents have four principle elements. Part 1 is an annual governance statement 
which consist of the a list of questions which the council is expected to provide 
responses. These are about the internal control and accountability at the Council. These 
should be approved at a full council meeting.

8. Part 2 is an accounting statement, which is supported by a bank reconciliation. This is 
about the balances and income and expenditure by the organisation. Variations over a 
limit should be explained. This should be signed by the Councils Responsible Financial 

Page 161

Agenda Item 11



Officer and the person presiding at the committee meeting at which these were approved. 
This approval should be within 3 months of the end of the financial year (30 June 2017).

9. Part 3 is completed by the external auditor after they have completed their examination.
10.Part 4 is the Internal Auditors annual report. This can take the form the internal auditor 

responses to a series of questions or a copy of their report to the authority. The 
requirement is to have a competent and independent internal audit of the financial and 
other controls. This should be signed off by the internal auditor.

Issues identified.

11.The Town Council did complete a return for 2015/16 but failed to supply an annual return 
to their external auditor for 2016/17. The Council has supplied a Annual Statement of 
Accounts for 2016/17, but not a copy of their annual return. 

12.The activities of the Council including access to offices were impacted by the flood at 
Padiham Town Hall in December 2015 and the actions to clean and reinstate the property 
by Burnley Borough Council as the owners of the property working with its insurers. 
Despite this the Council did submit a return for 2015/16.

13.The return for 2015/16 identified a governance issue – there had been no risk 
assessment. 

14. In addition the internal auditor had identified this as a weakness and other issues in;
 The budgetary process for setting the precept.
 Petty cash payments.
 Bank reconcilations.

15.This would have resulted in an action plan to address the issues that the internal auditor 
had identified.

16. In their report to the Council dated 30th September 2016 the external auditor has qualified 
the annual return.This was on the basis of not carring out a risk assessement.They 
further reported on;

a. No review of effectiveness of the internal control
b. VAT not reclaimed by smaller authority.
c. Not fully completing the trust funds disclosure note.
d. Financial Regulations and Standing Orders need updating
e. Internal Auditors Recommendations
f. Budgetary process
g. Bank Reconcillations
h. Internal Control System
i. S137 Payment reporting
j. Changes in the comparative figures from 2014/15 in the 2015/16 return.

2017/18 Arrangments.

17.The Town Council have appointed a new member of staff, Padiham’s First Officer. They 
have produced the  accounts for 2017/18 and these are published on the Town Council’s 
website. A new internal auditor has been appointed. The  external audit regime has 
changed for 2017/18. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND BUDGET PROVISION

18.The Borough Council collects precepts on behalf of the Town Council and also pays a 
Council grant. Payments of the Council Grant are listed in the table below.

Page 162



Year Amount
2018/19 £6,107 (Budget)
2017/18 £7,783
2016/17 £10,474
2015/16 £10,474

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

19.None

DETAILS OF CONSULTATION

20.None

BACKGROUND PAPERS

21.None

FURTHER INFORMATION      
PLEASE CONTACT: Ian Evenett - Internal Audit Manager      
ALSO:

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



ITEM NO

Code of Conduct Review

REPORT TO AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE

DATE 19/07/2018
PORTFOLIO Leader 
REPORT AUTHOR Chris Gay, Deputy Monitoring Officer
TEL NO 477163

EMAIL cgay@burnley.gov.uk

PURPOSE

1. To report on the recommendations of a review of section 5.1 of the Council’s Code of 
Conduct: Complaints Procedure Guidance in relation to arrangements for dealing with 
complaints about Council members

RECOMMENDATION

2. That the Council’s Member Complaints Procedure Guidance is updated in relation to 
investigation timescales, the maintenance of the general principles of the code during an 
investigation; and the inclusion of the appendix detailing the procedures for conducting a 
Code of Conduct Hearing.

3. That The Audit and Standards Committee recommend to full Council the adoption of 
these changes.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

4. To ensure that the Code of Conduct: Complaints Procedure Guidance remains current 
and fit for purpose. 

SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS

5. A review of procedures is carried out periodically to test that existing arrangements 
remain fit for purpose by reflecting experience and learning through their application; and 
any changes brought about by legislative requirements. Whilst there are no proposals as 
a result of legislative changes, the following areas have been identified as beneficial to 
having supporting guidance updated; 

a) Keeping members informed on progress.
Presently there is no express requirement to keep the subject member(s) and 
complainant(s) advised on the progress of an investigation after their representations 
have been given. It is proposed that this is a requirement and where practicable an 
investigation should conclude within a month of the decision to carry out the investigation.  

Page 165

Agenda Item 12



However, in all cases the Subject Member and Complainant should be kept informed on 
the progress of the investigation, particularly in more complex cases. However, this would 
not extend to providing details or information as part of the investigation itself; unless 
relevant to seeking further clarification or additional representation as part of that 
investigation.    

b) Guidance clarification on the conduct of individuals during an investigation.

During the investigation, and at all times, both the Subject Member and Complainant 
must maintain courteous, respectful and professional relationships with the Investigating 
Officer, and between themselves and any witnesses; and be cooperative to reasonable 
requests for information from, and representations to the Investigating Officer. 

This is an extension of the basic principles of the Code of Conduct that equally apply 
where members are involved in an investigation as to when they carry out the 
responsibilities of their office. It proposed inclusion in the guidance serves to support this 
requirement. 

c) Code of Conduct Hearing Procedures etc.

A Hearing may be necessary dependent upon the outcome or recommendation of an 
investigation. A procedure note has been drafted to be incorporated into the guidance 
setting out the steps and requirements of holding a Hearing.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND BUDGET PROVISION

6. None.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

7. This is an update to the Code of Conduct Complaints procedure as part of the 
Constitution of the Council. The Code serves to protect individuals within the Council and 
also protects the authority itself by making the requirements and the procedures within 
the Code accessible and easily understood.

DETAILS OF CONSULTATION

8. Lukman Patel, Monitoring Officer

BACKGROUND PAPERS

9.  (Draft) Updated section 5.1 of the Council’s Code of Conduct: Complaints Procedure 
Guidance

FURTHER INFORMATION Chris Gay      
PLEASE CONTACT:      
ALSO:      

Page 166



Appendix

REVIW DRAFT JULY 2018

1

BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING WITH COMPLAINTS ABOUT THE CODE OF 
CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS

Introduction

1. This procedure applies when a complaint is received that a Member, Co-opted Member 
or Parish Member has or may have failed to comply with the Code of Conduct for Members.

2. The person making the complaint will be referred to as “the Complainant” and the person 
against whom the complaint is made will be referred to as the “Subject Member.” 

3. No Member or officer will participate in any stage of the arrangements if he or she has, or 
may have, any personal conflict of interest in the matter.

4. Making a complaint

A complaint must be made in writing by post or email to: –
The Monitoring Officer
Burnley Council
Town Hall
Manchester Road
BB11 9SA

OR

lpatel@burnley.gov.uk

The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of the complaint within 5 working days of 
receiving it and, at the same time, write to the Subject Member (and in the case of a 
complaint about a Parish Councillor to the Clerk of the Parish Council as well) with details of 
the allegations (subject to any representations from the Complainant on confidentiality, 
which are accepted as valid by the Monitoring Officer). 

The Subject Member may, within 5 working days of receipt, make written representations to 
the Monitoring Officer which must be taken into account when deciding how the complaint 
will be dealt with. Representations received after this time may be taken into account, at the 
discretion of the Monitoring Officer, but will in any event not be considered after the 
Monitoring Officer has issued his Complaint Initial Assessment.

5. Complaint Initial Assessment

The Monitoring Officer will review the complaint and where there is a reasonable belief that 
an investigation is necessary, and after consultation with the Independent Person, take a 
decision (a Complaint Initial Assessment) as to whether it merits investigation, or another 
course of action. This decision will normally be taken within 20 working days of receipt of a 
complaint. If the complaint fails one or more of the following tests, it will be rejected:

Page 167

mailto:lpatel@burnley.gov.uk


Appendix

REVIW DRAFT JULY 2018

2

 The complaint is against one or more named Members or co-opted Members of the 
Council or a Parish Council within its district;

 The Subject Member was in office at the time of the alleged conduct and the Code of 
Conduct was in force at the time;

 The complaint, if proven, would be a breach of the Code of Conduct under which the 
subject Member was operating at the time of the alleged misconduct.

If appropriate, the Monitoring Officer will then go on to apply the following criteria in deciding 
whether a complaint should be accepted for investigation, dealt with informally, or rejected:

 Whether a substantially similar allegation has previously been made by the 
Complainant to Standards for England, or the Standards Committee, or the 
complaint has been the subject of an investigation by another regulatory authority;

 Whether the complaint is about something that happened so long ago that those 
involved are unlikely to remember it clearly enough to provide credible evidence, or 
where the lapse of time means there would be little benefit or point in taking action 
now;

 Whether the allegation is anonymous;

 Whether the allegation discloses a potential breach of the Code of Conduct, but the 
complaint is not serious enough to merit any action and:-

(i) the resources needed to investigate and determine the complaint are wholly 
disproportionate to the allegations;
(ii) whether, in all the circumstances, there is no overriding public benefit in carrying out an 
investigation;

 Whether the complaint appears to be malicious, vexatious, politically motivated or tit-
for-tat;

 Whether the complaint suggests that there is a wider problem throughout the 
authority;

 Whether it is apparent that the subject of the allegation is relatively inexperienced as 
a Member, or has admitted making an error and the matter would not warrant a more 
serious sanction;  

 Whether training or conciliation would be the appropriate response;

Page 168



Appendix

REVIW DRAFT JULY 2018

3

6. Additional Information

The Monitoring Officer may require additional information to come to a decision and may 
request information from the Subject Member. Where the complaint relates to a Parish 
Councillor, the Monitoring Officer may also inform the Clerk of the Parish Council of the 
complaint and seek the views of the Clerk of the Parish Council before deciding whether the 
complaint merits formal investigation or other action. 

In appropriate cases, the Monitoring Officer may seek to resolve the complaint informally, 
without the need for an investigation. Such informal resolution may involve the Subject 
Member accepting that his/her conduct was unacceptable and offering an apology, or taking 
other steps. Where the Subject Member or the authority (in appropriate cases) make a 
reasonable offer of local resolution, but it is rejected by the Complainant, the Monitoring 
Officer will take account of this in deciding whether the complaint merits formal investigation.
If the complaint identifies criminal conduct or breach of other regulations by any person, the 
Monitoring Officer is authorised to report this to the Police or other prosecuting or regulatory 
authorities.

7. Confidentiality

If a Complainant has asked for their identity to be withheld, this request will be considered 
by the Monitoring Officer at the Complaint Initial Assessment stage. As a matter of fairness 
and natural justice, the Subject Member should usually be told who has complained about 
them and receive details of the complaint.

However, in exceptional circumstances, the Monitoring Officer may withhold the 
Complainant’s identity if on request from the Complainant, or otherwise, they are
satisfied that the Complainant has reasonable grounds for believing that they or any witness 
relevant to the complaint may be at risk of physical harm, or his or her employment may be 
jeopardised if their identity is disclosed, or where there are medical risks (supported by 
medical evidence) associated with the Complainant’s identity being disclosed.

If the Monitoring Officer decides to refuse a request by a Complainant for confidentiality, 
they will offer the Complainant the option to withdraw the complaint, rather than proceed 
with his or her identity being disclosed. The Monitoring Officer will balance whether the 
public interest in taking action on a complaint will outweigh the Complainant’s wish to have 
his or her identity withheld from the Subject Member

8. Investigation

The Monitoring Officer will appoint an Investigating Officer where a complaint merits formal 
investigation. The Investigating Officer may be a Council officer, an officer of another 
Council, or an external investigator.

The Investigating Officer will follow guidance issued by the Monitoring Officer on the 
investigation of complaints. The guidance will follow the principles of proportionality and the 
cost-effective use of Council resources and shall be interpreted in line with these principles.

Page 169



Appendix

REVIW DRAFT JULY 2018

4

The Investigating Officer will ensure that the Subject Member receives a copy of the 
complaint – subject to a Monitoring Officer decision on Confidentiality.

Where practicable an investigation should conclude within a month of the decision to carry out the 
investigation.

The Subject Member and Complainant should be kept informed on the progress of the investigation, 
particularly in more complex cases. However, this does not extend to providing details or information 
as part of the investigation itself; unless relevant to seeking clarification or additional representation.   

During the investigation, and at all times, both the Subject Member and Complainant must maintain 
courteous, respectful and professional relationships with the Investigating Officer, and between 
themselves and any witnesses; and be cooperative to reasonable requests for information and 
representation from the Investigating Officer.  

At the end of their investigation, the Investigating Officer will produce a draft report and will 
send copies of that draft report to the Complainant and to the Subject Member, for 
comments. The Investigating Officer will take such comments into account, before issuing 
their final report to the Monitoring Officer.

9. Investigating Officer finding of insufficient evidence of failure to comply with the 
Code of Conduct

The Monitoring Officer will review the Investigating Officer’s report and, if they are satisfied 
that the Investigating Officer’s report is satisfactory, will make a Confirmation Decision to 
confirm the finding of no failure to comply with the Code of Conduct.

The Monitoring Officer will write to the Complainant and the Subject Member (and to the 
Clerk of the Parish Council, where the complaint relates to a Parish Councillor), with a copy 
of the Confirmation Decision and the Investigating Officer’s final report.

If the Monitoring Officer is not satisfied that the investigation has been conducted a 
satisfactorily, the Investigating Officer may be asked to reconsider their report and 
conclusion.

10. Investigating Officer finding of sufficient evidence of failure to comply with the 
Code of Conduct

The Monitoring Officer will review the Investigating Officer’s report and will then either send 
the matter for Local Hearing before the Hearings Panel or, after consulting the Independent 
Person, seek Local Resolution. 

Page 170



Appendix

REVIW DRAFT JULY 2018

5

11. Local Resolution

If the Monitoring Officer considers that the matter can reasonably be resolved without the 
need for a hearing, they will consult with the Independent Person and the Complainant and 
seek to agree a fair resolution. Such resolution may include the Member accepting that their 
conduct was unacceptable and offering an apology, and/or other remedial action. 

If the Member accepts the suggested resolution, the Monitoring Officer will report the 
outcome to the Standards Committee and the Clerk to the Parish Council (if appropriate) for 
information, but will take no further action. 

If the Complainant or the Subject Member refuses Local Resolution in principle or to engage 
with the agreed outcome, the Monitoring Officer will refer the matter for a Local Hearing 
without further reference to the Complainant or the Subject Member.

12. Local Hearing

Where, in the opinion of the Monitoring Officer, Local Resolution is not appropriate or the 
Complainant and/or Subject Member refuse to co-operate, then the Monitoring Officer will 
report the Investigating Officer’s report to the Hearings Panel which will conduct a Local 
Hearing before deciding whether the Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct 
and, if so, whether to take any action in respect of the Member.

The Council has agreed a procedure for local hearings, which are included at Page 8 of this 
appendix [The Pre Hearing Process and The Hearing] 

13. Constitution of the Hearings Panel

The Hearings Panel is a Sub-Committee of the Council’s Audit and Standards Committee. 
The Council has decided that it will comprise at least 1 of the Independent Members co-
opted to the Audit and Standards Committee and 5 Members of the Council, drawn from at 
least 2 different political parties. Where the complaint is about a Parish Member, the 
Hearings Panel will include at least 1 of the Parish Members co-opted to the Standards 
Committee.

The Independent Person is invited to attend all meetings of the Hearings Panel and their 
views must be sought and taken into consideration before the Hearings Panel takes any 
decision on whether the Member’s conduct constitutes a failure to comply with the Code of 
Conduct and as to any action to be taken following a finding of failure to comply with the 
Code of Conduct.

14. The Independent Person

The Independent Person must be a person who has applied for the post following 
advertisement of a vacancy for the post, and appointed by a positive vote from a majority of 
all the Members of Council at a meeting of the Full Council.

Page 171



Appendix

REVIW DRAFT JULY 2018

6

A person is not eligible for appointment if they:

14.1 Are, or have been within the past 5 years, a Member, co-opted Member or officer of 
the Council;

14.2 Are or have been within the past 5 years, a Member, co-opted Member or officer of a 
parish council within the Borough, or

14.3 Are a relative or close friend, of a person within paragraph 14.1 or 14.2 above. For this 
purpose, “relative” means –

14.3.1 Spouse or civil partner;

14.3.2 Living with the other person as husband and wife or as if they were civil partners;

14.3.3 Grandparent of the other person;

14.3.4 A lineal descendent of a grandparent of the other person;

14.3.5 A parent, sibling or child of a person within paragraphs 14.3.1 or 14.3.2;

14.3.6 A spouse or civil partner of a person within paragraphs 14.3.3, 14.3.4 or 11.3.5; or

14.3.7 Living with a person within paragraphs 14.3.3, 14.3.4 or 14.3.5 as husband and wife 
or as if they were civil partners.

15. Action the Hearings Panel may take where a Member has failed to comply with the 
Code of Conduct

Where a Hearings Panel find that a Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct, 
the Council has delegated to the Hearings Panel such of its powers to take action in respect 
of individual Members as may be necessary to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct. Accordingly the Hearings Panel may –

15.1 Publish its findings in respect of the Member’s conduct;

15.2 Report its findings to Council (or to the Parish Council) for information;

15.3 Recommend to Council that the Member be censured;

15.4 Recommend to the Member’s Group Leader (or in the case of ungrouped Members, 
recommend to Council) that he/she be removed from any or all Committees or Sub-
Committees of the Council;

15.5 Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the Member be removed from the 
Executive, or removed from their Portfolio responsibilities;

Page 172



Appendix

REVIW DRAFT JULY 2018

7

15.6 Instruct the Monitoring Officer to (or recommend that the Parish Council) arrange 
training for the Member;

15.7 Recommend to Council (or recommend to the Parish Council that the Member be 
removed) from all outside body appointments to which they have been appointed or 
nominated by the Council (or by the Parish Council);

15.8 Withdraw (or recommend to the Parish Council that it withdraws) facilities provided to 
the Member by the Council, such as a computer, website and/or email and Internet access; 
or

15.9 Exclude (or recommend that the Parish Council exclude) the Member from the 
Council’s offices or other premises, with the exception of meeting rooms as necessary for 
attending Council, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings.

16. Revision of these arrangements

The Council may by resolution or delegation to the Monitoring Officer agree to amend these 
arrangements and has delegated to the Chair of the Hearings Panel the right to depart from 
these arrangements where they consider that it is expedient to do so in order to secure the 
effective and fair consideration of any matter.

17. Appeals

Subject to Judicial Review, or a decision of the Local Government Ombudsman, there is no 
right of appeal against a decision of the Monitoring Officer or of the Hearings Panel.

Page 173



Appendix

REVIW DRAFT JULY 2018

8

The Pre Hearing Process and Hearing

1.1 In advance of the Hearing the Monitoring Officer (and/or his nominees) will:

(a) agree a date for the hearing with all the relevant parties;

(b) provide a timetable for the member to provide details about whether they wish to 
give evidence (and whether orally or in writing) at the hearing and any witnesses they 
intend to call, and additional papers they may wish to provide in time for inclusion in the 
committee papers;

(c) establish whether the member will be represented or accompanied at the hearing;

(d) establish whether the member wishes any part of the Investigation Report to be kept 
confidential or the Hearing itself to be held in private, and the reasons for this;

(e) provide information about the procedure to be used at the hearing;

(f) establish whether the member disagrees with any of the findings of fact in the   
Investigation Report;

(g) establish whether the Investigating Officer intends to call any witnesses.

1.2 Wherever possible hearings conducted by the Hearing Panel shall take place within 
three calendar months of the referral to the Hearing Panel.

1.3 At the hearing, the Monitoring Officer/Investigating Officer will present the 
Investigation Report, call such witnesses as he/she considers necessary and make 
representations to substantiate his/her conclusion that the member has failed to comply 
with the Code of Conduct.  For this purpose, the Monitoring Officer/Investigating Officer 
may request the person making the allegation to attend and give evidence to the 
Hearings Panel.  

1.4 The member will then have an opportunity to give his/her evidence, to call witnesses 
and to make representations to the Hearings Panel as to why he/she considers that 
he/she did not fail to comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

1.5 If a member fails to attend the hearing, the Hearing Panel may decide to proceed in 
the member’s absence and make a determination, or to adjourn the hearing to a later 
date

1.6 Full details of the process to be undertaken at the hearing are contained in the 
Hearing Procedure note comprising the Appendix to these arrangements.  

Page 174



Appendix

REVIW DRAFT JULY 2018

9

1.7 The Hearing Panel, having sought and taken into account the views of the 
Independent Person may conclude: 

(a) that the member did not fail to comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct, and 
dismiss the complaint, or 

(b) that the member did fail to comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

1.8 In the event of a finding under Paragraph 1.7 (b) above, the Chair will inform the 
member of this finding and the Hearing Panel will then consider what action, if any, it 
should take as a result of the member’s failure to comply with the Members’ Code of 
Conduct.  In doing this, the Hearing Panel will give the member an opportunity to make 
representations to the Panel as to whether any action should be taken and what form 
any action should take and will seek and take into account the views of the Independent 
Person. It will then decide what action, if any, to take in respect of the matter.

2. Action which may be taken where a member has failed to comply with the Code 
of Conduct

2.1 Having determined that a member has failed to comply with the Members’ Code of 
Conduct, the Hearing Panel may:

(a) Publish its findings in respect of the member’s conduct;

(b) Report its findings to Council (or to the Parish Council) for 
information;

(c) Recommend to Council that the member be censured

(d) Recommend to the member’s Group Leader (or in the 
case of ungrouped members, recommend to Council) that 
he/she be removed from any or all Committees or Sub-
Committees of the Council;

(e) Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the 
member be removed from the Executive, or removed 
from Portfolio responsibilities;

(f) Instruct the Monitoring Officer to (or recommend to the 
Parish Council ) arrange training for the Member;

(g) Recommend to Council (or recommend to the 
Parish/Town Council that the Member be removed) from 

Page 175



Appendix

REVIW DRAFT JULY 2018

10

all outside body appointments to which they have been 
appointed or nominated by the Council (or Parish 
Council)

(h) Withdraw (or recommend to the Parish Council that it 
withdraws) facilities provided to the Member by the 
Council, such as computer, website and/or email and 
Internet access; or 

(i) Exclude (or recommend that the Parish Council exclude) 
the Member from the Council’s offices or other premises, 
with the exception of  meeting rooms necessary for 
attending Council, Committee and Sub-Committee 
meetings.

2.2 The Hearing Panel has no power to suspend or disqualify the member or to 
withdraw members’ or special responsibility allowances.

2.3 At the end of the hearing, the Chair shall state the decision of the Hearing Panel as 
to whether the member failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and as to any action 
which the Panel has resolved to take.

2.4 As soon as reasonably practicable thereafter, the Monitoring Officer shall prepare a 
formal decision notice after consultation with the Chair of the Hearing Panel, and send a 
copy to the person making the allegation; to the member concerned; make that decision 
notice available for public inspection and report the decision to the next convenient 
meeting of the Council.

Page 176



Appendix

REVIW DRAFT JULY 2018

11

The Hearing Procedure

The model procedure which follows comprises good and equitable practice and should 
be followed closely wherever possible.  There may be occasions when circumstances 
require variations and subject to the maintenance of the principles of natural justice 
these may be affected at the discretion of the Hearing Panel and advised to the parties 

1. The Chair shall facilitate introductions and explain the procedure for the hearing.

2. The Monitoring Officer/Investigating Officer shall be invited to present his/her 
Investigation Report including any documentary evidence or other material and to 
call witnesses as required.  This report and documentary and witness evidence must 
be based on the allegation made to the Council; no new or additional matters will be 
allowed.

3. The Member against whom the allegation has been made or his/her representative 
may question the Monitoring Officer/Investigating Officer upon the content of the 
Investigation Report and any witnesses called by the Monitoring Officer/Investigating 
Officer. This is the Member’s opportunity to ask questions arising from the 
Investigation Report and the direct evidence and not to make a statement.

4. Members of the Panel may question the Monitoring Officer/Investigating Officer upon 
the content of the Investigation Report and any witnesses called by the Monitoring 
Officer/Investigating Officer

5. The Member against whom the allegation has been made or his/her representative 
may present his/her case and call witnesses as required.

6. The Monitoring Officer/Investigating Officer may question the Member and any 
witnesses

7. Members of the Panel may question the Member and any witnesses.

8. The Monitoring Officer/Investigating Officer may sum up the investigation into the 
allegation and make a closing speech.

9. The Member or his/her representative may sum up his/her case and make a closing 
speech.  

Page 177



Appendix

REVIW DRAFT JULY 2018

12

10.The Chair shall invite the parties to withdraw to enable the Panel to deliberate upon 
the allegation. Prior to reaching a determination the Panel shall seek and take into 
account the views of the Independent Person.

11.The parties shall be invited to return and the Chair shall announce the Panel’s 
decision in the following terms:-

(a) The Panel has determined that the Member has failed to comply with the Code of 
Conduct, or

(b) The Panel has determined that the Member has not failed to comply with the 
Code of Conduct and the allegation is dismissed.

The Panel will give reasons for its decision. 

12. If the Panel has determined that the Member has failed to comply with the Code of 
Conduct it shall consider any representations from the Member as to whether any action 
should be taken and what form any action should take.

13. The Chair shall invite the parties to withdraw to enable the Panel to deliberate upon 
what action if any should be taken. Prior to reaching a determination the Panel shall 
seek and take into account the views of the Independent Person. 

14. In addition to any action upon the current matter, the Panel shall consider whether in 
consequence it should make recommendations to the Council with a view to promoting 
high standards of conduct amongst Members.    

15. The parties shall be invited to return and the Chair shall announce the Panel’s 
decision  

16. A full written decision shall be issued to the Complainant and the Member within ten 
clear working days following the hearing and shall be published.

Page 178



AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Work Programme 2018/19

DATE OF 
MEETING

AREAS TO BE CONSIDERED

19th July 2018
 Annual Governance Statement 2017/18
 Grant Thornton – Audit Findings Report 2017/18
 Statement of Accounts 2017/18
 Internal Audit Opinion 2017/18
 Governance of Liberata Partnership
 Code of Conduct Review
 Padiham Town Council
 Work Programme 2018/19

19th September 2018
 Standards Complaints Update
 Internal Audit Progress Report Q1
 External Auditor Appointment Arrangments Update
 External Audit Progress Report
 Internal Audit Plan 2018/19
 Work Programme 2018/19

16th January 2019
 Standards Complaints Update
 Strategic Risk Register 2018/19
 Fraud Risk Assessment 2018/19
 Internal Audit Progress Report Q2
 Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 Arrangements
 Annual Accounts 2018/19 Arrangements
 Work Programme 2018/19

6th March 2019
 Standards Complaints Update 
 Internal Audit Progress Report Q3
 Internal Audit Plan 2018/19
 External Audit Plan 2018/19
 Work Programme 2018/19

Page 179

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Annual Governance Statement
	Annual Governance Statement 2017 18

	8 Annual Accounts 2017/18
	Statement of Account 2017-18 (Final)
	Burnley BC Audit Findings report 2017-18 - Draft  A andS  Cttee issue 19-7-18

	9 Internal Audit Opinion 2017/18
	Internal Audit Opinion Report 1718 Appendix 1
	Internal Audit Opinion Report 1718 Appendix 2

	10 Governance of Strategic Partner 2017 18
	11 Padiham Town Council Report
	12 Code of Conduct Review
	Part 5.1 Code of Conduct and Complaints Procedure Appendix REVIEW DRAFT (1)

	13 Work Programme

